
1 
 

Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the Deputy City Clerk at 
448 E. 1st Street, Ste. 112, Salida, CO 81201, Ph.719-530-2630 at least 48 hours in advance. 
 

  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

448 E. 1st Street, Room 190 
Salida, Colorado 81201 

Tuesday, July 7, 2020 - 6:00 p.m. 
AGENDA 

 
Please register for Regular City Council Meeting  

 
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/8402368210594753549 

 
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email about joining the webinar. 

 
1. Call to Order  

a. Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Mayor Wood 
b. Roll Call 
c. Civility Invocation 
d. COVID-19 Update 
e. Business Relief Program Update 

 
2. Consent Agenda   

a. Approval of Agenda 
b. Approval of Meeting Minutes – June 16, 2020 
c. Approval of Apron Taxilane Rehabilitation Construction Contract – Harriet 

Alexander Field 
 

3. Citizen Comment – 3 minute time limit 
 

4. Unfinished Business 
 

5. New Business / Action Items 
a. Reappointment of City Attorney (Administration) 
b. City of Salida Communications Plan (Administration) 
c. Ordinance 2020-10 – An Ordinance of the City of Salida, Colorado, 

Rezoning Certain Real Property Owned by the City of Salida from Single-
Family Residential District (R-1) to Medium-Density Residential District 
(R-2), First Reading and Setting a Public Hearing, (Planning) 

d. Ordinance 2020-11 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Salida, Colorado, Vacating a Portion of the East Crestone Avenue Right of 
Way at the Intersection with West Third, First Reading and Setting a Public 
Hearing, (Planning) 

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/8402368210594753549


2 
 

Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the Deputy City Clerk at 
448 E. 1st Street, Ste. 112, Salida, CO 81201, Ph.719-530-2630 at least 48 hours in advance. 
 

e.  
f. Resolution 2020-24 –  A Resolution of the City Council for the City of 

Salida, Colorado Approving the Subdivision Plat for Confluent Park Major 
Subdivision (Planning) 

g. Resolution 2020-25 – A Resolution of the City Council for the City of 
Salida, Colorado Approving Citizen Appointments to the Planning 
Commission Pursuant to Section 2-7-10 of the Salida Municipal Code 
(Planning) 

h. Declaration of Extension of State of Local Emergency – COVID-19 Action 
Plan Implementation (Administration) 
 

6. Councilmembers, Mayor and City Treasurer Reports 
- Councilors Pollock, Shore, Templeton, Critelli, Pappenfort, and Kasper 
- Mayor Wood 
- Treasurer Bergin 
- BOCC Reports 

 
7. Executive Session 

a. For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be 
subject to negotiations, developing strategies for negotiations, and/or 
instructing negotiators, under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e); to discuss the 
purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real, personal, or other 
property interest under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a) regarding utilities. 

 
8. Adjourn 

 

[SEAL] 
 
 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________  ____________________________________ 
City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk    Mayor P.T. Wood 



 
CIVILITY INVOCATION 

 
We are here working together to create a thriving community. It is the intention of the Salida City 
Council to promote civil communication by adopting the following guidelines for speaking to the 
public in the City Council Chambers.  It is our hope that by acting in this manner we can help 
create a safe space for people to share their perspectives and opinions:  

 
• We honor the opportunity to be engaged in the process of governance for the benefit of our 

community. 
 
• We acknowledge that each of us brings a unique perspective to this conversation and that our 

perspectives may differ. 
 
• We challenge ourselves to value varying points of view and hold all contributions as equally 

important. 
 
• We understand and accept that while we may sometimes disagree, we can always be courteous 

and kind. 
 
• We commit to respectful language, avoiding rumor, harsh criticism or personal accusation, 

even when feeling emotionally charged. 
 
• We will, to best of our ability, speak thoughtfully and listen with attention, respect, and 

curiosity.  
 
• We are confident that there may be even better solutions than any of us have thought of, which 

may be discovered through civil conversations. 
 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND 
THE LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY  

448 E. 1st  Street, Room 190 
Salida, Colorado 81201 

Tuesday, June 16, 2020 – 6:00 p.m. 
MINUTES 

1. Call to Order
a. Pledge of Allegiance – Led by Mayor P.T. Wood
b. Roll Call – Councilmembers Justin Critelli, Harald Kasper, Mike Pollock, Jane

Templeton, and Mayor Pro Tem Dan Shore were present virtually. Mayor P.T.
Wood and Alisa Pappenfort were present.

c. Civility Invocation – Mayor P.T. Wood
d. COVID-19 Update

- City Administrator Drew Nelson said the State is transitioning to a new
public health order titled Protect Your Neighbor. Confirmed cases have
remained stable and the hospital has capacity for additional patients.

e. Business Relief Program Update
- The City had processed 26 applications for grants for a combined total

of roughly $60,000.

2. Consent Agenda
a. Approval of Agenda
b. Approval of Meeting Minutes – June 2, 2020
c. Approval of Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Salida

Department of Recreation and the Boys and Girls Club of Chaffee County
d. Approval of User Agreement between the City of Salida and Zoomer Tennis

Academy
e. Approval of User Agreement between the City of Salida and Anytime Fitness
f. Approval of Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Salida and

FibArk.
g. Approval of Sanitary Sewer Extension Agreement for Lot 1 of HD

Development Minor Subdivision
h. Approval of the 2019 Sewer Reconstruction Project Phase 2 Change Order
i. Approval of CARES Act Grant and FAA AIP Grant Acceptance – Harriet

Alexander Field
j. Approval of City of Salida Personnel Manual Updates



Critelli made a motion to combine and approve the items on the consent agenda, 
seconded by Kasper. Templeton made a motion to amend the motion directing 
city attorneys to amend the Memorandums of Understanding and User 
Agreements, on the Consent Agenda, for legal consistencies, seconded by 
Pappenfort. With all in favor, THE MOTION PASSED. Wood opened Council 
discussion returning to the original motion, with all in favor, THE MOTION 
PASSED. 

 
3. Proclamation 

 
Wood read the Proclamation and declared June as LGBTQ Pride Month for the 
City of Salida. 

 
4. Citizen Comment 

 
A Letter from Adam Martinez was entered into the public record. Sondra Slappey 
spoke about the Crestone Mesa HOA, tree watering, and City review for a 
solution. 

 
5. New Business / Action Items 

a. Appointment of City Clerk 
 

Pappenfort made a motion to appoint Erin Kelley as the City Clerk, seconded by 
Templeton. Shore motioned to amend the motion to appoint Erin Kelley as City 
Clerk with a rate of compensation of $75,000 annually and to instruct the City 
Attorney to draft a contract that provides the benefits, all City policies in the 
personnel manual, as amended from time to time, unless otherwise provided for 
in the contract and instruct the Mayor to sign the contract. Critelli seconded, with 
all in favor of the amended motion, THE MOTION PASSED. Kelley was sworn 
in as the City of Salida Clerk. 
 

b. Appointment of Members to the Parks, Recreation, Open Space and Trails 
Advisory Board 
 

Kasper made a motion to appoint Daryl Huscka, Kristy Falcon, Lisa DeYoung, 
Amy Reed, Jessica Downing, Rob White and William Wooddell to the Parks, 
Recreation, Open Space and Trails Advisory Board, Templeton seconded. Shore 
motioned to amend the motion and appoint Adam Martinez as a non-voting 
liaison between the board and City Council, Kasper seconded. Templeton 
motioned to amend the amendment and appoint Martinez to a one year term. 
Kasper seconded, with all in favor, THE AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDMENT 
PASSED. Shore motioned to amend the motion and appoint DeYoung, Falcon, 
and Reed to two year terms and Downing, Wooddell, White and Huscka to one 
year terms, Kasper seconded. With all in favor, THE AMENDMENT PASSED. 
Templeton motioned to amend the motion and appoint White and Wooddell as 
alternates, Critelli seconded. With all in favor, THE AMENDMENT PASSED. 
Pollock motioned to replace Wooddell with Connor Maher, seconded by 



Pappenfort. With all in favor, THE AMENDMENT PASSED. Returning to the 
original motion DeYoung, Falcon and Reed were appointed to two-year terms, 
Downing, and Huscka to one-year terms, Maher and White as alternates, and 
Adam Martinez as a non-voting liaison between the board and City Coucil, with 
all in favor, THE MOTION PASSED. 
 

c. City of Salida 2019 Financial Audit 
 
Kasper made a motion to approve the 2019 Audited Financial Statements and the 
Audit Letter to Council, Shore seconded. With all in favor, THE MOTION 
PASSED. 
 

d. Resolution 2020-22 – Approving a Memorandum of Understanding for 
CARES Act Reimbursement   

 
Pappenfort made a motion to approve Resolution 2020-22. Critelli seconded, with 
all in favor, THE MOTION PASSED. 
 

e. Resolution 2020-23 – A Resolution of the City Council for the City of 
Salida, Colorado Supporting the Funding and Development of the Chipeta 
Mountain Heritage Park 

 
Shore made a motion to approve Resolution 2020-23. Pollock seconded, with all 
in favor, THE MOTION PASSED. 
 

 
6. Councilors, Mayor, and City Treasurer Report 

 
- Pollock praised Dave Daley for his work at the Hot Springs Aquatic Center. He 

also wanted to ensure the candidates were updated on their PROST 
applications. 

- Shore relayed that he had spoken to a few community members that were 
concerned about speeding on Ouray. He also had discussions regarding the 
closing of F Street, he said it was a temporary program that was offered via the 
state for 120 days. 

- Templeton thanked Diana Porter for her work as the former chair of the 
Recreation Advisory Board and thanked her for her service. She expressed 
concern for pedestrian safety on 1st Street due to sections of the closure and its 
heavy usage by large trucks.  

- Critelli asked Staff to review the possibility of adding a CORA section to the 
new website that would specifically address individuals submitting CORA 
requests, the topic, the amount of staff time, and cost.   

- Pappenfort was grateful for all the reports in the packet from staff. She said it 
was very helpful to see what everyone was working on. She appreciated hearing 
from the public regarding the PROST applicants. 

- Kasper had received a lot of feedback from citizens and businesses that were 



mostly excited about the F Street closure, some were annoyed. He looked 
forward to larger groups, under the direction of the Governor, and the ability to 
listen to live music again. 

- Wood said he had been working with representatives on conservation efforts. 
He reported that a few of the F Street businesses that didn’t like the closure 
initially, were expressing that it was helping them. He relayed that the weather 
had been very dry, windy, and requested that the public be cautious with fire. 
He also highlighted the Census effort and asked the community to fill out their 
forms.  

- Treasurer Bergin stated April’s city sales tax had increased by roughly $60,000 
from 2019, a 14% increase. City sales tax, year to date, was 11.5% higher than 
2019. Retail trade had an $80,000 increase in April and year to date, retail trade 
increased by $229,000.  

 
7. Adjourned at 7:56 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 

[SEAL] 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Clerk      Mayor 
 
 

 



 REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  

Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

Consent Agenda – 2.c. 

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration 

PRESENTED BY: 

Drew Nelson    

ITEM:  
Approval of Apron Taxilane Rehabilitation Construction Contract – Harriet Alexander Field 

BACKGROUND: 
In early June, the Salida City Council approved a grant agreement with the Federal Aviation 
Administration for both a CARES Act grant as well as an FAA AIP grant to seal all cracks at the 
airport as well as repave or seal-coat the taxiway.  The Airport Board has selected American Road 
Maintenance to complete the work.  The work is required to be completed in the next 45 days. 

FISCAL NOTE: 
As noted above, Harriet Alexander Field was successful in receiving CARES Act and FAA grants to 
complete this work in the amount of $402,413.  There is no additional cost to either the City or 
County to complete this work. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the contract agreement with American Road 
Maintenance for the Harriet Alexander Field apron taxilane rehabilitation project. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
A City Councilperson should make a motion to combine and approve the Consent Agenda, followed 
by a second and a roll call vote. 



 

 

 
Salida Airport – Harriet Alexander Field  

Taxiway A & Apron Rehabilitation  
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-018-2020 
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-019-2020 

 

Contract Agreement Page CA-1  
 

APRON TAXILANE REHABILITATION  
FAA AIP 3-08-0035-018-2020 (AIP) 

FAA AIP 3-08-0035-019-2020 (CARES) 
 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 
This CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT is made and entered into as of  _______ day of ___________________, 
20___, and is by and between: 
 
CHAFFEE COUNTY     hereinafter also referred to as the Sponsor 
 
City of Saida      hereinafter also referred to as the Sponsor  
 
Harriet Alexander Field – Salida Airport  hereinafter also referred to as the Sponsor 
P.O. Box 699 
104 Crestone Ave. 
Salida, CO 81201 
 
AND:  
 
________________________________________ hereinafter also referred to as the Contractor 
________________________________________ 
________________________________________ 
________________________________________ 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

A. Sponsor desires the Contractor to perform the duties of general contractor for the Harriet 
Alexander Field – Salida Airport Apron Taxilane Rehabilitation, FAA AIP FAA AIP 3-08-0035-018/019-
2020 (the “Project”). 
 
B. Contractor desires to perform such duties pursuant to the terms and conditions provided for in 
this Contract.  

 
ARTICLE 1 

WORK OF THIS CONTRACT 
 

The work done and materials and equipment furnished shall be strictly pursuant to and in conformity with 
the Plans, Project Specifications and Contract Documents.  The Project Specifications and Contract 
Documents and drawings furnished to the Contractor with his/her bid and the additional drawings or 
prints and other information to be furnished by the Contractor in accordance with the Project 
Specifications and Contract Documents are made a part of the Agreement when and as approved by 
Chaffee County, are intended to be complementary and all Project Specifications and Contract 



 

 

 
Salida Airport – Harriet Alexander Field  

Taxiway A & Apron Rehabilitation  
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-018-2020 
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-019-2020 

 

Contract Agreement Page CA-2  
 

Documents, Plans, drawings, or prints furnished by the Contractor and approved by the Chaffee County, 
shall be complementary therewith.  Any work appearing in or upon the one and not mentioned in the 
others shall be executed according to the true intent and meaning of the said Plans, Project Specifications 
and Contract Documents, drawings, or prints the same as though the said work were contained and 
described in all.  
 
The Notice of Invitation of Bid, Instruction to Bidders, General and Special Provisions, Bid Proposal, Bid 
Bond, Payment Bond, Performance Bond, Certificate of Insurance, Contractor’s Affidavit, Technical 
Provisions, Appendix, Plans, Addenda No.’s ___________, and Change Orders issued and any additional 
or supplemental specifications, notices, instructions and drawings issued in accordance with the 
provisions of the Contract Documents are hereby understood to be a part of this Contract.  The Bid Bond 
is exonerated upon execution of this Agreement, the Payment Bond and the Performance Bond. 
 
Contractor is an independent contractor and is responsible for all taxes (including employment taxes) 

and insurance applicable under existing laws with respect to the fees paid under this Contract.  

Contractor shall not have authority to bind the Sponsor in any contract or agreement.  Contractor will 

not participate in any retirement, bonus, welfare or benefit plans of Sponsor.  Contractor acknowledges 

that it is not entitled to unemployment insurance benefits or workers’ compensation benefits from 

Chaffee County, its elected officials, agents, or any program administered or funded by the County of 

City.  Contractor shall be entitled to unemployment insurance or workers’ compensation insurance only 

if unemployment compensation coverage or workers’ compensation coverage is provided by 

Contractor, or some other entity that is not a party to this Contract. 

 
 

ARTICLE 2 
DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION 

 
Contractor agrees to undertake the performance of the Project on the date stated in the Notice to Proceed 
and agrees to fully complete the Project within forty-three (43) calendar days. 
 

ARTICLE 3 
TERMS OF PAYMENT 

 
The Owner shall pay the Contractor for actual quantities of accepted work completed in accordance with 
the Contract at the unit price or prices set forth in Contractor’s Proposal. 
 
Contractor acknowledges that the fees under this Agreement are funded entirely by a grant.  Sponsor 

reserves the right to discontinue, modify or withhold any payments to be made under this Agreement 

or to require a total or partial refund of any fees due under this Agreement if the Sponsor determines 

that the grant funds are no longer available to the Sponsor, for whatever reason. 
 
Partial payments less 10% retention will be made for estimated quantities of work completed on the 
Project during the previous month in accordance with the terms of General Provisions Section 90-06. 
However, nothing herein shall be construed as relieving Contractor and his, her, or its Sureties on the 



 

 

 
Salida Airport – Harriet Alexander Field  

Taxiway A & Apron Rehabilitation  
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-018-2020 
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-019-2020 

 

Contract Agreement Page CA-3  
 

Contractor's Bond from any claim or claims for work or labor done, or materials or supplies furnished, as 
part of this Agreement and the completion of the Project. 
 
It is the intent of Owner to make any partial payments in the following manner: 
 

1. The Contractor shall submit to Engineer his Application for Payment no later than the next to last 
Friday of the month. 
 

2. Engineer will, within 7 days after receipt, either return the Application for Payment to the 
Contractor with corrections requested or submit the approved Application for Payment to Owner 
for payment along with its Recommendation of Payment, noting any changes. The Sponsor will 
then make payment to Contractor when funds are received from the FAA and are available to 
Owner for payment to Contractor. 

 
ARTICLE 4 

ILLEGAL WORKERS 
Work By Illegal Aliens Prohibited.   

 

1. Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under 

the Agreement; or enter into a contract with a subcontractor who fails to certify to Contractor 

that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform 

work under the Agreement. 

 

2. Contractor has confirmed the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for 

employment to perform work under the Agreement through participation in either the E-Verify 

Program or Department Program.   

 

3. Contractor shall not use either the E-Verify Program or Department Program to undertake pre-

employment screening of job applicants while the Agreement is in effect. 

 

4. If Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under this 

Contract knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, Contractor shall be required to: 

 

a. notify the subcontractor and City and County within three days that Contractor has 

actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien 

(“Notice”); and 

 

b. terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three days of receiving the 

notice required pursuant to this subparagraph the subcontractor does not stop employing 

or contracting with the illegal alien; except that Contractor shall not terminate the 

contract with the subcontractor if during such three days the subcontractor provides 

information to establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or 

contracted with an illegal alien. 

 



 

 

 
Salida Airport – Harriet Alexander Field  

Taxiway A & Apron Rehabilitation  
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-018-2020 
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-019-2020 

 

Contract Agreement Page CA-4  
 

5. Contractor shall comply with any reasonable request by the Colorado Department of Labor and 

Employment (“Department”) made in the course of an investigation that the Department is 

undertaking pursuant to the authority established in subsection 8-17.5-102(5), C.R.S. 

 

6. If Contractor violates this Paragraph, City or County may terminate this Contract for breach of 

contract.  If this Contract is so terminated, Contractor shall be liable for actual and consequential 

damages to City and County arising out of said violation. 

 

Certification Regarding Employing or Contracting with an Illegal Alien.  If Contractor has any 

employees or subcontractors, Contractor shall comply with §8-17.5-101 C.R.S., et seq., regarding 

Illegal Aliens - Public Contracts for Services, and this Agreement.  By execution of this 

Agreement/Addendum, Contractor certifies that it does not knowingly employ or contract with an 

illegal alien who will perform work under the Agreement and that Contractor will participate in either 

the E-Verify Program or Department Program in order to confirm the eligibility of all employees who 

are newly hired for employment to perform work under the Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE 5 

BONDS AND INSURANCE 
 

Bonds. At the time of the execution of the Agreement, Contractor shall provide the bonds that are 
required by the Contract Documents. The Performance Bond will be in an amount not less than one 
hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price and shall provide for the completion of the Project in 
accordance with the Contract Documents, without additional cost to the Owner. The Payment Bond will 
be in an amount not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price and shall provide for the 
payment of all project costs in accordance with the Contract Documents, without additional cost to the 
Owner. 
 
Insurance. Contractor shall obtain, before beginning the Project, and maintain in full force at all times 
relevant to this Agreement, as well as assure that all persons or entities working on the Project obtain and 
maintain in full force at all times, insurance for the protection of claims under workers’ compensation 
laws. Prior to commencing work on the Project, Contractor shall provide Sponsor with a certification of 
the maintenance of workers’ compensation as required by this section. Contractor shall also maintain, in 
full force at all times relevant to this Agreement, public liability/commercial general liability insurance and 
property damage insurance with a limit of at least $1,000,000. This insurance shall also include coverage 
for completed operations, contractual liability, and automotive liability and shall afford coverage for all 
claims for bodily injury, including death, and all claims for the destruction of, or damage to, property 
arising out of or in connection with any work completed on the Project in regard to this Agreement, 
whether such work was done by Contractor  or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor or 
by a subcontractor. Additionally, Contractor shall name Owner and Engineer as additional named insureds 
on these insurance policies, with the exception of the Workers’ Compensation Insurance. Contractor, at 
Owner’s request, shall provide Owner with certificates of these insurance policies. Prior to the completion 
of the Project, the insurance required under this Agreement cannot be cancelled by Contractor. 

 
 
 



 

 

 
Salida Airport – Harriet Alexander Field  

Taxiway A & Apron Rehabilitation  
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-018-2020 
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-019-2020 

 

Contract Agreement Page CA-5  
 

ARTICLE 6 
HOLD HARMLESS 

 
The Contractor shall release Owner and Engineer, and all of their agents, representatives, officers, 
employees, boards, directors, committees, and commissions, of any liability for, and shall protect, defend, 
indemnify, and hold Owner and Engineer harmless from and against all claims, demands, and causes of 
action of every kind and character that are asserted or brought on account of bodily injury, death, or 
damage to property as a result of the actions, omissions, negligence, gross negligence, and/or recklessness 
of Contractor or Contractor’s agents, employees, representatives, invitees, licensees, subcontractors, or 
subcontractor’s subcontractors. Contractor’s indemnification obligations under this section shall be 
without regard to, and without any right to contribution from, any insurance maintained by Contractor. 
Additionally, Contractor’s indemnity obligations under this section shall be supported by insurance, but 
this insurance requirement shall be a separate and distinct obligation from Contractor’s indemnity 
obligations, and the insurance and indemnity obligations shall be separately and independently 
enforceable. Further, Contractor’s indemnity obligations hereunder are not limited by any insurance 
coverage Contractor may have. 

 

 
 

ARTICLE 7 
INSPECTIONS 

 
Inspection of work shall be by the Engineer or the Owner.  During such inspections, any work determined 
by the Engineer/Owner to be unacceptable shall be corrected at the contractor’s expense.  The Engineer 
or Owner shall be the final determinant of unacceptable work.  
 

ARTICLE 8 
LITIGATION 

 
To prevent all disputes and litigation, it is agreed by and between Chaffee County, Colorado, the City of 
Salida, Colorado and said Contractor, that Chaffee County and the City of Salida shall determine all 
questions in relation to the work and the construction thereof, and it shall in all cases decide all questions 
which may arise relative to the execution of the work under this Contract on the part of the said Contractor 
and its estimates and decisions shall be final and conclusive; and such estimates and decisions, in case any 
questions may arise, shall be a condition precedent to the right of said Contractor to receive any money 
or compensation for anything done or furnished under this Contract. 
 
The parties hereto expressly covenant and agree that in the event of a dispute arising from this 
Agreement, each of the parties hereto waives any right to a trial by jury.  The interpretation and 
performance of this Contract shall be construed under the laws of Colorado, without regard to choice of 
law principles.  In the event of litigation, jurisdiction and venue shall be in the Chaffee County District 
Court.  The Contractor further agrees that this provision shall be contained in all subcontracts related to 
the project which is the subject of this Agreement. 
 
The parties hereto expressly covenant and agree that in the event of litigation arising from this Agreement, 
neither party shall be entitled to an award of attorney fees, either pursuant to the Contract, pursuant to 



 

 

 
Salida Airport – Harriet Alexander Field  

Taxiway A & Apron Rehabilitation  
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-018-2020 
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-019-2020 

 

Contract Agreement Page CA-6  
 

relevant state law, or pursuant to any other state or federal statute.  The Contractor further agrees that 
this provision shall be contained in all subcontracts related to the project that is the subject of this 
Agreement 
 
The parties hereto expressly covenant and agree that in the event of a dispute arising from this 
Agreement, each of the parties hereto waives any right to a trial by jury.  In the event of litigation, the 
parties hereby agree to submit to a trial before the Court.  The parties hereto further expressly covenant 
and agree that in the event of litigation arising from this agreement, neither party shall be entitled to an 
award of attorneys’ fees, either pursuant to the Contract or pursuant to any other state or federal statute. 
 

ARTICLE 9  
FINAL PAYMENT 

 
Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Price, shall be made by the Owner 
to the Contractor when the Work has been completed and accepted by the Engineer and the Owner.  

 
ARTICLE 10 

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 
 
All time limits stated in the Contract Documents and the Construction Plans are of the essence and should 
the Contractor fail to complete the work required to be done on or before the time of completion as set 
forth in these Contract Documents and Construction Plans, including any authorized extension of time, it 
is mutually agreed and understood by and between the parties that the Sponsor will incur additional 
expenses specifically for unanticipated efforts and costs of the Engineer, the Construction Manager, the 
Resident Engineer/Inspector; plus any related incurred expenses (per diem, lodging, etc.); and that the 
parties hereto wish to fix the amount of said specific costs/damages in advance.   
 
The Contractor will be assessed the following Liquidated Damages if he exceeds any of the time limits 
stated within these Contract Documents or the Construction Plans.  Liquidated Damages are identified 
below: 
 

1. Substantial Completion – $500 per day for each and every day’s delay in Substantial Completion 
and Acceptance of the work required to be done by the Contractor within the total specified 
Contract time, (43 Calendar Days). 
 

2. Final Completion – $500 per day for each and every day’s delay in Final Completion and 
Acceptance of the work required to be done by the Contractor within the total specified Contract 
time, (5 Calendar Days). 
 

The above Liquidated Damages represent a reasonable estimate of the above-noted specific additional 
costs to the City for such breach, therefore, the City and Contractor agree to the above liquidated damages 
for the breach of the agreement to complete any work required to be done by the Contractor on or before 
the time of completion and acceptance, and, in the case of such breach, the City shall deduct said amount 
from the amount due the Contractor under the Contract.  In the event the remaining balance due the 
Contractor is insufficient to cover the full amount of assessed liquidated damages, then the Contractor or 



 

 

 
Salida Airport – Harriet Alexander Field  

Taxiway A & Apron Rehabilitation  
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-018-2020 
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-019-2020 

 

Contract Agreement Page CA-7  
 

the surety on the bonds shall pay the difference due the City.    Assessment of Liquidated Damages will be 
in conformance to General Provisions Section 80-08 Failure to Complete on Time. 

ARTICLE 11 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. Prohibition Against Discrimination.   

 

a. Contractor shall not discriminate because of race, color, religion, sex, age, national 

origin, marital status, disability or status as a Vietnam veteran, as defined and prohibited 

by applicable law, in the recruitment, selection, training, utilization, promotion, 

termination or other employment-related activities concerning Contractor's employees. 

In addition, Contractor affirms that it is an equal opportunity and affirmative action 

employer, and that it shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and 

regulations including, but not limited to, the letter and spirit of the Colorado Anti-

Discrimination Act, executive order 11246 as amended by 11375 and 12086; 12138; 

11625; 11758; 12073; the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; the Vietnam Era 

Veterans Readjustment Assistance Act of 1975; Civil Rights Act of 1964; Equal Pay 

Act of 1963; Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1976; Immigration Reform and 

Control Act of 1986; Public Law 95-507; the Americans With Disabilities Act, the 

Colorado Anti-Discrimination Act; and any additions or amendments thereto. The Equal 

Opportunity Clauses set forth in 41 CFR § 60-1.4 and 41 CFR § 60-741.5 are hereby 

incorporated by reference into this Contract. 

 

b. No contractor, subcontractor or any person on behalf of such contractor or 

subcontractor, shall, in any manner, discriminate against or intimidate any employee 

hired for the performance of work under this contract on account of race, color, religion, 

sex, sexual preference, or national origin. For each person who is discriminated against 

or intimidated in violation of the provisions of this Contract, there may be deducted from 

the amount payable to Contractor by City and County under this contract a penalty of 

$100.00 for each calendar day during which discrimination or intimidation occurred.  

This Contract may be canceled or terminated by City and County, and all monies due or 

to become due under this Contract may be forfeited, for a second or any subsequent 

violation of the terms or conditions of this section of this contract.  The deduction of any 

moneys or termination of Contract under this section shall not operate as a bar to any 

person pursuing individual legal remedies for discrimination. 

 

c. In all solicitations by Contractor for any work related to this Contract to be performed 

under a subcontract, either by competitive bidding or negotiation, Contractor shall notify 

each potential subcontractor of Contractor's obligations under this Contract, and of all 

pertinent regulations relative to nondiscrimination and unfair employment practices.   

 

2. Compliance with Laws.  Contractor and every subcontractor or person doing or contracting to 

do any work contemplated by this contract shall keep himself or herself fully informed of all 

national and state laws and all municipal ordinances and regulations in any manner affecting 

the work or performance of his or her contract or any extra work, and shall at all times observe 

and comply with such laws, ordinances and regulations, whether or not the laws, ordinances or 

regulations are mentioned in this contract, and shall indemnify City and County, their officers, 



 

 

 
Salida Airport – Harriet Alexander Field  

Taxiway A & Apron Rehabilitation  
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-018-2020 
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-019-2020 

 

Contract Agreement Page CA-8  
 

agents and employees, against any claim or liability arising from or based on the violation of 

any such laws, ordinances or regulations. 

 

3. Certificates and Permits.  Contractor shall secure at Contractor's own expense all necessary 

certificates, licenses and permits, including a City Contractor License, from municipal or other 

public authorities required in connection with the work contemplated by this Contract or any 

part of this Contract, and shall give all notices required by law, ordinance or regulation.  

Contractor shall pay all fees and charges incident to the due and lawful prosecution of the work 

contemplated by this Contract, and any extra work performed by Contractor. Prior to any final 

payments for the Project, City or County may require Contractor to sign a lien release in the 

form attached to this Contract as Exhibit B, and may require Contractor to obtain such lien 

releases from its vendors and subcontractors. 

 

4. Prohibition on Acceptance of Gifts. Pursuant to Section 3 of Art. XXIX of the Constitution of 

the State of Colorado, County Employees or contractors cannot accept any gifts, meals, theatre 

or sporting event tickets unless: 

 

a. the aggregate value of things received from a single source does not exceed $53/calendar 

year; or  

b. the County employee/elected official gave the donor consideration of equal or greater 

value; or 

c. an enumerated exception applies. 

 
7. Examination of Records.  Any duly authorized representative of  the Sponsor, including the 

County or City Auditor, shall have access to and the right to examine and audit any books, 

documents, papers and records of Contractor, involving all matters and/or transactions related 

to this Contract or the Project.  Contractor shall to maintain these documents for seven years 

from the date of the last payment received.  

 

8. Constitutional Requirements.  The other provisions of this Contract notwithstanding, financial 

obligations of City and County payable after the current fiscal year are contingent upon funds 

for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted and otherwise made available.  City and County 

are prohibited by law from making financial commitments beyond the term of its current fiscal 

year.  City and County have contracted for goods and/or services under this Contract and have 

reason to believe that sufficient funds will be available for the full term of the Contract.  Where, 

however, for reasons beyond the control of City and County as the funding entity, funds are not 

allocated for any fiscal period beyond the one in which this Contract is entered into, City and 

County shall have the right to terminate this Contract by providing seven days written notice to 

Contractor, and will be released from any and all obligations hereunder.  If County terminates 

the Contract for this reason, City, County and Contractor shall be released from all obligations 

to perform the Project and make payments, except that City and County shall be required to 

make payment for work which has been performed by Contractor prior to the effective date of 

termination under this provision; and, conversely, Contractor shall be required to complete any 

work for which City and/or County has made payment prior to providing written notice to 

Contractor of the termination. 

 



 

 

 
Salida Airport – Harriet Alexander Field  

Taxiway A & Apron Rehabilitation  
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-018-2020 
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-019-2020 

 

Contract Agreement Page CA-9  
 

9. Successors and Assigns; Assignment; Subcontractors. The rights and obligations of the Sponsor 

under this Contract will inure to the benefit of and will be binding upon the successors and 

assigns of Chaffee County or the City of Salida.  Contractor may not subcontract, pledge, assign 

or transfer either this Contract or any of the payments or benefits under this Contract without 

the written consent of the Sponsor. 

 

10. Amendment.  This Contract shall not be amended, except by subsequent written Contract of the 

parties. 

 

11. Binding Effect.  This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and 

their respective heirs, successors, and assigns. 

 

12. Survival.  All express representations, indemnifications or limitations of liability included in 

this Contract will survive its completion or termination for any reason. 

 

13. Waiver.  Any waiver of a breach of this Contract shall not be held to be a waiver of any other 

or subsequent breach of this Contract.  All remedies afforded in this Contract shall be taken and 

construed as cumulative, that is, in addition to every other remedy provided herein or by law. 

 

14. Third Party Beneficiary.  The enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Contract and all 

rights of action relating to such enforcement shall be strictly reserved to City, County and 

Contractor, and nothing contained in this Contract shall give or allow any claim or right of 

action whatsoever by any other or third person.  It is the express intent of the parties to this 

Contract that any person receiving services or benefits under this Contract shall be deemed an 

incidental beneficiary only. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, five (5) identical counterparts of this Contract, each of which shall for all purposes 
be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties hereinabove named, on the date 
and year first herein written. 
 
  



 

 

 
Salida Airport – Harriet Alexander Field  

Taxiway A & Apron Rehabilitation  
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-018-2020 
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-019-2020 

 

Contract Agreement Page CA-10  
 

FOR THE Contractor    FOR THE Sponsor 
 
_________________________________    
        
By: ______________________________  By: _________________________ 
       Name             Name 
 
       ______________________________   ____________________________ 
       Title             Title 
 
        Date: ______________ 
 
  CHAFFEE COUNTY, COLORADO 
  PARTY OF THE FIRST PART (SPONSOR) 
 
 
    
Clerk 
    
   
 
APPROVED: (AS TO FORM) 
 
   
COUNTY ATTORNEY 
 
 
  For the Sponsor 
   
  By:  
  Name  
  
   
  Title:  
 
APPROVED: (AS TO FORM) 
 
   
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
    
  PARTY OF THE SECOND PART (CONTRACTOR) 



 

 

 
Salida Airport – Harriet Alexander Field  

Taxiway A & Apron Rehabilitation  
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-018-2020 
FAA AIP No. 3-08-0049-019-2020 

 

Contract Agreement Page CA-11  
 

 
WITNESSES: 
 
  Name:   
 
 ______________________  Title:  ______________________________________ 



From: Adam Martinez
To: Drew Nelson
Subject: letter
Date: Sunday, June 21, 2020 8:03:32 PM

drew read this at the next city council meeting and to mayor p.t. wood at the salida city council
and i would like to thank you guys along with mr. nelson i am working forward to working
with the recreation department along with mike diesel post along with the committee to make
salida a better place and work with my peers on the committee to provide suggestions, idea,
input, and give a bule print how we can make our parks and recreations better so we can have
have better park benches, basketball and tennis courts, our pool, steam plant, the river side
band stage, our skate board parks, and play ground equipment. and to make things better for
our youth and young folks and to have our recreations first class and i am willing to take the
challenge serve the salida community to make this town better so we can have it grow i am
willing to step up to the plate and work with the committee on theses issues. to have the trust
in mr. nelson, mayor pt wood, and the city council. and on another note i would like to says
congratualtions to erin kelley she has stepped up to the challenge and she did a remarkable job
in sonia walters place and she is the center piece of this administration and she has showed
leadershop and has made a difference she is a people person and she is good at her job and she
is a bright, smart, and talented person and she is a good asset to any employer who will have
her and finally a shout out to my buddy and my friends  dan shore who is also a mentor to me
my symapthys to you on your mom and my heart goes out to you your brother mike, your
sister nancy, jill, and your dad and you guys share a specail place in my heart your mom is
very proud of you and she loves you alot may she rest in peace and she raised a good family
man in you and a good mayor pro tem and losing a parent is always hard me have you have
the mind set and the strenght to move on and may she live on in your memory and may you
have good memories of her and time heals everything your have yourv friends, your family,
your peers on city council.  your welll loved by the city of salida and your a great person with
alot to give to people and your a kind person and who has shown good leadership in this city
who stands up for the common good i am proud of you for alot of things and a good dad to
your son and you are strong and reliesent  and this will pass in time and she was a wonderful
women may she love on i love you like a brother and i am there for you always and forever e-
mail me back adam

mailto:adambmartinez991@gmail.com
mailto:drew.nelson@cityofsalida.com


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

East Crestone Avenue
Ken Fouty <ckfouty@gmail.com> Mon, Jun 22, 2020 at 2:57 PM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>, dan.shore@salidaelected.com
Cc: NO Ecrestone <nocht.ecrestone@yahoo.com>

To the Board:

First let me express my dismay that the city would rather give away a piece of property versus letting an
adjacent homeowner purchase it. I will remain mystified by why it was so hard for a private citizen to buy this lot.
 In addition I have never experienced having an elected official refuse to come hear citizen comments. (And I’m
from a small town and attended meetings in that town when controversial items were discussed.)

I am saddened I am not able to attend as I would like to know my voice is heard.

Here are our concerns:

1. I am in favor of affordable housing that makes sense. I wholeheartedly support families having the
security of their own space when it’s. This project does not really have affordable land. The City of Salida
(local taxpayers) is spending lots of money on a very small plot of land so that it’s buildable. (what is final
cost/square foot versus a typical city lot?). 

2. These lots are NOT family friendly. (From 3rd Street to 291 , the only sidewalks are at 3rd and L.) So I
cannot support based on safety alone.

3. I would support affordable housing on land donated by the city on the property that surrounds the golf
course or other suitable sites around the city that don’t call for major excavation and development at
taxpayer expense to have them be buildable. We were given the impression earlier this year that multiple
lots had been considered and 2 of those lots border the golf course. These would be easier to develop
and safer. In addition, maybe those lots would allow yards since these lots won’t have yards and minimal
parking.

4. Since my backyard faces this property, I can state that East Crestone is a very busy two way street.  The
first week of June, on a weekday afternoon in a two hour span, 8 law enforcement vehicles used East
Crestone and one EMS vehicle. This traffic is fairly typical. 

5. East Crestone is used often and by many. In the current times, a proper usage rate cannot be
determined. The locals, in my unofficial study, that I have asked use 3rd to East Crestone to Grant as the
preferred route on their way to Highway 50.  Losing East Crestone will increase traffic in and around the
courthouse.

6. What improvements will be  made to Crestone and Poncha Boulevard for the increased usage? Same
question for L and Crestone? All costs to improve these intersections to account for increased traffic
must be captured as part of the East Crestone costs so the taxpayers are aware of the full cost. Do any
of the current courthouse traffic concerns take into account the East Crestone change and if not shouldn’t
it? Again, more cost for the taxpayers.

In summary, this appears to be the worst use for this land. Why can’t that neighborhood utilize this as park
land? 

Sincerely,
Catherine Kramer-Fouty



6/22/2020 City of Salida Mail - 6/22/20 P&Z meeting

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=9e3c6b8dd5&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1670222798758829253&simpl=msg-f%3A16702227987… 1/2

Public Comment <publiccomment@cityofsalida.com>

6/22/20 P&Z meeting
1 message

melanie cymansky <mcymansky@outlook.com> Mon, Jun 22, 2020 at 11:56 AM
To: "publiccomment@cityofsalida.com" <publiccomment@cityofsalida.com>

Planning Commission Mee�ng - 6/22/2020
 
Good Evening Planning Commission Members:
 
First, your review of CHT’s request should be postponed un�l a full and open mee�ng can be done with all in-person
public comments.  To con�nue with this discussion now would appear to the public that this process is being
deliberately non-transparent.  This request and all future requests on this should be tabled un�l all voices can be
heard in public mee�ng (not virtual) for this controversial loca�on. 
 
Second, I am pro-affordable housing:  Two Rivers and the to-be-built affordable rental units at Confluence Park are
good examples.  This property is just not the right place to do CHT’s project: it’s too small, it’s in an unsafe area for
children, it will cause Crestone Ave. to have addi�onal traffic at Park, and there have to be too many modifica�ons
(street closures and removing part of a hillside).  There are at least 3 other parcels of City owned property that are
more suitable (“Possible City Owned Affordable Housing Sites” report):  Crestone Ave (2.75 acres), Grant/Ouray (3.25
acres) and Poncha Blvd/Ouray (4.25 acres).  All would have ample off-street parking, wouldn’t require road closures,
more land to build on allowing for more affordable housing, and also could have apartment buildings.  According to
the 2016 Chaffee Housing Needs Assessment, rentals are what Salida actually needs. 
 
Here are ques�ons on the rezoning applica�on for M&3rd being discussed at tonight’s mee�ng:
 
1.            Included in the packet is a le�er from Chaffee Housing Trust/Read McCulloch - what is the date of that
le�er? 
 
2.            That le�er from CHT is reques�ng “the rezoning of the City owned lot at the intersec�on of M Street and 3rd
Street.” 

Please quote the municipal code that allows a private corpora�on to request the City rezone City owned
property for land the private corpora�on does not currently own. 

Please quote the municipal code that requires the City to place an applica�on to itself to have property
rezoned.
 
3.            According to SMC 16-6-130 (2):  Quitclaim Deed. Whenever the City approves an application vacating a
public right-of-way, the City shall provide abutting landowners with a quitclaim deed for the vacated lands. Each
abutting landowner shall be deeded that portion of the vacated right-of-way to which the owner's land is nearest in
proximity. 
As there are landowners abutting this land on at least 2 sides (if both E. Crestone and M Street are vacated), who
will the City issue the quit claim deed to as it doesn’t appear CHT currently owns any adjoining property?  (CRS 43-2-
302 43-2-302-“ Ves�ng of �tle upon vaca�on” is the Statute Mr. Nelson quoted about the city giving land away
without a vote, but this CRS is about vaca�ng public roadways and doesn’t authorize the City giving land away.)
 
4.            Please quote the municipal code (or State Statute) that says the City can give land away to a private
corporation.
 
5.            This land is real municipal property used and held for a public purpose:  these are two municipal streets
owned/maintained by the City and there is a water/sewer line under this road/land, which is certainly public use. 



6/22/2020 City of Salida Mail - 6/22/20 P&Z meeting

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=9e3c6b8dd5&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1670222798758829253&simpl=msg-f%3A16702227987… 2/2

Why rezone this if the City has to put this up for vote to give away this property to Chaffee Housing Trust?  (CRS 31-
15-713)?  Is this pu�ng the “cart before the horse” as CHT hasn’t go�en approval for this project yet?  Even Buena
Vista’s Town A�orney realized BV couldn’t just give land away to Urban Inc. without a public vote (MM 11/16/17).

Thank you.
 
Melanie Cymansky, Salida

"Nearly all men can stand adversity, but if you want to test a man's character, 

give him power."   Abraham Lincoln

"The most terrifying words in the English language are: I'm from the government and I'm here

to help."   Ronald Reagan



Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

NO To East Crestone Vacation and CHT
John Strom <stromco@att.net> Mon, Jun 22, 2020 at 9:15 AM
To: "bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com" <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

Dear Bill,

Just say NO to the East Crestone proposal. 

This is an important matter. The decision affects all of us. It
needs to be voted on by all of the citizens of Salida. This
decision should be made by referendum not by just a few.  

This is red-lining at its worst by and for special interests.

Thank you for your consideration. 

Best regards, 

Dellann Strom
146 Mesa Circle



Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

Fwd: July 7th City Council E. Crestone 1st reading
Erin Kelley <erin.kelley@cityofsalida.com> Sun, Jul 5, 2020 at 9:29 PM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>, Glen Van Nimwegen <Glen.VanNimwegen@cityofsalida.com>,
Kristi Jefferson <kristi.jefferson@cityofsalida.com>

FYI

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Erin Kelley <erin.kelley@cityofsalida.com>
Date: Sun, Jul 5, 2020 at 9:29 PM
Subject: Re: July 7th City Council E. Crestone 1st reading
To: Gregory Smith <gsmith@cruzio.com>

Hi Gregory,
Thanks for your email. I’ll make sure it’s part of public comment record for Tuesday’s meeting. 

Erin

On Sun, Jul 5, 2020 at 3:37 PM Gregory Smith <gsmith@cruzio.com> wrote:

Erin,

 

Is it possible to comment on the E. Crestone issue here?

 

    Having followed the ongoing comments concerning the changes to the end section of East Crestone
Avenue I would like to add my own concerns.  These concerns are not with the city supporting low cost
housing, but it is with the transfer of developed and actively used city property (a city street) to private
ownership.  There may be certain instances where this might be beneficial to the city, but I don’t see it in this
specific instance.  To give away city property that is actively used and has public utilities (sewer) in the street
(that are now proposed to being moved) to private ownership is just counter to good planning.  Using the
criteria for East Crestone Avenue, there is no reason that any city park or other actively used public property
or street cannot be transferred to private ownership under the cover of providing low cost housing.   For
example, one could see similar arguments to give away part of Marvin Park, Centennial Park, or Alpine Park
and transfer it to private ownership. This will establish the wrong precedent.

    On the other hand, the single parcel that the city owns next to East Crestone Avenue that is being rezoned
is an example of the type of “undeveloped” city owned property that could be transferred to private ownership
for the purposes of providing low cost housing without giving away public and actively used property.  Chaffee
Housing Trust who is the private developer, has convinced the City that they need more property to build
more units and should hand over East Crestone Avenue, a public street, for their purposes and has convinced
City planning staff to actively promote and rationalize this transfer.  As admitted by City Staff and Chaffee
Housing Trust they did not even look at this possibility, but went directly to trying to leverage the City into
providing more land for their idea of a development.

 

Gregory Smith

20 Trailside Circle

mailto:erin.kelley@cityofsalida.com
mailto:gsmith@cruzio.com
mailto:gsmith@cruzio.com
https://www.google.com/maps/search/20+Trailside+Circle+Salida,+Colorado+81201?entry=gmail&source=g


Salida, Colorado 81201

 

(831) 247-2219

gsmith@cruzio.com

 

-- 
Sent from Gmail Mobile
-- 
Sent from Gmail Mobile

https://www.google.com/maps/search/20+Trailside+Circle+Salida,+Colorado+81201?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:gsmith@cruzio.com


 
July 6, 2020 
 
Salida City Council: 
 
RE: Vacating and development of  Crestone Avenue at 3rd street 
 
 
The Permanent vacating and blocking of City streets for an additional one or two living units is not a 
short term or long term solution for housing. The vacating is permanent, the low income housing is not. 
Such a precedent will create an effort by every developer, every downtown entity needing parking, any 
new quality business wanting to bring quality jobs here, every housing project,  etc., to look to this 
option in the future to solve developmental problems throughout the City and/or to maintain a strong 
downtown community.  
  
To the Crestone location specifically, the only problem to be solved will be a speeding issue coming 
into town from County Road 160 that was somewhat corrected with the speed signs. 
 
Problems created will be (1) traffic diverted to the front of the courthouse and through the infamous 
third street hill intersection, (2) increased use on Mesa Lane which is strongly used for the Hospital, 
ambulances, and north bound drivers trying to make left turns onto Hwy 291, (3) the L street hill, 
which  is very steep, would have to be used more on icy days when 4 wheel drives will be needed, (4)   
R-1 and R-2 neighborhoods would be permanently changed with precedent setting approvals(is density 
too dense here), (5) R-1 zoning would become moot with all long term R-1 home owners knowing they 
can add an ADU, subdivide property in the name of housing, and move elsewhere, (6)  with the 
vacating, snow plowing at a turnaround or at one 90 degree turn adds several pass throughs, along with   
ongoing drainage diversions being continual problems on the sandy hill, and (7) five or six units does 
NOT fit into the Zoning and neighborhood--two or three units would fit into R-1 or R-2 and  
community/neighborhood aesthetics would be saved and adhered to rather than cluttered from the 
development building structuring.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rusty Granzella 
248 West Park Ave 
Salida, CO  81201 
 



Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

East Crestone
Sandy Baur <sandybaur107@gmail.com> Tue, Jun 23, 2020 at 7:53 AM
To: bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com

I am writing because I am deeply concerned about the possible closure of E. Crestone. Why the city would
consider closing one of the FEW access points to the mesa is beyond me. More and more homes are being
built on the mesa which increases traffic on Crestone. Closing Crestone will force an increase in traffic in front of
the courthouse and through one of the most dangerous intersections in Chaffee County. Pushing people to
access the mesa from 7th is not a strong option as it increases traffic past Longfellow. During the school year, is
that a good idea?
Please keep Crestone open!

Sent from my iPhone



Public Comment <publiccomment@cityofsalida.com>

Vacating of East Crestone
Teresa Thompson <hotmetalmama@gmail.com> Sun, Jul 5, 2020 at 3:45 PM
To: publiccomment@cityofsalida.com, Teresa Thompson <hotmetalmama@gmail.com>

Dear City Council Members-

I am submitting my comments in opposition to the vacating of East Crestone to facilitate the building of 6
housing units, with only one parking space allotted per unit.

My first concern is that with the approved rezoning of City property on the hillside above East Crestone, there is
room for two units to be built without vacating a much used thoroughfare and moving a major sewer line.  Why
was the building of two units not explored by either the developer or staff? Why was the building of two units
skipped right over in favor of vacating a public road and moving major buried infrastructure?  Was Habitat for
Humanity or any other not for profit home building group offered the land with the option of building two units? If
not, why? Why not let two units be built with a plan laid out for development of other in fill vacant land the City
owns? If the developer can not make two units financially viable with donated City land then I am suspect of his
abilities period. I understand wanting to use vacant city land as infill for building affordable housing so why not
build what you have room for without giving away city streets, moving buried infrastructure and permanently
disrupting an established traffic pattern?

 I find it hard to believe that this project as proposed was the easiest of all the choices of City land to donate. I
would like to see staff present a pro and con list of all vacant City land that was under consideration for infill
affordable housing to City Council members as well as the general public before Council agrees to vacate a
public road and move a relatively new sewer line. Is there a master plan to develop infill affordable housing on
identified donated City property? IF not, why not? Such a study would lay out all the options for infill affordable
housing and make choices for vacating public roads more transparent and relevant based on an overall picture
of developable property. I think it is critical to this discussion to evaluate all the options on the table before
agreeing to vacate a road as important as East Crestone. Agreeing to vacate a road is a dangerous precedent
to set. If you agree to vacate for this project, what is to stop the next developer from suing the City if they are
denied a road vacation down the road? 

Also, the traffic study done to justify vacating East Crestone was done by "observation" by the police department
during the beginning of the Covid shutdown. I would like to request that a new traffic study be done, one using
CDOT traffic counting equipment and done during a period of time where the general public is not being
encouraged to stay home. Only then can you get a true traffic count. Vacating a road, particularly  one used as a
major route to get on and off the mesa is too important to use a spit balled traffic study. 

Infill affordable housing should fit cohesively into an existing neighborhood.  Giving away and shutting down
public roads, approving housing that only provides one parking space per unit and disrupting established traffic
into and out of the neighborhood is not making the new infill fit into the existing neighborhood. It is the exact
opposite of that. If you have room for two units on the existing property, then move forward with two units. I and
my neighbors would support and welcome that kind of development.

Lastly, I am not opposed to affordable housing. It is disappointing to me to be placed in a position of sounding
like I am. But by it's very nature, infill building be it for affordable housing or any other kind of development
should accommodate itself to the existing neighborhood. Not the other way around.

Sincerely,

Teresa Thompson
804 W. Third Street
Salida CO



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  

Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.b.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration 

PRESENTED BY: 

Drew Nelson    

ITEM:  
City of Salida Communications Plan 

BACKGROUND: 
In February, the City Council received an update on the draft Communications Plan that was in 
production from Slate Communications, the consultant that was selected to work on this plan.  At 
that time, the City Council provided feedback on the Plan for staff and Slate to continue to work on 
and amend the Plan ahead of final approval.  The feedback from that discussion, along with timing 
shifts due to Covid-19, have now been incorporated into a final document for the City Council’s 
consideration. During the past 4 months, staff has also been implementing many of the 
recommendations that were in the first draft, including the startup of a monthly newsletter, more 
regular communications with media outlets, and working on new information platforms (website). 

FISCAL NOTE: 
Many of the items recommended in the Communications Plan carry little to no financial cost, but do 
increase workload for staff.  There are costs associated with completion of the City’s new website 
and OpenGov platform; however, these costs were identified as part of the 2020 Annual budget and 
contracts for each have already been approved by the City Council.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Communications Plan. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
A City Councilperson should make a motion approve the Communications Plan, followed by a 
second and a roll call vote. 



COMMUNICATIONS

CITY OF SALIDA

PLAN



SECTION 1 COMMUNICATIONS PLAN
1.  DISCOVERY REPORT

Key Takeaways ................................................................................... 1-2

Stakeholder Feedback ................................................................... 3-4

Communication Outlets ................................................................. 5-6

Audit of Existing Materials ............................................................ 7-8

SWOT Analysis  ........................................................................................ 9

2. COMMUNITY PROFILE
Demographics ....................................................................................... 10

Resident Characteristics  .........................................................11-14

3. COMMUNICATION PRIORITIES ...................................................... 15

4. FOUNDATIONAL MESSAGING .......................................................... 16

5. STRATEGIES AND TACTICS .......................................................17-18

6. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN
Communications Matrix  ................................................................. 19

Quarterly Calendar  .....................................................................20-21

7. METRICS FOR SUCCESS ..................................................................... 22

SECTION 2 COMMUNICATION AND BRAND GUIDE
1.  VISION BOARD ......................................................................................... 24

2. VISUAL BRAND .................................................................................25-28

3. SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY ................................................................29-35

4. WRITING STYLEGUIDE .................................................................36-38

5. TEMPLATE EXAMPLES .................................................................39-41

6. MEDIA CONTACT LIST ......................................................................... 42

TABLE OF CONTENTS



COMMUNICATIONS
PLAN

SECTION ONE



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 1

5

6 Residents want more timely, consistent, and proactive  
communication from the City

7 There’s an opportunity to improve and expand the City’s 
online presence through a website redesign and  
consolidation of social media accounts

1 Residents still use traditional news outlets to  
receive information

2 Word-of-mouth communication and personal 
relationships are important

3 The City of Salida has strong, active partners and 
a network of individuals willing to help share City 
news and information

4

1. DISCOVERY REPORT 

KEY TAKEAWAYS  |  EXTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS 

Some residents still mistrust the City organization, but 
overall sentiment of City operations and competency of 
the staff seems to be shifting in a positive direction

Residents care most when they understand how a topic 
or issue relates to their lives



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 2

1 Communication is a new focus for the City organization, 
so no solid procedures and policies are in place

2
There’s an opportunity to educate employees about  
City operations and projects so they can share  
accurate information about the organization

3
The City has an opportunity to equip City Council 
with key messages and talking points to help be the 
eyes, ears and voice of the organization and expand 
the City’s traditional communication reach

KEY TAKEAWAYS

 INTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS 



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 3

STAFF AND STAKEHOLDER INTERVIEWS
Slate Communications conducted a series of interviews with Salida city staff, City 

Council and other community stakeholders. During these in-person and telephone 

meetings, discussions focused on how the City currently communicates with residents 

and the challenges and opportunities that are present. From these interviews, primary  

themes emerged.

ABOUT THE COMMUNITY
 • There isn’t just one place the 

community goes to get information 
– there are a lot of grassroots 
organizations with a lot of influence

 • There’s a demographic split between 
long-time, older residents and newer, 
young families. These groups have 
different ideas and preferences:

 • Long-time residents tend to prefer 
the old way of doing things, are 
reluctant to change and very vocal

 • Newer residents are open to new ideas, 
but are often too busy to engage

 • Word-of-mouth and face-to-
face communication works 
well and spreads quickly

 • Residents are most interested in 
issues that directly affect them and 
want the details and background 
information of projects and initiatives

CURRENT COMMUNICATIONS
 • Recent shift within organization to have 

larger focus on communications

 • The City manages 15 social 
media accounts for various 
divisions and departments

 • There are no internal communication 
processes in place for staff and no 
cohesive or consistent City message

 • Staff utilizes the OpenGov platform

 • One-on-one conversations with 
community organizations work well

 • Regular email blasts from the City 
that share announcements and City 
Council meeting information



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 4

IDEAS FOR THE FUTURE
 • Provide more opportunities for community 

feedback and engagement

 • Use a mix of current and “old school” 
traditional communication tools 
including social media, e-newsletters, 
printed and mailed materials, and 
in-person meeting opportunities

 • Utilize local print, digital and radio 
communication channels more regularly

 • The community’s history is rich and 
unique and there are opportunities 
to incorporate storytelling into the 
City’s message and utilize community 
“cheerleaders” to help share information

 • City website redesign

 • Ensure communication is 
timely and consistent

HOT COMMUNICATION TOPICS
 • Water rate increase

 • Accessory Dwelling Units 
and short-term rentals

 • Affordable housing

 • Vaping ordinance

 • Vandaveer Ranch development

 • Ongoing communication and status 
updates about City plans and studies: 

 • Ex. Parking Study, Land Use Code, 
Future 50 Plan, Parks and Recreation 
Plan, Wastewater and Raw Water Study

 • The City needs to continue to build 
trust among community members

 • Difficulty reaching underserved 
population in the City

 • Community Development/HPC/City 
Council - e.g., Manhattan Hotel appeal

STAFF AND STAKEHOLDER INTERVIEWS

Due to COVID-19 some information and priorities may have changed. 



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 5

COMMUNICATION OUTLETS

CURRENT AND FUTURE OPPORTUNITIES

CITY TOOLS
 • Ambassador program 

 • City Councilmember speaking points

 • City manager updates

 • Community newsletter

 • Door hangers

 • Email blasts (190 City subscribers and 
3,000 SteamPlant subscribers)

 • Everbridge emergency alerts

 • Social media accounts

 • Meet-ups with the Mayor

 • Neighborhood meet-and-greets

 • MBWA  

 • Town Halls and Surveys on OpenGov

 • Posters or other signage in 
and around City facilities

 • Press releases/media relations

 • Websites 
(https://cityofsalida.com, 
http://salidarec.com,  
http://salidasteamplant.com/)

PAID AND PHYSICAL  
COMMUNICATION TOOLS

 • Digital and print newspaper ads

 • Poster distribution at businesses 
downtown and on Hwy 50

 • Postcards, flyers, rack cards 
and other collateral

 • Radio spots

 • TV – local government tv station

 • Video/photography



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 6

COMMUNICATION OUTLETS

COMMUNITY EVENTS
 • BikeFest 

 • Chaffee County Fair and Rodeo

 • Farmer’s Market

 • FibArk

 • Film Festival

 • JazzFest

 • Independence Day Celebration

 • Salida ArtWalk

 • Salida Fiber Festival

 • Studio Tour

 • Summer concerts in the park

 • Chamber of Commerce events

 • Stay Another Day Summer and  

Winter events at Salida SteamPlant

PARTNER COMMUNICATION
 • Boys and Girls Club of Chaffee County

 • Chaffee County

 • Chaffee County Community Foundation

 • Chaffee County Visitors Bureau

 • Colorado Mountain College

 • Fine art and performing arts organizations: 

Calliope, Inc., Salida Aspen Concerts, 

Salida Circus Outreach Foundation, 

Salida Council for the Arts, etc.

 • Heart of the Rockies Medical Center

 • Heart of the Rockies Wedding Association

 • League of Women Voters

 • Monarch Mountain

 • Outdoor recreation organizations: Greater 

Arkansas River Nature Association (GARNA), 

Salida Mountain Trails, Salida-area Parks, 

Open Space and Trails (SPOT), etc.

 • Rotary Clubs of Salida

 • Salida Business Alliance

 • Salida Chamber of Commerce

 • Salida Creative District

 • Salida Elks Lodge

 • Salida Regional Library

 • Salida School District

 • Salida Museum

Due to COVID-19 some information and priorities may have changed. 



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 7

AUDIT OF EXISTING MATERIALS

CITY OF SALIDA WEBSITE  |  cityofsalida.com

With over 40,000 unique visits to the website this year, the City of Salida website serves 

as a centralized and important service to connect audiences to the information and 

resources they need.

40,370 
SESSIONS 

TOP 10 MOST VISITED PAGES:
1. Homepage

2. /cat/jobs

3. /city-government/city-council

4. /departments/salida-utilities

5. /cat/notices

6. /departments/community-development/zoning-land-use

7. /departments/community-development/

8. /atox

9. /departments/administration

10.  /departments/police

SITE ORGANIZATION:
 • The good news: your site navigation does not bury content.

 • The bad news: your site has so much content on the first ‘level’, that it lacks structure. This lack of 

structure makes it difficult for users to find content that may be related to one another. The home page 

is also a collection of FAQ’s that are difficult to filter through, and do not need to be prioritized as the 

are. Although the design, organization and user experience can be improved, you have the data and 

tools you need to bring the most important content to the forefront and showcase it to your audience.

WHO VISITS CITYOFSALIDA.COM?
 • Males, aged 25 - 34 are the most 

frequent demographic to visit your site, 

followed by 35 - 44-year-olds. Visits are 

done overwhelmingly via desktop (this 

includes laptops) or tablets, with less 

than 1% of visits coming from mobile.

 • Web visitors come to cityofsalida.com  

while they are located in Salida, 

Denver, Colorado Springs, Buena 

Vista and Lakewood.

23,865 
USERS

138,744 
PAGEVIEWS

3.44 PAGES | SESSIONS 86% | 14% NEW | RETURNING USERS



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 8

AUDIT OF EXISTING MATERIALS

CITY OF SALIDA  |  SOCIAL MEDIA & ADDITIONAL EXTERNAL CHANNELS

Social media can be utilized to achieve a variety of goals for the City. It can inform residents 

with timely or urgent updates, act as a customer service tool and remind audiences of 

resources available to them. It can also tell stories, celebrate achievements and generate 

community pride. Currently, many departments within the City use social media to 

accomplish these goals. The audit below analyzes current audiences and strategy of 

your main social media channels and outlines recommendations on how to centralize 

your communication moving forward.

A majority of the City of Salida Facebook fans are women (this is unsurprising based 

on user demographics of Facebook in general). Your female fans are also more likely to 

engage with your content, although men and women are reached somewhat evenly.

68% WOMEN 32% MEN

SENTIMENT AND ENGAGEMENT
Overall, sentiment on Facebook is positive. 

Posts shared with photos or videos perform 

better than posts with only links.

Updates, job posting and ‘community 

pride’ posts receive the most 

engagement on Facebook.

WHAT’S NEXT?
With over 15 social accounts under 

the responsibility of the City of 

Salida, it’s time to consolidate.

CONCLUSION
Social media is a tool meant to make the lives of 

residents easier and get them the information 

they need. Residents should not have to follow 

15 accounts to stay up to date. By consolidating 

information, you establish the main City account 

as the source of truth and timely information for 

all City communications. You also can create a 

more consistent message across all platforms.

Based on the number of messages coming from 

the Police, Fire, Parks & Rec and Salida SteamPlant 

accounts, those accounts can continue as is. 

We recommend that you incorporate their posts 

into the City’s primary social media platform 

and calendar as necessary. Moving forward, no 

other additional accounts should be created for 

departments. unless prior approval is given.



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 9

SWOT ANALYSIS

STRENGTHS:
 • Organizational commitment 

to communications

 • Highly engaged and 
connected community

 • Strong community partners who 
are eager to support the City with 
its communication efforts

THREATS:
 • Historical mistrust of the City has the 

potential to bubble to the surface

 • Growth in the community is shifting 

demographics and creating a divide 

among new and long-time residents

 • Residents get their information from 

a large number of external sources 

(newspaper, radio, social media, word 

of mouth) making it a challenge to share 

accurate information about the City

OPPORTUNITIES:
 • Create a consistent identity to 

increase awareness of the City 

organization and services

 • Development of solid communication 

process so all departments can 

get their information out

 • Reaching people where they 

are with information in facilities, 

through social groups, etc.

 • Help residents understand how 

City programs and policies 

impact their individual lives

 • Equip City Council and City staff with 

key messages and talking points to help 
broaden the City’s communication reach

WEAKNESSES:
 • An inconsistent strategy across 

communication channels means 
residents need to search multiple 
places for information

 • The City lacks a robust 
communication strategy for official 
government handlings which 
means residents are uninformed 
about local City policy decisions

 • A small, but vocal, minority in 
the community has the ability to 
influence Council decisions



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 10

2. COMMUNITY PROFILE

DEMOGRAPHICS  |  BY THE NUMBERS

5,236
POPULATION 

(5,963 AS OF 2019 EST.)

2,515
HOUSEHOLDS

18 - 25%
PERCENTAGE OF 

HOUSEHOLDS WITH 
KIDS UNDER 18

$46,308
MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD 

INCOME

34%
BACHELOR’S DEGREE

94%  
WHITE

ETHNICITY

62%
HOMEOWNERSHIP 

RATE

92%
ENGLISH-SPEAKING

Statistics taken from the 2010 US Census unless otherwise noted.

42
MEDIAN

AGE



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 1 1

RESIDENT CHARACTERISTICS & PREFERENCES

BABY BOOMERS  |  BORN BETWEEN 1946-1964

BEHAVIORS AND COMMUNICATION 
PREFERENCES:

 • Tech savvy and utilizes social 
media frequently

 • Prefers more information 
and transparency

 • Appreciates the convenience and 
customization of the Internet

 • Desire to feel they are contributing 
to a greater cause

 • Welcomes information presented 
in terms of categories and 
options (i.e., simple facts with 
which to make decisions)

 • Prefer face-to-face interactions 
or phone calls



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 12

RESIDENT CHARACTERISTICS & PREFERENCES

GENERATION X  |  BORN BETWEEN 1965-1980

BEHAVIORS AND COMMUNICATION 
PREFERENCES:

 • Grew up in a world without social 
media but have adapted to it

 • Email is the preferred mode 
of communication

 • The only generation who regularly 
consumes advertising and 
marketing messages from all key 
media channels including social 
media, print, mobile and cable

 • Prefers initiatives that will make 
things more useful and practical

 • Welcomes an informal 
communication style and are 
skeptical of modern advertising



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 13

RESIDENT CHARACTERISTICS & PREFERENCES

MILLENNIALS  |  BORN BETWEEN 1981-1996

BEHAVIORS AND COMMUNICATION 
PREFERENCES:

 • Digital natives that are used to 
having access to large amount of 
information at their fingertips

 • Prefers to receive information 
electronically, and use social 
media to communicate

 • Responds to content that is 
conversational and authentic

 • Expects speed, convenience 
and flexibility

 • Reacts strongly to real-life examples, 
and favor the truth and what’s real

 • Peers often guide product 
and brand choices



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 1 4

RESIDENT CHARACTERISTICS & PREFERENCES

GENERATION Z  |  BORN BETWEEN 1996-2010

BEHAVIORS AND COMMUNICATION 
PREFERENCES:

 • Look for instant gratification and are 
used to having access to large amount 
of information at their fingertips

 • Utilize all social media platforms and 
are early adopters of new technology

 • Prefer short format video and 
compelling photography

 • Peers often guide product and 
brand choices. Peer acceptance 
is very important and they need 
to feel like they belong

 • Value security, authenticity 
and “realness”

 • They want to make a difference in the 
world and lead a life with purpose



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 15

3. COMMUNICATION PRIORITIES 

TRANSPARENCY PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 

TIMELY & ACCURATE 
INFORMATION 

BUILD COMMUNITY 
PARTNERSHIPS 

The priorities below serve as the overarching goals of the communications plan. 

Actionable tactics and recommended tools that support a strong communications 

program follow each priority:



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 16

MESSAGE 1

MESSAGE 2

MESSAGE 3

MESSAGE 4

SALIDA IS STRATEGIC ABOUT DECISIONS AND THOUGHTFUL ABOUT  
LONG-TERM PLANNING INITIATIVES 

SALIDA IS A RESPONSIBLE STEWARD OF COMMUNITY ASSETS

SALIDA TAKES PRIDE IN THE COMMUNITY AND WORKS TO PRESERVE 
ITS HISTORICAL ROOTS

SALIDA IS A COLLABORATIVE COMMUNITY PARTNER THAT SUPPORTS 
TWO-WAY COMMUNICATION 

KEY PHRASES

KEY PHRASES

KEY PHRASES

KEY PHRASES

 • Smart growth

 • Strong financial health

 • Plan for the future

 • Safe community

 • Transparent

 • Actively engaged staff and City Council

 • High-quality workforce

 • Strong character

 • Creative

 • Active and vibrant

 • Strong sense of community

 • Healthy environment

 • Celebrate community history

 • Public engagement

 • Community partnerships 

 • Cultivate trusting relationships

4. FOUNDATIONAL MESSAGING



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 1 7

5. STRATEGIES AND TACTICS

TRANSPARENCY 

TIMELY AND ACCURATE INFORMATION

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

TACTICS

TACTICS

 • Report accomplishments and challenges accurately and openly

 • Develop informational campaigns sharing specific details of issues most 
important to the community

 • Share information early and often

 • Provide information in a way that is convenient, timely and easily accessible 
for the target audience

 • Develop a communication strategy across all communication platforms

 • Utilize long-range planning documents to make strategic decisions

 • Implement financial software to report city budget information  
and performance

 • Partner with local radio stations and other news outlets to share  
city information

 • Produce a report to the community to highlight 
accomplishments and challenges

 • Equip Council and staff with project details and talking points so 
they can be the eyes, ears and voice of the organization

 • Create a quarterly e-newsletter, with city manager updates, to  
communicate important city news

 • Establish a Salida City Council Wrap-Up e-newsletter to share  
Council decisions

 • Create a monthly editorial calendar for social media

 • Standardize internal communication processes

 • Develop a traditional media strategy that proactively sends press releases 
to media on big topics

 • Launch a new city website



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 18

STRATEGIES AND TACTICS

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 

BUILD COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS 

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

TACTICS

TACTICS

 • Grow engagement through community events.

 • Use interactive and non-traditional communication approaches to 
maintain ongoing dialogue between residents and city government. 

 • Leverage partnership with other organizations and local groups to help 
spread your message

 • Tell the unique stories of Salida through it’s people, places and history – all 
the things that make Salida unique

 • OpenGov Town Halls 

 • Organize small outreach opportunities (coffee with the 
mayor, town hall meetings, neighborhood get-together with 
Council Members etc.) to share city information

 • Provide an online platform for residents to share feedback and ask questions

 • Capitalize on local community events (ex. Farmer’s Markets, summer 
concerts, festivals, ArtWalk, etc.) by hosting a city booth to share updates

 • Implement a Citizen Ambassador Program with a select group of residents 
to serve as city cheerleaders and help share important information with  
fellow residents

 • Create a specific email from the desk of the City Administrator that is sent 
to community organization directors updating them on City initiatives 

 • Attend local partnership meetings to receive feedback and share city news 

 • Once a month highlight a Salida resident, business or community 
partner on social media to build community pride 

 • Work with local downtown businesses to display city posters with important 
information on storefronts



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 19

AUDIENCES

B
a

b
y 

B
o

o
m

e
rs

G
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 X

M
ill

e
n

n
ia

ls

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
c

il

In
te

rn
a

l S
ta

ff

N
o

n
-E

n
g

lis
h

 

S
p

e
a

ke
rs

TOOLS

Website 

Social media 

Flyers & posters 

Bilingual material 

Press releases 

E-newsletter 

Town halls/large gatherings

Short video spotlights 

Small outreach meetings 

Op-ed articles 

Event booth 

Facility signage 

Digital and print newspaper ads 

Radio ads 

Open houses 

Direct mail and door hangers

Project reports

6. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

The Communications Matrix is a resource to identify the best tools to reach specific 

audiences when communicating about the City of Salida. Tools are organized by priority 

level to assist with implementation.

COMMUNICATIONS MATRIX

High priority Medium priority Low priority



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 20

HIGH PRIORITY

ONGOING

Q3.2020

Q4.2020

 • Use planning documents to guide strategic decisions

 • Develop a monthly editorial calendar for social media

 • Create project talking points for Council and staff

 • Develop and launch a monthly e-newsletter

 • Create a Council Wrap-Up newsletter

 • Create and implement new communication templates (flyers, posters, 
social media posts, PowerPoint, etc.)

 • Implement financial planning software

 • Use video storytelling

 • Standardize internal communication processes

 • Develop a proactive media strategy

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 2 1

MEDIUM PRIORITY

ONGOING

Q2.2020

Q3.2020

Q4.2020

 • Organize outreach opportunities to share City news

 • Publish press releases with City updates

 • Op-ed articles from Council

 • Host city booth at community events

 • Host community outreach sessions

 • Create an online platform for resident feedback 

 • Host city booth at community events

 • Host community outreach sessions

 • Host community outreach sessions

 • Produce a 2021 Budget Brief document

 • Implement a citizen ambassador program

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 2 2

7. METRICS FOR SUCCESS
Metrics can be used to track the success of the city’s communication tactics. 

Salida staff should evaluate these metrics on a regular basis and compare them 

to previous statistics to understand what tactics are working well and which ones  

need improvements or further implementation.

MEDIA STATISTICS
 • Number of times the City of Salida 

is mentioned by the media

 • Interview requests

 • Media outlet circulation

 • Number of op-ed articles submitted

OVERALL ENGAGEMENT
 • RESIDENT FEEDBACK – The 

number of people who respond to a 
survey or provide feedback through 
other communication venues

 • OUTREACH TO THE COMMUNITY – The 
number of engagement opportunities 
offered to the community and the number 
of people who attend those opportunities

SOCIAL MEDIA METRICS
 • FOLLOWERS – The number of 

people who follow your page

 • ENGAGEMENT – The number of people 
who like, comment or share your posts

 • REACH – The number of people 
your post was served to

WEBSITE METRICS
 • UNIQUE VISITS – The number of 

distinct individuals visiting the site

 • PAGE VIEWS – The number of times 
a site page has been viewed

 • TOP PAGES – The pages that 
are visited most frequently, the 
top 5-10 should be tracked

 • BOUNCE RATE – The percentage of people 
that navigate away from the site after only 
viewing one page. A lower bounce rate 
means that people are exploring the site 
and finding the information they need

EBLAST & E-NEWSLETTER METRICS
 • NUMBER OF SUBSCRIBERS – The 

number of people that have signed up 
to receive communication from the city

 • AVERAGE OPEN RATE – The 
average percentage of recipients 
that open the emails

 • AVERAGE CLICK-THROUGH RATE – 
The average percentage of recipients 
that click on a link within the emails



COMMUNICATION 
AND BRAND GUIDE

SECTION TWO



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 24

1. VISION BOARD



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 2 5

2. VISUAL BRAND

BRAND PALETTE  |  PRIMARY & SECONDARY COLORS

CMYK 100 - 0 - 25 - 47

RGB 0 - 107 - 116

HEX #006B74

CMYK 1 - 80 - 79 - 12

RGB 193 - 77 - 52

HEX #C14D34

PANTONE

3155 CP

CMYK 26 - 20 - 67 - 16

RGB 163 - 154 - 88

HEX #A39A58

PANTONE

5835 CP

100%      80%         60%         40%        20%

 100%                     80%                      60%    40%           20%  100%                     80%                      60%   40%         20%

CMYK 71 - 53 - 55 - 53

RGB 68 - 78 - 76

HEX #444E4C

100%      80%         60%         40%        20%

PANTONE

446 CP

CMYK 0 - 7 - 26 - 0

RGB 241 - 220 - 170

HEX #F1DCAA

100%      80%         60%         40%        20%

PANTONE

7506 CP

PANTONE

7619 CP



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 26

2. VISUAL BRAND

TYPEFACES  |  FONTS AND EXAMPLES

H1 - Teko Medium

H2 - Teko Light

H3 - Questrial Regular

Body Font

Questrial
Regular

TEKO MEDIUM HEADLINE ONE

TEKO MEDIUM HEADLINE

TEKO LIGHT HEADLINE TWO

TEKO LIGHT HEADLINE TWO

Questrial Regular Headline Three

Questrial Regular Body Font 

Questrial Regular Body Font - Git int labor sinctet 

asseque eate et et odit verum vitatiorest omnisti 

nvellab illibus, odis secerum eosapici cupta ipsa vo-

luptat accae nim qui tota comnimolo veria dolupta 

ellupidel explit voluptae millitatium aut vitae vitis et 

utatur, sequam qui to derio eum volorem experfer-

em et. Aquodis simil ipsandantiae labo. Et repreium 

que dolo eos simus molorei ciist, nem que cuptat-

ure que sum ium fuga. Xercilibus, se imustrum qui 

tem il min et quo eaquis earumquiate laccullibus 

voles ius persperi doluptatque autas et, ut re.Estiis-

it porporum ut latiis mos aut quam nem. Nam estius 

eniate volupitat repero officiliquid eicaecum exped

Questrial Regular Body Font - Git int labor sinctet 

asseque eate et et odit verum vitatiorest omnisti 

nvellab illibus, odis secerum eosapici cupta ipsa vo-

luptat accae nim qui tota comnimolo veria dolupta 

ellupidel QuiaIgendi con. Hitiorerume magnatempor

Questrial Regular Body Font - Git int labor sinctet asse-

que eate et et odit verum vitatiorest omnisti nvellab illi-

bus, odis secerum eosapici cupta ipsa voluptat accae 

nim qui tota comnimolo veria dolupta ellupidel explit

”Pridi Light for H3 call outs. 
Git int labor sinctet asseque 
eate et et odit verum vitatior-
est omnisti nvellab Ovidello 
resciatis sinctet”



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 2 7

2. VISUAL BRAND

PHOTOGRAPHY STYLE



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 28

2. VISUAL BRAND

ICONS AND INFOGRAPHIC STYLE



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 2 9

3. SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance for employee use of social media, 

which should be broadly understood for purposes of this policy to include blogs, wikis, 

micro blogs, message boards, chat rooms, electronic newsletters, online forums, social 

networking sites, and other sites and services that permit users to share information with 

others in a contemporaneous manner.

Further, this policy defines social media, establishes procedures to develop an overall social media presence, and 

outlines appropriate implementation of social media tools.

The City of Salida aims to responsibly engage residents to learn about needs and concerns, contribute to relevant 

conversations, and promote City programs and services. In all City social media tools, the City will represent itself 

appropriately and consistently. To that end, departments and programs must not create social media accounts 

themselves but must follow the provisions of this policy.

APPLICABILITY
This policy applies to all City departments and 

offices and City operated social media accounts..

PROPONENT?
City Administrator, or his or her designee.   

GENERAL INFORMATION
Salida has a business need to augment traditional communication methods with the use of social media channels. 

The use of social media presents opportunity and risk to the City and individual City departments. In general, the 

City supports the use of social media to further City and department missions and goals.

The City endorses the secure use of social media technology to enhance communication, collaboration and 

information exchange; streamline processes; and foster productivity improvements. However, their application 

must not compromise data confidentiality and integrity. The same standards of conduct, principles and 

guidelines that apply to Salida employees in the performance of their assigned duties apply to employee social 

media technology use. This document establishes citywide social media use policies; protocols and procedures 

intended to mitigate associated risks from use of this technology where possible.



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 30

3. SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

Social media websites focus on creating and fostering online social 

communities. Many sites offer different ways for users to interact such 

as instant messaging, blogging and commenting, online forums, status 

update, sharing of pictures and video, etc. Examples include Facebook  

and Instagram.

Micro blogging is a form of blogging that allows registered users to post short 

updates (140 characters or less). Examples include Twitter and Yammer.

A discussion forum is an online bulletin board that may also be referred to 

as a discussion group or board, a message board, or an online forum. On a 

forum, a registered user can post a message and receive responses to the 

message on the site.

These sites gives users a method and location to store their digital images 

and videos and share them with others.

A wiki is a website that allows visitors to add, remove, edit and change 

content with or without the need for registration depending on the settings. 

A wiki also allows for posting links to other web pages.

Virtual worlds are websites and/or software that allow registered users to 

create a presence in a simulated community through the use of graphical 

identification tool known as an avatar. They can then use the avatar to 

interact with others in the online world.

A website where an author posts information on specific topics. Readers can 

respond to the article by posting comments online.

SOCIAL MEDIA WEBSITES

MICRO BLOGGING

DISCUSSION FORUMS

PHOTO AND VIDEO 
SHARING WEBSITES

WIKI 

VIRTUAL WORLDS

BLOG

SCOPE
This policy applies to any pre-existing or proposed social media tools including but not limited to the tools below:



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 31

3. SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

GENERAL CONDITIONS
The use of all City social media tools should be consistently branded in order to communicate a clear 

association with the City and must contain a City-standard disclaimer. Branding should include, but is not 

limited to, the inclusion of the City logo and, where possible, the City’s official website colors. The naming 

and contact convention used for social media web tools should be specific to Salida and must not contain 

individual employee names. All approved social media tools will be linked with the City’s official web  

site, www.cityofsalida.com.  

All use of City social media tools must comply with the applicable laws, regulations, and policies, as well as 

proper business etiquette. Social media networks should not be used to disclose sensitive and/or confidential 

information without the prior express written approval of the City Administrator or City Attorney. City social 

media tools may not be used to express personal views or concerns and may not be used to promote 

recommendations or referrals for friends/associates.

City social media use shall comply with the Terms of Service outlined by applicable social media networks  

and tools.



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 32

3. SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

POLICY

Social media (including personal and professional websites, blogs, chat rooms and 

bulletin boards; social networks, such as Facebook, LinkedIn and Twitter; video-sharing 

sites such as YouTube; and email) are a common means of communication and self-

expression. Because online postings can conflict with the interests of the City of Salida 

and the citizens of Salida, Salida has adopted the following policy. Breach of this policy 

may result in counseling and disciplinary action, including termination of employment.

A. AUTHORIZATION OF SOCIAL MEDIA ACCOUNTS
Departments will use citywide social media tools and shall not create individual accounts or identities for specific 

programs, events, or departments unless:

 • The social media account pertains to a 

partnership program where the City is 

not the lead or coordinating entity.

 • There is a unique business need 

that requires autonomy.

Any department wishing to create, modify or remove a social media presence must initially submit a request to 

the City Administrator. Requests should include:

 • Purpose

 • Topic

 • Timeframe

 • Implementation/management plan 

including frequency of updates, staff 

assigned as moderators and content 

providers, etc.Target audience

Further, any department engaging in social media is required to maintain timely and accurate information online 

and management of such tools should not interfere with the employee’s primary job responsibilities.



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 33

3. SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

B. RULES OF ENGAGEMENT
Upon approval to create a new social media account, content providers of these tools should follow these guidelines:

Your honesty, or dishonesty – will be quickly noticed in social media. If you 

have a vested interest in something you are discussing, be the first to point it 

out. Clearly identify your role in the organization.

 Make sure your efforts to be transparent don’t violate the City’s confidentiality 

and legal guidelines. Ask permission to publish or report on conversations 

that are meant to be private or internal. All statements must be true and 

not misleading. Never comment on anything related to personnel or legal 

matters, litigation, or any parties the City is in litigation with. Also, be smart 

about protecting yourself and your personal privacy.

Talk to your readers like you would talk to real people in professional situations. 

In other words, avoid overly pedantic or composed language. Don’t be afraid 

to bring in your own personality and say what’s on your mind.

Communication through social media tools should be thought provoking, 

educational, and help people better understand the topic at hand.

You are responsible for what you post. Be mindful that what you publish will be 

public for a long time. If you make a mistake, admit it, correct it, and move on.

In the first person.

If you’re about to publish something that makes you even the slightest bit 

uncomfortable, don’t shrug it off and hit send. Take a minute to review these 

guidelines and try to figure out what’s bothering you, and then fix it.

Don’t use ethnic slurs, personal insults, obscenity, or engage in any conduct 

that would not be acceptable in the City workplace.

Social media tools are an outlet to communicate. Don’t let an opinionated 

statement pull you into an online argument for all to witness.

 Make sure you write and post about your areas of expertise.

BE HONEST 

BE JUDICIOUS 

IT’S A CONVERSATION

ADD VALUE

TAKE RESPONSIBILITY

SPEAK

IF IT GIVES YOU PAUSE, 
THEN PAUSE

RESPECT YOUR AUDIENCE

DON’T GET INTO 
ARGUMENTS

WRITE WHAT YOU KNOW 



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 3 4

3. SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

 • Potentially libelous

 • Obscene or sexually explicit

 • Hateful or mean-spirited

 • Personal attacks, insults, profane, 

name-calling, or threatening

 • Plagiarized material or material that potentially 

violates intellectual property rights

 • Private, personal information 

published without consent

 • Commercial promotions or spam

 • Off topic or that link to material that is off topic

 • Embedded images from external sources

 • Violate any law or promote the 

violation of any law

 • Encourage or constitute prohibited 

discriminatory or harassing conduct

 • Made by a person masquerading 

as someone else

Additionally, the City reserves the right to terminate a person’s ability to post comments/materials or otherwise 

participate in the City’s social media tools when the person has repeatedly posted any of the above listed 

inappropriate comments/materials.

C. STANDARD DISCLAIMER
Salida makes use of social media to engage residents to learn about needs and concerns, contribute to relevant 

conversations, and promote City programs and services. Despite efforts to keep the City-provided information 

timely and accurate, users should be aware that the information available through this social media tool might 

not be timely, accurate, or complete. No communication to Salida through this social media shall be deemed 

to constitute legal or official notice for any purpose. Users are encouraged to consult with appropriate non-City 

professional advisors for advice concerning specific matters before making any decision, and Salida disclaims any 

responsibility or liability for positions taken by individuals or entities in their individual cases for any misstatement, 

misunderstanding and losses, directly or indirectly, on the part of the users.

Salida’s use of external social media tools is provided as a public service. The City disclaims liability for ads, 

videos, promoted content or comments accessible from any external webpage. The responsibility of external 

content or comments rests with the organizations or individuals providing them. Any inclusion of external content 

or comments on external social media web sites does not imply endorsement by Salida. The City reserves the 

right, and may choose to reprint, comments/materials placed on the social media websites to other media, such 

as by providing comments/materials to City staff or City Council in private or public settings.

We reserve the right and will remove comments/materials from City social media tools when those comments/

materials, in the City’s sole discretion, are:



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 35

3. SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

E. RETENTION AND DOCUMENTATION
See Salida’s General Records Retention Schedule for retention guidelines.

F. EMPLOYEE USE
See Salida’s Personnel Policy for details.

RESERVATION OF AUTHORITY 
Salida City Council reserves the right to alter, amend, add to, and/or revoke all or part of this policy at any time.

 • Officials must not reveal any confidential 

or privileged information about the City, its 

constituents, its employees, or its contractors.

 • Officials should be honest and accurate when 

posting information or news, and should quickly 

correct any mistakes, misstatements and/or 

factual errors in content upon discovery. Officials 

should not post or share information known to 

be false, or a statement in general circulation 

without confirmation or certainty as to the facts.

 • Unless the official has been designated to 

serve as a spokesperson, officials should never 

represent themselves as a spokesperson for 

the City Council, a board or committee, the 

City Administration, or any City department. 

 • Officials are expressly prohibited from using 

personal or professional social media to engage 

in any activity or conduct that violates federal, 

state, or local law. Officials are prohibited from 

deleting posts and related comments regarding 

any City-related matters and are prohibited 

from convening and discussing substantive 

issues online to avoid violation of Colorado Open 

Records Act and Colorado Sunshine Law.

 • Public officials are strongly encouraged to 

separate personal social media accounts 

from professional social media accounts 

so that City-related matters and all public 

records generated from those posts are 

easily archived and not intermingled with 

personal posts not related to City matters.

 • Officials are strongly encouraged to consider 

the potential impact of social media statements 

prior to posting. The City strives to be 

professional in its operations and processes. 

D. USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA BY ELECTED OFFICIALS



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 36

4. STYLEGUIDE

WRITING BASICS

PROOFREADING

SALIDA  
TERMINOLOGY

TEXT  
FORMATTING & 
PUNCTUATION

Be sure to proofread for mistakes. Ask someone else to look over the text to 
ensure no errors are present. Use spell check and other available tools to catch 
misspellings and inaccuracies.

CITY OF SALIDA
 • Capitalize when referring to the City organization.

 • Keep lowercase when referring to the city as a community.

RESIDENT VS. CITIZEN
 • Use “resident”, “community member”, “the public”, “people”, etc. in place 

of “citizen”.

TITLES
 • Mayor P.T. Wood OR P.T. Wood, Mayor

 • Drew Nelson, City Administrator 

COUNCIL TERMINOLOGY
 • Council Member (not council-member or councilmember)

 • City Council Meeting/Study Session

SEMICOLONS, COLONS, HYPHENS AND DASHES
 • Use a semicolon when each participle of the sentence can stand alone.

 » We need five poster boards; these will be adhered to the  
planning documents.

 • Use a colon when the second participle cannot stand alone.

 » He has many hobbies but only one favorite: swimming.

 • Use em dashes in place of commas or parentheses to draw attention to 
the phrase

 » She lost her wallet – the one she owned for eight years – at the gym.

SPACING
 • Use one space after a complete sentence. Do not use two spaces 

following a period.



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 3 7

4. STYLEGUIDE

WRITING BASICS  |  CONTINUED

TEXT  
FORMATTING & 
PUNCTUATION

COMMAS
 • Use commas to separate three or more items in a list. Use the 

Oxford comma when clarification is necessary to separate multiple 
conjunctions; otherwise, omit.

 • We will be purchasing banners, tents, weights and water for the event.

 • At the site, there will be a zipline, rope course, and a bouldering and 
climbing wall.

NUMBERS
 • Spell out one through nine and use numerals for 10 and above.

 • Exception: street addresses and wards (20th Street, Ward 3)

PHONE NUMBERS
 • Do not use parentheses for area codes

 • Hyphenate the following digits

 • 303-555-5555

DATES
 • Use Day, Month, Number, Year format

 • Abbreviate Jan., Feb., Aug., Sept., Oct., Nov. and Dec.

 • Tuesday, July 2, 2020

 • Oct. 8

 • December 2020

TIMES
 • Use a.m., p.m., noon and midnight

 • 10 a.m. to noon

 • 5-11 a.m.

 • 4 p.m. to midnight

ADDRESSES
 • Use street abbreviations for numbered addresses and spell out 

if only referring to street names

 • 220 W. Sackett Ave.

 • First Street



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 38

4. STYLEGUIDE

WRITING BASICS  |  CONTINUED

TEXT  
FORMATTING & 
PUNCTUATION

ACRONYMS
 • Spell out on first usage and include acronym in parentheses

 • Homeowner’s Association (HOA)

BULLETS
 • Use consistent bullet styles, alignment and margins in lists)

I.E., E.G., ETC.
 • i.e. (“id est” = “in other words”)

 • e.g. (“exempli gratia” = “for example”)

 • etc. (“et cetera” = “and so forth”)



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 39

5. TEMPLATE EXAMPLES

POWERPOINT TEMPLATE 



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 4 0

5. TEMPLATE EXAMPLES

POSTER/FLYER TEMPLATES



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 41

5. TEMPLATE EXAMPLES

RECREATION SIGNAGE EXAMPLES



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 4 2

6. MEDIA CONTACT LIST

MEDIA CONTACT LIST 

STATEWIDE NEWS

CBS4

CHANNEL 7

9NEWS

CHANNEL 2/FOX 31

DENVER POST

KOA RADIO

AP DENVER

 • kcncnews@cbs.com

 • contact7@thedenverchannel.com

 • desk@9news.com

 • tips@kdvr.com

 • newsroom@denverpost.com

 • newsroom@850koa.com  

 • apdenver@ap.org



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 4 3

6. MEDIA CONTACT LIST

MEDIA CONTACT LIST 

LOCAL NEWS

THE MOUNTAIN MAIL

ARK VALLEY VOICE

CHAFFEE COUNTY TIMES

COLORADO CENTRAL MAGAZINE

HEART OF THE ROCKIES RADIO

KHEN RADIO

 • Reporter2@themountainmail.com

 • pgoetz@themountainmail.com

 • danr@threeeagles.com

 • gbuchanan@threeeagles.com

 • arkvalleyvoice@gmail.com

 • info@khen.org

 • editor@chaffeecountytimes.com

 • cozinemag@gmail.com



CIT Y OF S ALIDA COMMUNIC ATIONS PL AN | 4 4

6. MEDIA CONTACT LIST

MEDIA CONTACT LIST 

REGIONAL PARTNERS

SALIDA CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE

COLORADO CREATIVE 
DISTRICTS

CHAFFEE COUNTY

CHAFFEE COUNTY 
VISITORS BUREAU

SALIDA BUSINESS ALLIANCE

TOWN OF BUENA VISTA

TOWN OF PONCHA SPRINGS

SALIDA COUNCIL FOR THE ARTS

 • lori@salidachamber.org

 • office@salidachamber.org

 • info@SalidaCreates.com

 • pbaldwin@chaffeecounty.org

 • bchristiansen@chaffeecounty.org

 • Scott@ColorfulColorado.com

 • SBASalida@gmail.com

 • bvaa@buenavistaco.gov

 • mail@ponchasprings.us

 • SalidaCouncilfortheArts@gmail.com



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 

ITEM:    

Approval of Ordinance 2020-10: An ordinance to rezone an approximately .17 ac parcel located at 
the southwest intersection of East Crestone Avenue and West Third Street from Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) to Medium-Density Residential (R-2); on first reading. 

REQUEST: 

The request is to approve the rezoning of an approximately 7,405 sf (.17 ac) parcel, legally described 
as PT Lot 4-6 Strip C of Eddy Brothers Addition, Salida, Chaffee County Colorado, from Single-
Family Residential (R-1) to Medium-Density Residential (R-2). 

APPLICANTS:   

City of Salida- 448 E. 1st Street, Salida, CO 81201 (owner and applicant); Chaffee Housing Trust- 
P.O. Box 692, Buena Vista, CO 82111 (co-applicant).  
 
LOCATION:   

The subject parcel is located at the southwest intersection of East Crestone Avenue and West 
Third Street.  

 
BACKGROUND: 

City Council has identified the need for affordable housing (as stated in the 2016 Chaffee County 
Housing Needs Assessment) as one of its priority issues to address. That priority was reaffirmed 
as recently as this spring’s Council retreat, and staff has been working to implement such actions. 

5.c.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 
On July 16, 2019, Council directed staff to begin discussions with the Chaffee Housing Trust 
(CHT) regarding the potential transfer of City-owned property for the purpose of developing 
affordable housing units. Following this direction, staff began working with CHT to look at the 
feasibility of utilizing City-owned land at the intersection of E. Crestone Ave and W. 3rd St. On 
October 15, 2019, Council directed staff to initiate applications for the rezoning of the subject 
parcel which abuts E. Crestone Avenue, as well as the vacation of a portion of the E. Crestone 
Avenue right-of-way. The aim was to create a contiguous parcel with one common zoning 
designation that could be used to create affordable housing units. CHT and staff then began 
working to develop a concept plan for the potential future parcel that could accommodate up to 5 
primary residential units, plus 1 ADU, as allowed by code.  
 
The applications for the vacation of right-of-way and rezoning were submitted on February 6, 
2020. On March 4, 2020, the City of Salida and Chaffee Housing Trust hosted a meeting for 
neighbors and other interested parties at the Scout Hut to present ideas and hear input from 
residents regarding the potential project. Neighbors’ concerns and questions included whether 
there’s an actual need for affordable housing, the potential impact to property values, the potential 
loss of vehicular access to/from Crestone Mesa, costs to the public, and potential increases to 
existing traffic, among others. A few attendees expressed some support for the project. Notes 
from that meeting are included in the packet, and some of the input factored into the eventual 
concept design that is attached to this report.  
 
On March 16, 2020, City Council and Planning Commission held a joint conceptual review of the 
applications and potential project, to ask questions and provide feedback. Following a couple of 
postponements due to various factors, including the request of neighbors, COVID-19 restrictions, 
and the need for additional information regarding site design and adjacent street improvements, 
the subject application went in front of Planning Commission for a public hearing and 
recommendation on June 22, 2020. Their recommendations are included at the end of this report. 
 
OBSERVATIONS AND COMMENTS: 
 
1. The City of Salida owns the subject parcel, 

as well as the smaller triangular-shaped 
parcel (zoned R-2) directly across E. 
Crestone Ave. Both parcels are vacant.  

 
2. The properties immediately surrounding this 

parcel to the northwest, north, east, and 
southeast are located within the Medium-
Density Residential (R-2) zone district. 
Properties to the west and south (on the 
mesa above) are zoned Single-Family 
Residential (R-1). The surrounding R-2-
zoned areas are characterized by a mix of 
single-family residences, duplexes, and 

Looking south from W 3rd and M Streets at the subject 
property (beyond the white stones)  

5.c.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 
multi-family residences. The Chaffee County jail and office buildings are located a half-block to 
the southeast. 

 
3. The applicant, has also submitted a separate application requesting a right-of-way vacation for 

the portion of E. Crestone Ave between the two City-owned parcels, with the purpose of 
consolidating the two lots into a single development site. It should be emphasized, however, 
that the lot rezoning request is independent from the vacation of right-of-way request. The City 
of Salida has expressed interest in potentially making the site available for an affordable 
housing development and is working with the Chaffee Housing Trust (CHT) towards that end, 
per the guidance of the Comprehensive Plan and the Salida Strategic Housing Plan. A copy of 
CHT’s latest conceptual site plan is attached to this report, for reference. However, no specific 
development plan is currently being proposed, nor does approval of this rezoning request 
guarantee any sort of transfer of property.  

 
 
REVIEW STANDARDS FOR MAP AMENDMENTS [Section 16-4-210(c)]: 
 
1. Consistent with Comprehensive Plan. The proposed amendment shall be consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 The Comprehensive Plan’s Policy LU&G-I.1 states that “New development within the city 

shall make the most appropriate use of the land using design standards that enhance and 
complement the historic built environment of the city.” The accompany Action Item LU&G-I. 
1.a. specifically directs the City to: “Amend Salida’s Land Use Code and Zoning Map to 
advance the objectives of this plan and consider appropriate zoning designations, densities 
and overlays that utilize setbacks and promote the traditional historic built environment.”  
 
o Rezoning this property from its current Single-Family Residential (R-1) status to 

Medium-Density Residential (R-2) will advance the objectives of the Comprehensive 
Plan by making the zoning of this parcel consistent with surrounding R-2-zoned parcels 
to the north, east, and southeast. A look at the City’s Zoning Map shows the subject 
parcel surrounded on three sides by other properties zoned R-2 along W. Third Street. 
This parcel is very similar to the surrounding R-2-zoned parcels insofar as its size, 
topographical location (on the slope below Crestone Mesa) and accessibility to E. 
Crestone Avenue, W. Third Street, and M Street. It is distinct from the R-1-zoned 
properties immediately to the west due to its location below the mesa and its lack of 
access to Crestone Ave.  
 

 Policy LU&G-I.2 states that “Infill and redevelopment should be encouraged and will 
advance the objectives of this plan.”  
 

5.c.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 

o Rezoning this property from R-1 to R-2 would further encourage infill and 
redevelopment, thereby advancing the objectives of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

 Policy H-I.1 also directs the City to “Provide a mix of housing types and densities 
throughout the city to address a variety of incomes and lifestyles.”  
 

o As further discussed in Standard #2 below, rezoning the subject property to Medium-
Density Residential (R-2) would allow for a greater variety of potential housing types 
on the property, all of which would be comparable to other housing types already 
seen in the immediate vicinity (i.e. single-family, duplex, etc.).  

  

Given the policy directions cited above, staff finds that the request is consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 

2. Consistency with Purpose of Zone District. The proposed amendment shall be consistent 
with the purpose of the zone district to which the property is to be designated. 
 
 Per Sec. 16-4-70(2), “The purpose of the Medium-Density Residential (R-2) zone district is 

to provide for residential neighborhoods comprised of detached single-family dwellings, 
duplex dwellings, and multi-family residences on smaller lots than are permitted in the 
Single-Family Residential (R-1) zone district, allowing for slightly greater overall densities. 
Complementary land uses may also include such supporting land uses as parks, schools, 
churches, home occupations or day care, amongst other uses.”   

 

Staff finds that the proposed amendment is consistent with the purpose of the R-2 zone district, 

as the intent is to result in a lot that could provide a greater variety of potential housing and 

density—such as those which already exist on the adjacent lots to the southeast, lots across 

W. Third St., and other locations less than a block away.  

 

3. Compatibility with Surrounding Zone Districts and Uses. The development permitted by 
the proposed amendment shall be compatible with surrounding zone districts, land uses and 
neighborhood character. 
 
 As mentioned before and shown in the zoning map provided above, the subject property is 

bordered by Medium-Density Residential (R-2) zoned properties to the northwest, north, 
east, and southeast. Single-Family Residential (R-1) properties are located to the west and 

5.c.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 

View of single-family homes immediately across 
E. Crestone Ave & W. Third St. from the subject 

property (view looking northeast)  

south, primarily on the mesa. The parcel is most similar both topographically and 
geographically to R-2-zoned parcels insofar as it is below Crestone Mesa and very 
accessible to E. Crestone Avenue, W. 3rd Street, and M Street. The Salida Land Use Map 
from 1963 (portion attached to this report) took into account the topographical distinction of 
properties in this area and had designated the portion below Crestone Mesa, along W. 
Third St. between L and O Streets as “Multi-Family Residence (R-3).”   
 

 The uses afforded by the proposed rezoning would include the same types of development 
that are seen on other R-2-zoned lots within a block radius of the subject property, including 
a mixture of single-family, duplexes, and multi-family residences. There are single-family 
condominiums directly across W. Third St. (at the corner of M St), and duplex 
condos/buildings immediately to the southeast on both sides of W. Third Street. Multi-family 
residences also exist less than a block away near the intersection of E. Crestone and 
Crestone Avenues (see map below).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 View of duplex building immediately east of 
the subject property, across W. Third St.  

View of duplex buildings immediately southeast of the 
subject property (view looking northwest)  

5.c.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 

 

 
 
 

5.c.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 

 Though there is no formal agreement between parties, nor has any specific development 
plan been officially proposed, the City of Salida is in discussions with the Chaffee Housing 
Trust (CHT) to determine the feasibility of an affordable housing project in this location. The 
most recent conceptual plan provided by CHT envisions a development on the subject lot 
and the other City-owned lot to the north, as well as the portion of E. Crestone Ave. in 
between (which would be dependent upon a vacation of that portion of right-of-way, 
separate from this application). The conceptual plan included at the end of this report 
shows a mix of three single-family homes (one with an attached ADU) and one duplex 
building spaced out similarly to homes directly across W. Third Street. CHT’s concept 
elevations, also included, show homes that would mimic the surrounding roof styles and 
that would address W. Third Street in a manner similar to other homes on the block. Any 
such development would also require a future Limited Impact Review process that is 
separate from this application.  

 

Staff finds that the development permitted by the proposed amendment to Medium-Density 

Residential (R-2) zoning shall be compatible with surrounding zone districts, land uses and 

neighborhood character.  

4. Changed Conditions or Errors.  The applicant shall demonstrate that conditions affecting the 
subject parcel or the surrounding neighborhood have changed, or that due to incorrect 
assumptions or conclusions about the property, one (1) or more errors in the boundaries 
shown on the Official Zoning Map have occurred. 
 

 The subject parcel has over time become surrounded on most sides by R-2-zoned lots. The 
lots immediately to the southeast of the subject parcel (Lots 3 & 4 of the Chavez Minor 
Subdivision) were created via subdivision in 2006 and approved for a rezoning from Single-
Family Residential (R-1) to Medium-Density Residential (R-2) that same year (see attached 
below). The subject parcel, along with the other smaller City-owned parcel across E. 
Crestone Ave. share much in common with those adjacent lots that were rezoned to R-2, 
including topography and access to W. Third St. Through the years, these neighboring lots, 
as well as several other lots in the vicinity, have developed with a variety of homes that 
reflect the development standards of the R-2 zone district.  

 

Staff finds that the conditions affecting the subject parcel or the surrounding neighborhood 

have changed, both via nearby rezonings and the nature of surrounding neighborhood 

development.  

5.c.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 

REVIEW AGENCY COMMENTS: 
 
Finance Department – Aimee Tihonovich/Renee Thonoff: No concerns from a financial impact. 
Upon development, System Development Fees for water and sewer are required. The City of 
Salida charges these fees per unit.  
 
Fire Department – Chief Doug Bess:  No Comment 
 
Police Department – Russ Johnson: No Comment 
 
Public Works – David Lady: No Comment 
 
Utilities: (No comments have been received as of the publishing of the staff report and packet. Any 
comments received prior to the meeting will be presented in person by staff))  
 

RECOMMENDED FINDINGS: 
 
That the application is in compliance with the review standards of Section 16-4-210, Rezoning. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 2020-10 on first reading and setting a public hearing and 
second reading of the proposed ordinance for August 4, 2020. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
On June 22, 2020 the Planning Commission unanimously recommended that the Council approve 
the rezoning request. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
A Council person should make a motion to “Approve Ordinance 2020-10: An ordinance to rezone 
an approximately .17 ac parcel located at the southwest intersection of East Crestone Avenue and 
West Third Street from Single-Family Residential (R-1) to Medium-Density Residential (R-2), on first 
reading, and to set a public hearing and second reading of the proposed ordinance for August 4, 
2020.” 

 

 

5.c.



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NO. ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

Attachments 
Ordinance 2020-10 
Application  
Topographical survey of subject property and area 
1963 Zoning Map section and legend showing R-1/R-3 distinction 
Conceptual site plan for potential future CHT development  
Conceptual elevations for potential future CHT development 
Staff Report and plat for adjacent Chavez Rezoning 
Comments from 03/04/20 neighborhood meeting hosted by City and CHT 
Proof of Publication 
Public Comment Letters 
Letter from CHT re: sales price differences
City cost estimate sheet 

5.c.



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
ORDINANCE NO. 10 

 SERIES OF 2020  
  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, REZONING CERTAIN 
REAL PROPERTY OWNED BY THE CITY OF SALIDA FROM SINGLE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R-1) TO MEDIUM-DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (R-
2)  
 

WHEREAS, on February 6, 2020, an application was filed to commence proceedings to 
rezone a tract of land owned by the City of Salida (“the City”) comprised of approximately 7,405 
square feet located at the intersection of East Crestone Avenue and West Third Street and being 
more particularly described as PT Lot 4-6 Strip C of Eddy Brothers Addition, Salida, County of 
Chaffee, State of Colorado (the “Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 16-4-210 (a) of the Salida Municipal Code states an amendment to 

the Zoning Map may be initiated by the City Administrator or the owner of the Property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City is the owner of the Property and is co-applicant on the rezoning 
request along with Chaffee Housing Trust, a 501.C.3 nonprofit, who is in discussions with the City 
regarding a potential affordable housing development on the site per the direction of the City 
Council on July 16, 2019 and October 15, 2019; and 
 

WHEREAS, as required by the Salida Municipal Code, a public hearing on the zoning 
application for the Property was held on June 22, 2020 by the Planning Commission who found 
that the review standards for rezoning were met and forwarded a positive recommendation to the 
City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Salida City Council on August 4, 2020. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF SALIDA, COLORADO, THAT: 
 
 1. The aforementioned recitals are hereby fully incorporated herein.   
 

2. The Property described above is hereby zoned Medium Density Residential (R-2). 
 
3. Promptly following adoption of this Ordinance, the City Administrator shall cause 

the terms of this Ordinance to be incorporated into the Official Zoning Map of the City pursuant 
to Section 16-4-210 of the Salida Municipal Code.  The signed original copy of the Zoning Map 
shall be filed with the City Clerk.  The Clerk shall also record a certified copy of this Ordinance 
with the Chaffee County Clerk and Recorder.  The City staff is further directed to comply with all 
provisions of the Salida Land Use Regulations, SMC §16-1-10, et seq., to implement the 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

 



 
 

INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, on July 7, 2020, ADOPTED and ORDERED 
PUBLISHED IN FULL in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Salida by the City 
Council on the ____ day of __________, 2020 and set for second reading and public hearing on 
the 4th day of August, 2020. 
 
 

INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING, FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 
PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY, by the City Council on the 4th day of August, 2020. 
 

 
CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 
 

  
P.T. Wood, Mayor 

 [SEAL] 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

  
City Clerk/Deputy Clerk 
 

 
 

















 



Conceptual Site Plan for Affordable Housing Development





Public Hearing Agenda Item 4, Page 1 of 3 

          STAFF REPORT 
  

 
MEETING DATE: November 28, 2006 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Chavez Rezoning, Lots 3 & 4, Chavez Minor Subdivision 
 
AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing  
  
 
REQUEST:  
The request is to rezone the subject property from Single-Family Residential (R-1) to Medium 
Density Residential (R-2). 
 
APPLICANT: 
The applicants are George and Inez Chavez, 208 Crestone Avenue, Salida, CO 81201. 
 
LOCATION: 
The subject property described as Lots 3 & 4, Chavez Minor Subdivision.  The lots are located at the 
intersection of Third and ‘L’ Streets.  
 
PROCESS: 
An application for rezoning consists of a two-step process.  The request is addressed by the 
Commission through a public hearing process.  The Commission makes a recommendation of 
approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the zoning application to City Council.  The 
Commission may also remand the application back to the applicant for further information or 
amendment. Council has final decision-making authority in such applications. 
 
In its review of the application, the Commission shall focus on the long term use of the property 
within the context of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and current zoning for the property, as well as 
the surrounding area. Once the property is zoned, all of the uses permitted within the new zoning 
district are permitted as uses by right, not just what is proposed at the present time. 
 
OBSERVATIONS: 
1. The property has recently been replated to create the four lots of the Chavez Minor Subdivision. 

Lots 1 and 2 are located along Crestone Avenue.  The two subject lots share a rear yard with 
Lots 1 and 2 and there is a significant grade change from the rear of Lots 1 and 2 down to Third 
Street and Lots 3 and 4. 

 
2. The purpose of the R-2 zone district is to provide for residential neighborhoods comprised of 

detached single-family dwellings, duplex dwellings and multi-family residences on smaller lots 
than are permitted in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) zone district, allowing for slightly 
greater overall densities. 



Public Hearing Agenda Item 4, Page 2 of 3 

 
3. The two lots are each approximately 8,000 square feet in area.  In the R-1 zone the only type of 

housing permitted is single family homes and accessory units.  In the R-1 each of these lots 
could have two units; either a single-family home with an accessory unit or two single family 
homes as a conditional use.  With the R-2 zoning each lot would still be limited to two units of 
density, but they could be developed as duplexes in addition to the above housing types. 

 
4. The surrounding area along Third Street is zoned R-2 and has been developed consistent with 

that zone district designation.  Across ‘L’ Street is the county jail and courthouse complex. 
 
 
REVIEW STANDARDS FOR MAP AMENDMENTS (Section 16-13-60): 
1. Consistent with Comprehensive Plan. The proposed amendment shall be consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan. 
Applicant’s Response: The request is to rezone Lots 3 & 4, also known as 208 Crestone Ave.  This parcel 
is located on a steep slope facing the 700 block of 3rd and “L”. 

 
 The purpose of the Land Use Plan within the Comprehensive Plan is to specify locations in 

and around Salida where various land uses and intensities of use will be encouraged. The 
Plan indicates the subject property to be Medium Density Residential.  The R-2 zone is 
consistent with Medium Density Residential. 

 
2. Consistency with Purpose of Zone District. The proposed amendment shall be consistent 

with the purpose of the zone district to which the property is to be designated. 
Applicant’s Response: Presently, this property is zoned R-1.  However, the area is more compatible to the 
surrounding area zoned R-2.  Directly to the east of the property is the new county jail.  Across 3rd Street and to 
the west the neighborhood is zoned R-2. 

 
 The applicant is requesting a zone district designation of the subject property of Medium 

Density Residential (R-2).  The purpose of the R-2 zone district is to provide for residential 
neighborhoods comprised of detached single-family dwellings, duplex dwellings and multi-
family residences on smaller lots than are permitted in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) 
zone district, allowing for slightly greater overall densities.  Given the geography of the 
property, it is more associated with the nearby properties on Third Street than with the 
properties on Crestone that are zoned R-1 and should be developed in a way that is 
compatible with the Third Street neighborhood. 

 
3. Compatibility with Surrounding Zone Districts and Uses. The development permitted by 

the proposed amendment shall be compatible with surrounding zone districts, land uses and 
neighborhood character. 
Applicant’s Response: The property in question is located next to the county jail.  To the northwest of the 
property are smaller residential lots, an apartment, duplex dwelling, etc.  The rezoning of the property from R-1 to 
R-2 would be conducive and compatible to the neighborhood. 

 
 The zoning classification of R-2 is consistent with the zoning of adjacent properties along 

Third Street and would not be a detriment to the R-1 area along Crestone Avenue. 
 



Public Hearing Agenda Item 4, Page 3 of 3 

4. Changed Conditions or Errors.  The applicant shall demonstrate that conditions affecting the 
subject parcel or the surrounding neighborhood have changed, or that due to incorrect 
assumptions or conclusions about the property, one (1) or more errors in the boundaries shown 
on the Official Zoning Map have occurred. 
Applicant’s Response: In recent years there have been many changes in the neighborhood in question.  The 
immediate area is now comprised of the new county jail, new duplex dwellings, multi-family residences, smaller 
lots, etc. 

 
 This application is a result of the recent subdivision of the Chavez property which created 

the two lots in question that front on Third Street rather than Crestone Avenue.  The 
geographic separation of the two streets effectively makes these new lots part of the Third 
Street neighborhood rather than the Crestone neighborhood.  These two areas, though very 
close, do have distinctly different styles with smaller lots and some multi-family development 
in the Third Street neighborhood and mostly large single-family homes along Crestone 
Avenue. 

 
 
RECOMMENDED FINDINGS: 

1. That the application is in compliance with the review standards for map amendments 
because an R-2 zone district designation for this parcel implements the comprehensive plan 
and is compatible with zoning and use of nearby and neighboring properties. 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Based upon the observations, review standards, and findings outlined above, staff recommends the 
following: 
 
That the Commission recommends approval of the application to rezone the subject property from 
Single-Family Residential (R-1) to Medium Density Residential (R-2). 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
That the recommended findings be made and the recommended action be taken. 
 
 
 
Attachments: Chavez Minor Subdivision Plat 
  Application 





Notes from 3/4/2020 Neighborhood Meeting at Scout Hut regarding E. Crestone AH project/site: 

 

• Slow the process down 
• CHT should pay for the survey that was done 
• Make the property survey available to the public 
• Concern about lowering property values 
• Keep current property zoning  
• Will there be new setbacks? 
• What is the status of the CHT application? 
• What precedent will be set by vacation and re-zoning? 
• I question Salida’s affordable housing survey (does 700 respondents represent a critical mass 

that is acceptable?) 
• Is there any evidence of municipal workers leaving Salida because of being housing burdened? 
• Why doesn’t the project have rentals 
• Historically, Salida has a mix of expensive and less expensive houses 
• Get realtor input on how this project would affect current home values 
• What would be the effect to changing traffic pattern by vacation of part of Crestone? 
• Concern for impending recession & how this will affect the potential CHT buyer 
• Why was lot not offered for public sale? 
• Sample housing shown are generally objectionable to neighbors 
• Concerns about affordability due to excavation requirements 
• Tap fees for potential non-affordable housing will be lost under the CHT proposal 
• Concerns about increased traffic and fast Sheriff’s vehicles on emergency calls 
• Are CHT’s setbacks on this project the same as anyone else’s? 
• Would the ADU be income property for an affordable housing buyer? 
• HOA fees? How would that affect affordability? 
• Safety concerns due to increased traffic. 3rd Street is a corridor for traffic heading downtown. 
• Traffic study? 
• Project would drive traffic to Crestone & Grand Ave, both of which already have traffic issues 
• Fire and Police route concerns 
• Concern regarding neighbor’s vehicle access and egress with work trucks  
• Resident does not like the one-way street option for East Crestone 
• Also concerns about the turnaround if bottom of E. Crestone is made into a cul-de-sac 
• Residents at the meeting are unanimous in opposing CHT building on this lot 
• What happens to M Street? 
• Adjoining resident is upset that she didn’t get the option to purchase the subject property as 

“backdoor” to her property 
• Request to move Planning Commission date to April 27. 





 

  Page 1 of 2 

Office of Housing 
PO Box 699 

448 E. 1st Street, Suite 225 

Salida, CO 81201 

Phone (719) 530-2590 

www.ChaffeeCounty.org 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Date: May 27, 2020 
 
To: Salida City Council and Salida Planning Commission 
 
CC: Salida Administrator, Drew Nelson 
 Salida Mayor, P.T. Wood 
 Salida Community Development Director, Glen VanNimwegen 
 
 
Re:  Support for Permanently Affordable Housing Project on East Crestone 
 
 
Dear Esteemed Colleagues, 
 
It has been a pleasure to serve the City of Salida and all of Chaffee County as the Director of the 
Office of Housing for the past two years, and I commend Salida’s elected and appointed officials 
for the work you have done to increase the stock of affordable living units available to your 
residents.  
 
As our community works together to navigate through the novel Coronavirus pandemic, it is 
becoming more apparent to many  that housing insecurity in Chaffee County is very real, and 
that many of our residents are experiencing it for the first time – or for the first time in a long 
time.  The Office of Housing and the Department of Human Services are seeing an increase in 
the number of requests for rent and deposit assistance, and advocates in the affordable 
housing industry are preparing to see a wave of relocations and evictions among low-income 
renters in the very near future.  Therefore, the actions you are taking now to increase the 
availability of permanently affordable housing is more important than ever. 
 
I applaud your creativity in identifying publicly owned locations where housing might be 
appropriate and seeking out partnerships to increase Salida’s supply of permanently affordable 
housing.  The City owned parcel on East Crestone Avenue near M Street would be very difficult 
to bring into productive use without the creative approach you are taking.  The proposed 



 

  Page 2 of 2 

neighborhood improvements that could result from this plan, including eliminating confusing 
and unnecessary intersections and burying overhead powerlines, will benefit the entirety of the 
community. Those improvements will then allow the two city-owned parcels to be brought 
back into productive use, and through partnerships, will create permanently affordable 
housing.  
 
One of the best features of Salida is it’s inclusivity, and this location can be a prime example of 
integrating workforce housing into a rapidly increasing housing market.  The homes that will 
potentially occupy that space will provide their residents with easy access to the Salida trail 
system, schools, grocery and other shopping, as well as the rich cultural environment 
downtown, while remaining permanently affordable. 
 
The Office of Housing is poised to support this project in whatever capacity is appropriate, and I 
look forward to watching this collaboration unfold.  I offer gratitude for the creative approach 
you are taking to encourage the creation of additional permanently affordable homes. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Becky Gray 
Director of Housing, Chaffe County 
719-239-1398 
bgray@chaffeecounty.org 
 
 
 



Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comments
David Martin <dakotaw2k1@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 8:08 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

The city of Salida and Chaffee Housing Trust (CHT) are moving forward with their development

plans of donating land to CHT (intersection of Third Street and East Crestone Avenue), vacating a

section of East Crestone Avenue. The plan includes:

• Donating the land (section of East Crestone, section of M Street, and the two triangles of land) to

CHT.

• Removing a section of the existing avenue (East Crestone Avenue, recently paved with new

asphalt and street gutters – wasted taxpayer money).

•Creating one-way traffic flow on East Crestone and M Street (this will be Salida’s only one-way

street), which will end two-way access to homes on East Crestone Avenue and the Mesa.

• Reworking a section of West Third Street.

• Reworking M Street.

• Reworking East Crestone with a cul-de-sac (which will become a parking lot for the six proposed

affordable/low-income units) on the newly vacated section of land that the city of Salida plans to

donate to CHT.

CHT will also get reduced water tap fees, as per Salida’s Planning Commission (Bill Almquist).

Estimate of what is being donated by the city of Salida to CHT for affordable homes at the East

Crestone Avenue development site:

1. The land: $350,000.

2. Street rework: $150,000.

3. Reduced new water tap fees (normally $17,000 per tap) for six units: $51,000.

4. Moving of power lines: $25,000.

5. The survey/platting of the land: $3,000.

6. Time and labor of city of Salida Planning Commission, Public Works and street departments,

bidding of the street rework, meetings, etc.: $30,000.

7. Rezoning: $10,000.

8. Sidewalks: $20,000.



9. Property/building inspections: $5,000.

Estimate of donation/giveaway: $644,000.

Wow! This project is labeled as “affordable housing.” Affordable for whom? It’s affordable for the six

lucky families (chosen by CHT) that will get to live there and receive assistance if they can’t make

their house note. It becomes “affordable housing” because of the six-figure dollar donations.

I challenge City Treasurer Merrell Bergin to run the numbers and publish what the estimated dollar

amounts are of this project and the current expenditures to current date.

 

CHT should withdraw their application to vacate and rezone East Crestone and West Third Street

for “affordable housing.” The inclusionary ordinance provides for affordable housing in new

developments and subdivisions.

And as a safety issue: West Third street is already a busy road. Don’t introduce 50 trips per day by

the estimated 20 residents, six units and additional 12 cars onto this road.

 



Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comments, cont'd
David Martin <dakotaw2k1@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 8:12 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

The city needs to answer/address the concerns of Nancy:

 

CHT, council owe explanation

May 20, 2020

Dear Editor:

In an April 9 letter, Willie Dominguez made a bold claim: Chaffee Housing Trust (CHT) built eight

“affordable” units in the Two Rivers complex which were supposed to sell for $170,000, but actually

sold for $266,800.

If true, this is a scandal. CHT made a deal with the developer and Salida officials. In lieu of building

affordable housing themselves, the developer would deed this property to CHT to build affordable

housing. Were these units then sold at market value, not as “affordable”? What is the truth?

In an Oct. 26, 2018, Ark Valley Voice article, CHT Executive Director Read McCulloch said this

project is important because it’s the first time a project like this has been created in rural Colorado.

These units will be built and offered at 80 percent area median income – making home ownership

possible for first-time homebuyers. “That means we have gotten concessions so that the homebuyer

cost will be $170,000.” So, the promised $170,000 price tag claim is true.

What about the sale price? A check of the Chaffee County assessor’s website shows six of the eight

units sold between April 12, 2019, and May 30, 2019, for $266,800. (The other two were transferred

to ownership of “Read McCulloch-director.” Are they rentals?) Between the Oct. 26, 2018,

statements by McCulloch and the first sale six months later, the sale price increased an astounding

$96,800 per unit.

Where is enforcement from the city of Salida? Was there any language in the contract forcing CHT

to sell at the promised $170K? Was it known the sale price would be promised at $170K, then

jacked up to $266K just months later? Where did all that extra money go?

It might be a coincidence, but in the May 1 Mountain Mail McCulloch is quoted discussing the

current city of Salida plan to give CHT land at Third and Crestone to build five “affordable units”:



 

“He said development homebuyers’ current unit prices are around $180,000. They were $170,000 in

2019 and by the time construction possibly begins in 2021, prices could be as high as $190,000, but

they do not know yet.” Huh! He is still saying prices for his units were $170K in 2019, even though

this proved to be false.

CHT and Salida city government first promised us sun, moon and stars with the Salida Crossings

development. After an expensive special election in September 2018, Salida Crossings was never

built − and no one has ever explained why. The city and Mountain Mail have avoided this story like

the proverbial plague.

The Two Rivers “affordable” units were sold at 157 percent of the promised price.

Now we’re supposed to trust CHT with free land at Third and Crestone?

It appears to me Chaffee Housing Trust operates less like a nonprofit and more like a development

company. The only difference is the seed money and land are donated by taxpayers, and CHT

reaps the reward. Both CHT and Salida City Council owe a thorough explanation.

Nancy Dominick,

Salida

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

More E. Crestone public hearing comments
David Martin <dakotaw2k1@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 8:33 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

The following needs to be made available to all parties participating in any E. Crestone hearings/meetings to
ensure a fair and just decision is attained:

 

 

1.  Any and all prior records of any and all costs associated with street repairs, roadwork,
roadwork engineering, including any repaving for East Crestone Avenue within the last five
years.

 

2. Any and all records, communications, reports, studies, related to landslide hazard, land
slump, and appropriate mitigation of landslide and land slump hazards, and any and all
associated cost of mitigation including but not limited to geotechnical studies, hazard
insurance, retaining walls, etc.  

 

3. Any and all cost projections associated with the leveling of the proposed site at East
Crestone and West Third Street  to create a level building site. 

 

4. Any cost projections, estimates, communications, or other information related to
construction of a retaining wall related to the proposed project at East Crestone and West
Third Street.  Any and all communications, reports, or other information related to obtaining
hazard insurance to protect any and all structures from landslides or slump.

 

5.  Copy of any  geotechnical study of the proposed site at  East Crestone and West Third
Street, or any and all communications related to the stability or instability of the proposed
site, and the need for a  geotechnical study prior to any and all construction.

 

6.  Any and all records of any vehicle or pedestrian accidents at or near the the proposed
site at East Crestone and West Third Street.  Any and all traffic studies, communications,
reports, or other records describing or detailing pedestrian or vehicle  accidents at or near
the the proposed site at East Crestone and West Third Street or concerns related to the
safety of this location.



 

7: Any and all records communicating with Chaffee County Sheriff department regarding
traffic changes / impacts to East Crestone & West 3rd Street this housing project could
impact.

 

8: Any and all records regarding wildlife studies.

 

9: Any and all records regarding why prior attempts by the City of Salida to develope this
property was 

terminated or abandoned.

 

10: All real costs a private citizen would pay for utilities to develope a residential site. (not
reduced developer costs such as discounted water tap fees, Excel energy single source
francise fees, etc..).

 

11: Were any other potential developers of this project considered ?

 

12: Were other property offers to purchase this site considered current timeframe and
through previous years ?

 

13: Labor hours/cost of all City personnel and costs incurred by the city including attorney
fees, surveys, etc associated with the E. Crestone project.

 

 

 

 



May 18, 2020 

Salida Mayor and City Council members:                                                        
  
Recent arguments related to the proposed affordable housing units located at Crestone and 3rd Streets 
have motivated me to share my perspective.  Salidans have loudly voiced concerns about the need for 
housing for our teachers, medical support staff, firemen, cooks, waitresses, &……  The financial gulf 
between the rich and poor has widened, leaving many who now serve us on a daily basis with but one 
choice — to live miles from Salida where they are employed. 
  
 Salidans, we must not lose our blend of citizens — living next door to one another.  This highly respected 
virtue is one of the most attractive traditions that Salida has cherished for generations.  If we want to 
continue to enjoy the community spirit that makes Salida so attractive, we must share the space that is 
available with those who need it the most.  All of us, citizens and tourists alike, demand services that 
require low wage employees who, unfortunately, cannot afford to live in “their” town. 
  
When studying the city map, I smile at the peculiar design that has resulted from our forefathers 
decisions.  There are numbered & lettered streets going east/west & north/south  Then there are assorted 
named streets that create abrupt angles, abutting the original ones.  These intersections 
create  interesting street junctures. Traversing the maze when multiple cars appear is challenging. 
  
For safety reasons City Council and the Departments of Public Works and Police have redesigned a few 
of those intersections (Examples: along Teller at 5th/Park & 6th/C/Dodge).  More “triangles” exist across 
our city, creating unnecessary traffic as well as snow-plowing problems.  I consider these triangular 
footprints wasted use of space & encourage City Council to consider using more of the “triangles” for 
small affordable housing projects. 
  
When I first heard of the possibility of redesigning the Crestone/3rd Street intersection, I was delighted. 
There is very little space left within Salida’s perimeter for housing development.  This particular location is 
near downtown providing potential owners the opportunity to walk and/or bike to & from work so they 
don’t need duplicate vehicles. 
  
Some citizens complain that the “city” has done little to meet our housing crisis.  Now that they are 
considering assisting Chaffee Housing Trust with this project, citizens complain that the cost is coming out 
of their pockets.  I must remind all of you that NO Salida citizen pays property taxes to support the Salida 
city government.  
  
 Sales tax is the only portion that goes directly to running Salida.  That means that every person who 
spends money in Salida — Chaffee County citizens AND tourists — pay the exact same portion that 
Salida citizens pay to pave & plow our streets, maintain our parks & sidewalks, etc…….  How privileged 
Salidans are to have all those folks contributing to the support of our city.   
  
Older generations sometimes have a preoccupation with property rights at the expense of human 
rights.  We will be remembered by how we treat one another while we are on this planet, not by what we 
accumulate nor the view from the property we own. 
  
Eileen Rogers 

Salida Citizen 

1010 F Street 
539-4040 

 







June 2020 

Jane Ewing    718 W 3rd Street Unit A 

West 3rd Street and East Crestone Avenue 

When I see the parcel of land under consideration by the Chaffee Housing Trust 
(CHT) for reconfiguration to build affordable housing, it concerns me the number 
of added residents who would access W 3rd Street from their driveways. W 3rd 
Street is a thoroughfare already dangerously busy. My fear is not only for those 
who already travel on W 3rd Street, but for the future residents who will have no 
other way to leave home than to back directly onto the street. The CHT’s plans 
that have been publicly shared reveal that there is inadequate, or at best minimal 
space, for a driveway or place to park one’s car. I wonder if the CHT is taking into 
consideration the risk they will place on travelers using W 3rd Street, people who 
live on that street, and the future residents who will be housed in the planned 
units. 



Editor, Mountain Mail       June, 2020 

West 3rd Street and East Crestone Avenue 

I write to question the wisdom of the City Council’s and Planning Department’s 
consideration of giving away land in the 700 block of West Third Street to the 
Chaffee Housing Trust (CHT). If that happens, not only would the city of Salida 
accrue a large financial obligation by having to alter land, close a street, and 
relocate utilities, but it would allow the CHT to construct housing units that would 
exacerbate the already dangerous traffic flow along West 3rd Street, East 
Crestone, and M Streets. Should the City Council and Planning Department 
continue to pursue giving away the land in question to the CHT, I ask that they 
publicly list in detail the city’s financial obligations to do so and their traffic study 
report. 

Jane Ewing     718 West 3rd Street Unit A 



Editor, Mountain Mail       June, 2020 

West Third Street and East Crestone Avenue 

The construction of residential units on city owned property near the 

busy intersection on either side of East Crestone Avenue and West 

Third Street will result in a traffic safety issue. My concern, beyond that 

of the fiscal responsibility for the city to revamp streets and property, is 

safety. 

The corridor of West Third Street and Crestone Avenue is used 

extensively by vehicles, pedestrians, and cyclists. This traffic is impacted 

by cars, vans, and trucks that are parked along the edge of the 

throughway. That added congestion is compounded by delivery trucks 

that daily weave around the parked vehicles, pause to leave mail and 

packages, and reenter the street. County sheriff cars travel this 

corridor, as well. There are no sidewalks nor is there a bike path here. 

This area is not a typical neighborhood, where homes often have single 

or double car garages, added parking spaces in driveways, and 

sidewalks to accommodate pedestrians. A traffic survey may reveal that 

the traffic is not heavy enough to cause a concern. The tally, though, 

does not consider the additional use I noted above. My understanding 

is that the proposed new units may or may not have even a single car 

garage or a driveway wide enough for a second vehicle. If there are five 

units, we can expect that each active resident would have one or two 

vehicles that will leave and arrive multiple times each day onto and 

from the already well-used streets. 

My issue with the planned development is the location and the impact 

it will cause by reconfiguring the land. Added vehicles here will raise the 

potential for accidents in this already chaotic traffic area. I send this as 

an alert, a caution, and a protest. 

Jane Ewing     718 West Third Street Unit A 





Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

letter to P&Z
karen karnuta <karenkarnuta@gmail.com> Thu, Apr 23, 2020 at 11:02 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

Please get this to P&Z.
Karen

Karen Karnuta 
(Owner) 750 W 3rd Street

To The Salida Planning Commission.

I am one of the closest neighbors, the front door of my property faces Third Street directly across from the 
vacant triangle of land. 

I think this project will impact the neighborhood, and I think the density is high for the neighborhood. However, 
I support this project. 

I read a letter in the paper that said it will be “only” five houses. While five units is a drop in the bucket for what 
our city needs, to the five families who will live there it means everything. 

I know families who live in the Habitat houses, and families who live in the Housing Trust project in Two 
Rivers. The security, safety and comfort to these families makes all the difference. These families no longer 
have to worry about their rent going up, or having to move when their rental house is sold. Things many of us 
take for granted. 

Because of the difference secure housing will make in these families lives, I support this project though I 
believe it is not a perfect project. 

Karen Karnuta



Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

another q on the crestone project
karen karnuta <karenkarnuta@gmail.com> Thu, Apr 23, 2020 at 5:34 PM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

thanks for passing that on. I am asking you to also give this letter stating the same thing to the P&Z board. The main thing is
the testing, they may not need to be engineered depending on the results. As a builder in this neighborhood,  I have a fair bit
of experience with this sand and I would hate to see the foundations crack.
Thanks for your time answering all my questions today!

To the Salida Planning Commission --

This project will be a better built project if the soils are tested, and foundations engineered if required by the 
test results. As this is not a city requirement, I recommend it is added to the project approval as a requirement.

If you look at the house I own, 750 W 3rd, the foundation is good and the house has not moved in over a 
hundred years. If you look across M Street to the house on the other corner, that house has had significant 
movement and the foundation is cracked and the house (I have been inside) is more than 12" out of level. The 
two houses are about 80 feet apart and were likely built in a similar time period.

The sand underlying the project is very variable in its ability to support the weight of a house. It is quite 
different from the cobble (rocks and sand) that underly most of the construction in town.  

Karen Karnuta

[Quoted text hidden]



SUPPORT THE AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT AT 3RD AND M STREET IN SALIDA

Repeatedly, the citizens of Salida indicated in surveys that affordable housing is the #1 issue facing our 
community - not even close with any other issue raised in these surveys.  

Findings of Housing Needs Assessment (2016), conducted at the request of Chaffee County, Salida, 
Poncha Springs, and BV, outline the monumental task in creating affordable housing.   This assessment’s 
findings are:  2,426 dwellings are needed, between the 60 – 120% area median income (AMI) to meet 
the current need.  889 dwellings in this same AMI range are needed to meet the future growth needs.  

Understanding the need and hearing its citizens’ housing concerns, Salida committed to assisting in the 
development of affordable housing.  After considering all City-owned property, Salida determined that 
the property at 3rd and M Streets is the best location now for affordable housing construction.  Part of 
this decision is based on the fact that this land is deemed not useable by the City of Salida for another 
purpose.

The Chaffee Housing Trust has been determined by the Salida as a good partner for the construction of 
affordable housing at 3rd and M.  The CHT is a proven developer of affordable housing, having 
constructed the Old Stage Road Rowhouses (6 units sold and 2 units rented to Salida citizens at under 
65% AMI).  This project was done in partnership with Natural Habitats in the Two Rivers development, 
as part of Salida’s inclusionary housing ordinance.  

The CHT also partnered with Fading West, developer of The Farm community in Buena Vista, to 
purchase 7 dwellings, find qualified lower income buyers, support these buyers in becoming qualified for 
financing, and assisting them in closing.  Currently, 3 buyers have closed on their new homes in The 
Farm.  Another will close in June, 2020.  Four other units will close to buyers between June and October, 
2020.   The mean AMI for these homes is 70%.

In all of the above instances, the CHT obtained grants for down payment assistance, assuring that these 
homes were made available at below-market prices and affordable to lower income buyers.  Grants 
acquired by CHT to provide down-payment assistance to date have totaled $230,000.  All of these 
homes are legally protected, permanently-affordable homes in perpetuity to future buyers in the same 
AMI as the original buyers.  

Who are the buyers/renters of these CHT-assisted affordable homes?  

In Salida: 

 construction worker for a local builder
 12-year middle school teacher with family
 employee of Pure Greens
 emergency room hospital employee 
 single-mom-employee of a local manufacturer with family
 local medical office administrator
 Columbine Manor employee
 Essential grocery store worker



In BV:  

 first-year elementary school teacher
 Colorado Kayak Supply retail employee (closing in June)
 BV lumber yard employee
 BV Town employee.  

The affordable housing at 3rd & M is in keeping with Salida’s longtime tradition of diverse 
neighborhoods.  I urge citizens to support this project.

Ken Matthews, Vice-President, Chaffee Housing Trust



Page 1 of 2 
 

Merrell Bergin 
PO Box 868 

Salida, CO 81201-0868 
mberginco@gmail.com 

 
 
June 18, 2020 
 
Mr. Bill Almquist 
Planner 
City of Salida 
448 East 1st Street 
Salida, CO 81201 
 

Re: Right of Way Vacation and Rezoning Application 
East Crestone Avenue and Part Lot 4-6 Strip C of Eddy Brothers Addition 

Planning Commission Public Hearing June 22, 2020 
 
Mr. Almquist, Members of the Planning Commission: 
 
I am writing in support of the proposed right of way vacation and rezoning application 
for the subject parcel.  Beginning with the community meeting on March 4, 2020 at the 
Scout Hut, I have listened carefully to all sides of the proposed six-unit workforce housing 
development, to be built in the area of East Crestone Avenue, 3rd and M Streets.  The 
proposal is a prime example of creative and forward thinking on the part of City Council, 
Economic Development staff, the Planning Commission, Chaffee Housing Trust and other 
community stakeholders committed to helping fill a small piece of Salida’s critical housing 
gap.  It makes a statement that the City will not rest until more opportunities for affordable 
housing exist, one small (but significant) project at a time. 
 
As a downtown property owner and 16-year resident, I appreciate the desire for people to 
maximize and protect their interests.  The City is doing just that.  Vacating the right of way 
and consolidating the zoning of these unique parcels allows the City to actively achieve the 
highest and best use of its holdings.  This is not for anyone’s monetary gain, instead it merely 
exchanges raw dirt for the greater public good - for ALL Salidans.  As it stands today, these 
parcels are not useful to anyone and the right of way only encourages motorists to cut 
through the residential area on their way elsewhere.  How does that help anyone? 
 
Are there challenges with this plan?  Sure; if it were cookie-cutter easy, this project would 
have been done long ago.  Planning and other City departments have put a lot of effort into 
finding solutions to make this work.  The only area not fully addressed, that might need 
more attention is how to calm and redistribute vehicle traffic among West 3rd Street, Poncha 
Boulevard and Crestone Avenue, by the Courthouse.  Careful and holistic planning for 
pedestrian, bicycle and vehicle traffic in the area should be done in any case.  Traffic 
engineering, calming and enforcement solutions are well within our reach, making the entire 
area better and safer for all. 
 
Beyond simple self-interests, dollars and cents I would urge all decision makers and  the 
community at large to look at the heartfelt stories of their neighbor’s housing insecurities 

https://www.housinghealthchaffee.org/stories


Page 2 of 2 
 

that were presented on May 28 by The Chaffee County Housing + Health, Dinner and a Movie 
Series.  These are real people with real needs and it’s in our power to make a difference. 
 
In each of these personal stories, significant obstacles were overcome with creativity and just 
plain hard work.  In each case, creative partnerships greatly improved people’s lives and 
health, while the community as a whole benefits.  The Planning Commission can help the City 
meet stated its goals for improving housing security through affordability, while increasing 
this area’s property values and revitalizing a desirable in-town neighborhood overall. 
 
An amazing amount of speculation, poor assumptions, fearmongering and wild financial 
estimates have already been put to the public, from a handful of abutting neighbors who 
favor their own interests rather than sharing in a sense of partnership with their neighbors 
and the larger community.  This is not “win-lose”, it is a win for all. 
 
Tonight’s public hearing and those that follow will bring out the real costs, facts and figures 
and should put to rest the “Not in My Backyard” fear factor being cast on this creative effort.   
 
This hearing should conclude that the requests for vacation and rezoning meet existing 
safeguards and codes, are reasonable and proper.  Granting these actions will move the 
project forward again for public comment and another hearing, with accurate costs and 
detailed plans.  If technical issues are raised tonight, please make every effort to remediate 
them.  I urge you vote “yes” and continue the process. 
 
 
 
 
Merrell Bergin 
Tel. 303-601-1785 
 
 
VIA EMAIL to: bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com 

https://www.housinghealthchaffee.org/stories
https://www.housinghealthchaffee.org/stories


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone Public hearing signs are non-compliant
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Thu, Jun 11, 2020 at 1:03 PM
Reply-To: "mparmete@yahoo.com" <mparmete@yahoo.com>
To: "bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com" <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>
Cc: "harald.kasper@salidaelected.com" <harald.kasper@salidaelected.com>, Mike Pollock
<mike.pollock@salidaelected.com>, "dan.shore@salidaelected.com" <dan.shore@salidaelected.com>,
"jane.templeton@salidaelected.com" <jane.templeton@salidaelected.com>, "justin.critelli@salidaelected.com"
<justin.critelli@salidaelected.com>, "alisa.pappenfort@salidaelected.com" <alisa.pappenfort@salidaelected.com>,
Glen Van Nimwegen <glen.vannimwegen@cityofsalida.com>, Nina Williams <nwilliams@mdbrlaw.com>, Drew
Nelson <drew.nelson@cityofsalida.com>

One sign per property is required by code: "Notice shall be posted by the applicant on the subject property...." 

There are 2 applications for 2 properties being discussed, rezoning E. CRESTONE property and vacation. 
E. CRESTONE property that is going to be rezoned did not meet 15 day and applicant placement requirement
plus full disclosure. The 3rd W Public notice did not meet full disclosure requirement.

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android

On Thu, Jun 11, 2020 at 12:48 PM, Bill Almquist
<bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com> wrote:

For reference, I am attaching photos showing that the site was posted in multiple locations (only one location
is required by the Code) on Friday, June 5th. I am also attaching a photo of the replacement notice that I
constructed at the corner of W. 3rd and E. Crestone Ave. on Monday, June 8th, after I learned that the
postings had blown off in Saturday's "derecho." I also attempted to re-secure one of the other notices to the
stop sign, but it appears that sign fell down again. The sign at the corner of W. 3rd and E. Crestone Ave.
remains. 

On Thu, Jun 11, 2020 at 12:03 PM Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> wrote:
The city’s lack of transparency is appalling with respect to E Crestone vacation and adjoining property
rezoning and it is a travesty of civil and fair government.  The public hearing signs for the applications to
rezone and vacate are non-compliant to meet the 22 Jun Public Hearing.

The sign on E. Crestone (attached) was blown away last Saturday lasting less than 20 hours.  It was
replaced by Bill at 345 pm on Monday and was promptly blown up the street by wind.  It was placed in its
current state the next day by an elderly gentleman who walks up E. Crestone every day.  It looks like trash
in the ditch.

The notice posting has not met the 15-day requirement for public hearing nor was it posted in its current
state by the applicant.  The notice also did not mention the donation of land thereby not fully disclosing the
purpose of the public hearing. The above are violations of public hearing notice posting requirements.

It also used legalese most people do not understand.  Most people do not know that vacation of E.
Crestone means the street is going away which further exemplifies the City’s lack of transparency.

The following was sent to Bill Almquist on 8 June 2020:

One of your signs met its demise with the wind again this afternoon after you left.
I counted the hours the signs were up and took pictures. 
You did not meet the full 15 days required for public hearing notices being displayed on the property prior
to the public hearing.

https://go.onelink.me/107872968?pid=InProduct&c=Global_Internal_YGrowth_AndroidEmailSig__AndroidUsers&af_wl=ym&af_sub1=Internal&af_sub2=Global_YGrowth&af_sub3=EmailSignature
mailto:bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com
mailto:mparmete@yahoo.com


You also didn't fully disclose the full intent of vacation and rezoning ... eventual donation of land that
provides government services which is an illegal donation.
You also didn't make them sturdy or waterproof. 

QED: The 22 June meeting has to be moved.

Regards,
Michelle M Parmeter 



Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android

-- 
Bill Almquist
Planner

                                  
(719) 530-2634
bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com 

"M.S.H.G.S.D"

https://go.onelink.me/107872968?pid=InProduct&c=Global_Internal_YGrowth_AndroidEmailSig__AndroidUsers&af_wl=ym&af_sub1=Internal&af_sub2=Global_YGrowth&af_sub3=EmailSignature
mailto:bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 1.
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:47 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

 

Please be aware that Mayor’s and council’s behavior has instilled mistrust and lack of transparency with the
public by only hearing CHT’s side during the City Council meetings on 15 Oct 2019 and 16 Mar 2020. 

 

15 Oct 2019 council meeting did not include all parties as only CHT was represented.  The agenda item was
nebulous and didn’t invoke a reason for citizens to look further in the package: 

 

Agenda item 6.g  Request for Property Donation – Chaffee Housing Trust (Administration)

 

An average citizen would not be alarmed by this agenda item and would not consider looking at the package to
see if it impacts them.  The details of the agenda item were buried in a 31 MB package and found on page 193
of 219 pages further exemplifying the City’s lack of transparency. The package included a property survey that
would require the city to donate land to the abutting property owner not CHT.   City council present at this
meeting included Dan Shore and Cheryl Brown-Kovacic (council member at the time). Both have conflict of
interests.  Dan shows bias toward CHT as he is donator to CHT and Cheryl was on the CHT advisory board. 
Cheryl motioned to approve the request to begin vacation of the land.  All these behaviors further support a lack
of transparency from the City deepening mistrust.

 

16 March work session did not include all parties.  It was held 6 days after the Governor requested COVID
emergency disaster.  No teleconferencing options were provided for this meeting.  The meeting was biased
toward CHT as citizens being cautious about COVID spread were not provided an avenue to participate and
were discriminated. Read, CHT executive director, had the mayor and council’s undivided attention for over an
hour.  The opposition’s comments from the 4 Mar community meeting were not accurately presented by the
Planning Commission.  Recap of 4 March meeting  in the 16 March working session shows bias by using
“perceived” and not accurately reflecting the comment on affordable housing survey.

“Attendees were largely in opposition to the project due to perceived to property values, questioning the need of
affordable housing and implications for traffic and transportation.”

 

The opposition stated the survey did not accurately reflect the views of all Salida citizens.  A valid survey should
have 80% response rate.  The survey has a 12% response rate. The survey only asked if affordable housing
was an issue.  It did not ask if affordable housing means home ownership. It did not ask if people would prefer
to own or rent affordable housing. It did not ask the city to vacate a busy public street.  The following is the list
from 4 Mar meeting.  The city has not provided response and did not attempt to impartially acknowledge the
opposition:

 

Why is CHT not building rentals?



What were the criteria for determining available lots?

What lots did the City of Salida determine were available?

What does the timeframe or timeline look like?

Why is the property going to be rezoned?

That the project will lower our property values

That the survey that addresses affordable housing as a number one concern of Salida

Citizens does not reflect the views of Salida citizens accurately .

Clarity on the deed management and intergenerational transfer of deeds.

That the process is moving too fast.

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


E. Crestone Public hearing comment 2 
Inbox x 

 
Michelle Parmeter 
 

Wed, Jun 17, 7:48 AM (1 day ago) 
 
 
 to me 

 
 

The city continues to ignore the fact that the E. Crestone public hearing signs are non-

compliant.  They did not meet full 15 day posting period nor did they accurately describe the 

nature of the public hearing. The public notice signs further instill public mistrust as they do not 

draw the attention of passing cars, bikes or walkers.    The signs are 27” off the ground and are 

not visible to passing cars. They don’t even look like good garage sale signs.  See example of 

useful public notice signs. 

  

 



 

  

Please provided Chain of Custody of digital evidence that supports the pictures metadata were 

safe from secondary tamperring. 

  

One sign per property is required by code: "Notice shall be posted by the applicant on the subject 

property...."  

  

There are 2 applications for 2 properties being discussed, rezoning E. CRESTONE property and 

vacation.  

E. CRESTONE property that is going to be rezoned did not meet 15 day and applicant placement 

requirement plus full disclosure. The 3rd W Public notice did not meet full disclosure 

requirement. 

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android 

https://go.onelink.me/107872968?pid=InProduct&c=Global_Internal_YGrowth_AndroidEmailSig__AndroidUsers&af_wl=ym&af_sub1=Internal&af_sub2=Global_YGrowth&af_sub3=EmailSignature


  

On Thu, Jun 11, 2020 at 12:48 PM, Bill Almquist 
<bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com> wrote: 
For reference, I am attaching photos showing that the site was posted in multiple locations (only 

one location is required by the Code) on Friday, June 5th. I am also attaching a photo of the 

replacement notice that I constructed at the corner of W. 3rd and E. Crestone Ave. on Monday, 

June 8th, after I learned that the postings had blown off in Saturday's "derecho." I also attempted 

to re-secure one of the other notices to the stop sign, but it appears that sign fell down again. The 

sign at the corner of W. 3rd and E. Crestone Ave. remains.  

  

On Thu, Jun 11, 2020 at 12:03 PM Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> wrote: 

The city’s lack of transparency is appalling with respect to E Crestone vacation and 
adjoining property rezoning and it is a travesty of civil and fair government.  The 
public hearing signs for the applications to rezone and vacate are non-compliant to 
meet the 22 Jun Public Hearing. 
  
The sign on E. Crestone (attached) was blown away last Saturday lasting less than 
20 hours.  It was replaced by Bill at 345 pm on Monday and was promptly blown up 
the street by wind.  It was placed in its current state the next day by an elderly 
gentleman who walks up E. Crestone every day.  It looks like trash in the ditch. 
  
The notice posting has not met the 15-day requirement for public hearing nor was it 
posted in its current state by the applicant.  The notice also did not mention the 
donation of land thereby not fully disclosing the purpose of the public hearing. The 
above are violations of public hearing notice posting requirements. 
  
It also used legalese most people do not understand.  Most people do not know that 
vacation of E. Crestone means the street is going away which further exemplifies the 
City’s lack of transparency. 
  
The following was sent to Bill Almquist on 8 June 2020: 
  
One of your signs met its demise with the wind again this afternoon after you left. 
I counted the hours the signs were up and took pictures.  
You did not meet the full 15 days required for public hearing notices being displayed 
on the property prior to the public hearing. 
You also didn't fully disclose the full intent of vacation and rezoning ... eventual 
donation of land that provides government services which is an illegal donation. 
You also didn't make them sturdy or waterproof.  
  
QED: The 22 June meeting has to be moved. 
  
Regards, 
Michelle M Parmeter  

 

mailto:bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com
mailto:mparmete@yahoo.com


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 3
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:48 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

Even though the code only requires letters go to properties 175 ft from subject property, the city has further
instilled mistrust by not making it clear to the Mesa and west-side neighborhoods that the proposed  Crestone
corridor to/from downtown is being eliminated and they will be impacted. 

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 4
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:49 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

 

 

City council approved the motion for city staff to begin the application process for E. Crestone vacation on 15
October 2019. The section of land proposed to be vacated in this motion is different than the E. Crestone
vacation application proposed section of land submitted by City of Salida/Chaffee Housing Trust (CHT).  The
difference between the land section in what was approved with Council motion and what is part of the vacation
application is a piece of land that abuts a private property owner.  The action by the City of Salida to begin
vacation of land that was not approved in the 15 October motion and to change the section of land in the
vacation application to benefit CHT is unethical and shows blatant bias toward CHT. Had the City of Salida kept
with the approved by motion land vacation section, the City would have to quick claim deed the land to the
abutting property owner. Since the city is both the applicant and approver of this application, they are the plaintiff
and judge at the same and just talking about the application in City offices/staff meetings without the defendants
(concerned citizens) being present is also unethical. 

 

Sec. 16-6-130. - Vacation of recorded plat, right-of-way or easement.
(2) Quitclaim Deed. Whenever the City approves an application vacating a public right-of-way, the
City shall provide abutting landowners with a quitclaim deed for the vacated lands. Each abutting
landowner shall be deeded that portion of the vacated right-of-way to which the owner's land is
nearest in proximity.

 

According Colorado Constitution Article XXIX Ethics in Government Section 1c, local government officials or
employees shall avoid conduct that is in violation of their public trust or that creates a justifiable
impression among members of the public that such trust is being violated.

 

Colorado Constitution Article XXIX – Ethics in Government

Section 1. Purposes and findings.

(1) The people of the state of Colorado hereby find and declare that:

 

(a) The conduct of public officers, members of the general assembly,

local government officials, and government employees must hold the

respect and confidence of the people;

(b) They shall carry out their duties for the benefit of the people of the



state;

(c) They shall, therefore, avoid conduct that is in violation of their

public trust or that creates a justifiable impression among members of

the public that such trust is being violated;

 

It is the duty of all public servants to ensure that the public's money is spent as efficiently as possible and
that programs are provided effectively, without discrimination or prejudice, with transparency and without
waste of money or resources

 

Although CHT and the City have made E. Crestone about affordable housing to feed on the goodwill of citizens,
E. Crestone vacation opposition is not about to have or to not have affordable housing. It is about public safety,
fiscal responsibility and ethics.

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 5
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:50 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

 

E. Crestone opposition is not about to have or to not have affordable housing.

While data will support that Salida needs affordable housing, the fiscal and safety data does not support it on E.
Crestone. Providing affordable housing is the right thing to do but E. Crestone is the wrong place. In addition to
public safety and fiscal responsibility issues surrounding the vacation and rezoning of property, there is already
affordable housing 1000 ft from the projected development site (HUD housing at Mesa/Crestone).  This section
of the city is already “scattered” with affordable housing.  The development code needs to reflect that all
neighborhoods equally share the responsibility of affordable housing scattering. 

CHT and the City unfortunately has made E. Crestone about affordable housing to feed on the sympathy of
goodwill.  The City’s benevolence and emotions have succumbed to believing E. Crestone development is
viable location for affordable housing. The affordable housing platform cannot be an excuse to ignore public
safety and fiscal responsibility.  

 

Fiscal responsibility

       Applicant screening process 

Research should be done on organization’s processes and practices before donating to that organization. 
Noble cause alone cannot be grounds for donations.  Donations should not be given to an organization with
processes susceptible to fraud and that are not equitable.  

CHT’s applicant screening process has been recently been abused and is susceptible to fraud.

The following screen shots have been redacted for the individual’s name; however, the name of the applicant is
public knowledge due to our county tax assessor database, county website and social media.  

The applicant is the BV lumberyard employee mentioned in the 27 May 2020 Mountain Mail editorial by Ken
Matthews.  The applicant is a 21-year-old male. The BV lumberyard employee bought the CHT house on 27
March 2020, quit his lumberyard job on 3 Apr 2020 and started as a Chaffee County Detention officer on 6 Apr
2020.  The Chaffee County Detention officer job pays $42K/year which is over the minimum income allowed for
CHT housing for a single person.  It takes more than 10 days to get hired by the county as a detention officer.  A
screening process that allows this is not fair to those that really need help … even non-low income individual get
the opportunity to buy a house at age 21.

       Cost

The land value alone ranges from $360K to $430K.  Harald is selling his .16 acres on Hillside for $144K. The tax
value on .17 acres in town is around $120K.

E. Crestone property is .17 acres

E. Crestone vacated street is .18 acres

M. Street property is .17 acres  (from county tax accessor)



 

P.T’s requirement for selecting viable lots around town were that they were shovel-ready. Rezoning, vacating a
street and moving utilities does not constitute shovel-ready.  The citizens asked for the requirements for
selecting viable lots numerous times and we have not been given an answer.

Drew Nelson’s comment that E. Crestone is an “odd” angle so it must go away is not a valid argument.  There
are at least a half dozen “Bermuda” triangles around town … some of them with parks. Parks are shovel-ready.

 

Public Safety

o            E. Crestone is the most natural flowing corridor to/from downtown to/from the Mesa. It is the natural
extension of Highway 160.   It is the least restricted corridor as well: no stop signs or yield signs.

o            Traffic study performed on E. Crestone is invalid due to decrease activity in these pandemic times. Any
numbers from the traffic study should be doubled or tripled to accurately reflect vehicular traffic volumes.  The
traffic study also does not count any pedestrian or bicycle traffic. 

o            You are taking away a major traffic route from the Mesa and routing vehicles and cars through a
congested road (Crestone) in front of the courthouse and county buildings as well as through an unsafe
intersection (Crestone and Poncha).

o            Routing traffic via H 291 is longer is distance and traverses a busy section of 1st Street. 

o            Last week, we saw 4 Sheriff vehicles and 2 Salida police vehicles scream up E. Crestone in a period of
2 hours.

o            A minute increase in response times increases mortality by between 8 (measured 1 day after the initial
incident) and 17% (measured 90 days after the initial incident).  By eliminating E. Crestone, you are increasing
the emergency response time from the fire station to the Mesa neighborhoods.  Does the city really want to be
liable for the increase of mortality?

o            By eliminating E. Crestone,  you putting vehicular, pedestrian and bicycle traffic to/from the Mesa in
danger.

 

While I applaud your intent to help affordable housing issues, affordable housing cannot trump public safety or
fiscal responsibility. 

 

Michelle M Parmeter 

 







 



Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android

 

 

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.onelink.me/107872968?pid=InProduct&c=Global_Internal_YGrowth_AndroidEmailSig__AndroidUsers&af_wl=ym&af_sub1=Internal&af_sub2=Global_YGrowth&af_sub3=EmailSignature
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


E. Crestone public hearing comment 6 
Inbox x 

 
Michelle Parmeter 
 

Wed, Jun 
17, 7:51 AM 
(1 day ago) 

 
 
 

to me 

 
 

  

City council approved the motion for city staff to begin the application process for E. Crestone 

vacation on 15 October 2019. The section of land proposed to be vacated in this approved 

motion (see first image) is different than the E. Crestone vacation application proposed section of 

land submitted by CHT/City of Salida (see second image).  The difference between the land 

section in what was approved by Council motion and what is part of the vacation application is a 

section of land that abuts a private property owner (see third image).  The action by the City of 

Salida to begin vacation of land that was not approved in the 15 October Council motion and to 

change the section of land in the vacation application to benefit CHT is unethical and shows 

blatant bias toward CHT. Had the City of Salida kept with the approved by motion land vacation 

section, the City would have to quick claim deed the land to the abutting property owner  (Pryor 

resident). It is also a conflict of interest for any public servant to take a premeditated impartial 

position on any application.  

  

City of Salida Municipal Code Sec. 16-6-130. - Vacation of recorded plat, right-of-way or 

easement.  

(2) Quitclaim Deed. Whenever the City approves an application vacating a public right-of-way, 

the City shall provide abutting landowners with a quitclaim deed for the vacated lands. Each 

abutting landowner shall be deeded that portion of the vacated right-of-way to which the owner's 

land is nearest in proximity. 

  

According Colorado Constitution Article XXIX Ethics in Government Section 1c, local 

government officials or employees shall avoid conduct that is in violation of their public trust or 

that creates a justifiable impression among members of the public that such trust is being 

violated. 

  

Colorado Constitution Article XXIX – Ethics in Government 

Section 1. Purposes and findings. 

(1) The people of the state of Colorado hereby find and declare that: 

(a) The conduct of public officers, members of the general assembly,  

local government officials, and government employees must hold the  

respect and confidence of the people; 

(b) They shall carry out their duties for the benefit of the people of the  

state; 

(c) They shall, therefore, avoid conduct that is in violation of their  



public trust or that creates a justifiable impression among members of  

the public that such trust is being violated; 

  

Reference Colorado Independent Ethics Commission 

handbook: https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/sites/default/files/IEC_Ethics_Handbook_2016.pdf 

  

It is the duty of all public servants to ensure that the public's money is spent as efficiently as 

possible and that programs are provided effectively, without discrimination or prejudice, with 

transparency and without waste of money or resources. Adding to the previous list from Friday’s 

email, affordable housing cannot trump public safety, fiscal responsibility or a code of ethics.  I 

want to believe I can trust the City of Salida to move in the ethical direction with respect to the 

E. Crestone vacation application.  

  

Michelle M Parmeter  

 

https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/sites/default/files/IEC_Ethics_Handbook_2016.pdf


 

 



 

 



Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E Crestone public comment 7
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:50 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

CHT housing is not affordable.

Even with land donations, the price per square foot for CHT housing is unaffordable:

Salida – Two rivers house sold on 19 April 2019 for $266.8K with 828 sq ft comes to $322/sq ft

BV- The Farm house sold on 27 March 2020 for $213.5 K with 930 sq ft comes to $230/sq ft

The cost per square foot to build a basic home in Colorado is $150/sq ft.  Any developer or individual given free
land should be able build a house for less than $230-322/sq ft.   Is a nonprofit corporation profiting from this
difference in cost per square foot, $140K and $74K, respectively for the homes mentioned above? Is this really
affordable?  You decide.

Whether you are an individual,  business or municipality, donations and grants to organizations should not be
given on noble cause alone.  In the case of the City of Salida:

•         What oversight/due diligence is done by City of Salida before donating to any organization?

•         Where is City of Salida’s checklist used as criteria for screening eligibility of organizations requesting
donations?

•         What percentage of the donations goes toward salaries and operational expenses for the organization? 

•         What is the organization’s five-year plan for growth (employees and assets)?

•         Is the business model of the organization fiscally sound, sustainable and resilient?

•         Does the organization protect personal individual information according to PII (Personally Identifiable
Information) cyber security best practices?

 

Money used to provide donations and grants to organizations comes from taxpayers (income, property and
sales tax).  CHT’s request for E. Crestone land donation by the City of Salida is misuse of the affordable
housing platform and taxpayer benevolence.  City council is being negligent by donating to any organization that
doesn’t adhere to consistent, objective, safe and fair business processes.

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 8
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:50 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

The applications submitted by Chaffee Housing Trust (CHT) for vacation of E Crestone and rezoning the
collective land to R2 should be null and void:

https://cityofsalida.com/wp-content/uploads/3.16.20-Packet.pdf

The applications were signed only by CHT executive director on 6 February 2020 as applicant/agent. The
applications were submitted to the City by CHT just before the 4 March 2020 community meeting. The City of
Salida was hand-written in as co-applicant on the applications sometime after the submission by CHT. The
owner signature block was left unsigned.

CHT is not the owner of the land therefore should not be able to request vacation or rezoning of land.  The land
is owned by the citizens of Salida. CHT is a non-profit corporation with over $1.5M in assets in 2018 (obtained
from 2018 tax form 990). City council is overstepping their boundaries by sole-sourcing affordable housing
development to CHT.

The applications cherry pick sections from the 2013 city comprehensive plan as the reason for
vacating and rezoning; however, the plan clearly states, “The City of Salida does not directly provide
affordable housing for the community.”  How much more direct can you get than donating citizen-
owned land, city services and city labor?  A comprehensive plan is not law … rather it is a guide of
vision.

https://cityofsalida.com/wp-content/uploads/Complete-Comprehensive-Plan.pdf

H-II.1 – Promote new development projects that contain a variety of housing, including affordable
units.

Action H-II.1.a – Any residential development at the Vandaveer Ranch should include a significant
affordable housing component.

Action H-II.1.b – Consider adoption of an inclusionary zoning ordinance.

Action H-II.1.c – Seek changes to the Land Use Code to ensure that affordable housing is
interspersed throughout the city, maintaining diversity in existing neighborhoods.

The comprehensive plan does not recommend vacating a busy street and donating city assets,
services and labor for affordable housing.

The planning commission meeting scheduled for May 26th to review these applications should be
canceled due to the invalid submission of applications by CHT or at the very least postponed due to
the state order requiring group gatherings be less than 10 people.

Rezoning and vacating of land requires a major impact review by the City Council. If indeed the city continues to
review these invalid applications, the City Council should recuse themselves due to conflict of interest based on
their lack of impartiality (non-signatory co-applicant) and conspiracy of personal agendas.  We live in a
democratic society. The council cannot be the judge, jury and executioner for these applications. Where are the
checks and balances in this process if City council can give away city land and services without due process?

 

https://cityofsalida.com/wp-content/uploads/3.16.20-Packet.pdf
https://cityofsalida.com/wp-content/uploads/Complete-Comprehensive-Plan.pdf


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 9
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:53 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

The application for vacation of E. Crestone/rezoning of land to R2 and subsequent donation of land to CHT
should be stopped due to the following reasons:

1. E. Crestone does serve governmental purposes. A City-owned utility sewer line runs underneath it.   This
contradicts Nelson’s statement in the 1 May 2020 Mountain Mail article: “Nelson cited Colorado Revised
Statutes 31-15-713 when he said real estate owned by a municipality not used for governmental
purposes may be transferred via ordinance. Since there has been no governmental use of the property in
question, it is eligible to be transferred by ordinance.”

2. A traffic study conducted during Stay/Safer at home Executive Orders is being used to support the
vacation of E. Crestone.  It is not a valid traffic study due to COVID-19 and the closing of Chaffee County
to tourism.

3. The vacation causes injury to the surrounding neighborhoods.  It is non-compliant with Municipal Code
Section 16-4-110: “… shall not cause undue traffic congestion, dangerous traffic conditions or
incompatible service delivery, parking or loading”

a. Increases traffic/parking on an already busy street
b. Re-routes Mesa traffic to Crestone Ave which is already burdened with traffic/parking issues

around the courthouse and county buildings.
c. Lacks realistic/safe residential parking for the proposed units.  Even though city code only

requires 1 parking space/unit, actual parking space/unit usage is closer to 2-3. Proposed residents
will have to park additional vehicles somewhere on 3rd street and walk/cross on an unsafe street.

4. The donation of city land and services is not fiscally prudent or legal.
5. The use of our electric franchise fee fund collected from Exel Energy(1% of our energy bills) to help with

undergrounding current utilities for the site needs to be prevented.   This money is for use by all residents
to assist with undergrounding utilities.

Instead of cramming six 35 ft tall buildings on .17 acres and jeopardizing the safety of our citizens in
surrounding neighborhoods, the land on E. Crestone should be designated as a pollinator garden perhaps to
commemorate our City’s fallen civil servants. The land has 7 trees and native rabbitbrush which is beneficial to
migrating butterflies.  We need more green zones in Salida and less structures polluting our skyline.

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 10
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:54 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

 

In the Friday February 27th, 2020 Mountain Mail, there was an article outlining Chaffee Housing Trust’s meeting
on Thursday March 5th during which CHT plans on giving updates on recent activities.  What the article fails to
mention is a major request of CHT that is in the works:

The CHT is applying to have the City-owned lots (triangles) on either side of E. Crestone Ave where
intersects 3rd St. donated to the CHT. This would include the vacation of that short section of E.
Crestone between 3rd and M. The lot created would allow the construction of 5 units + and ADU on the
south side of the lot, backed up to the east side for affordable housing.

On October 15, 2019, the council unanimously approved vacation of E. Crestone Ave without a no-injury, traffic
or emergency response impact assessment. CHT was the only side represented in the 15 Oct meeting. In early
November 2019, the city had the property surveyed at the city’s expense.  In late February 2020, the city started
removing street signs on W 3rd Street.   CHT is announced the development of that property for affordable
housing on March 4th, 2020 at 600 PM in the Scout Hut.  CHT further continued development discussion without
opposing parties at the 16 March 2020 City council work session.

Property values surrounding the lots average over $500K.  The average price of the affordable housing will be
$265K.  A 2017 Stanford affordable income housing study indicates that housing of similar value surrounding
affordable housing does not see a negative impact; however, surrounding housing that is valued well-above the
affordable housing value does see a negative impact to value.

The 2018 inclusionary housing ordinance requiring 12.5% affordable homes is for new annexations and
developments of 5 or greater units.  Salida has plenty of large undeveloped zones that will provide affordable
housing due to the inclusionary housing ordinance.  Decisions by the council around affordable housing need to
be fair, informed and least impactful to its citizens.

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 11
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 8:49 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

Please explain why Salida Municipal code does not explicitly state which decisions the
city considers quasi-judicial.  This is best practice.

Does the City of Salida have a published code of ethics? If not, why? Does the city have
certified ethics training for its personnel?

Please explain why Salida Mayor and City council did not ask if opposing party was
represented at the 15 Oct 19 and 16 Mar 20 council meetings.

By not asking, these meetings even though they were public are analogous to a judge
allowing court proceedings to occur without opposing council.

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986




Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

FW: Letter of support for affordable housing
1 message

Glen VanNimwegen <glen.vannimwegen@cityofsalida.com> Mon, Jun 1, 2020 at 10:13 AM
To: bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com

 

 

 

              Glen Van Nimwegen, AICP

       Community Development Director

 

From: robert weisbrod [mailto:weisbr9@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Sunday, May 31, 2020 8:45 PM
To: glen.vannimwegen@cityofsalida.com
Subject: Le�er of support for affordable housing

 

 

submit.

 

Dear Editor,

            I ask your readers to support the efforts to create affordable housing in Salida, including the East
Crestone street vacation to create a buildable lot. As a result of home ownership through the Chaffee Housing
Trust, I’ve been able to stay in my current job at the hospital. As a renter, it was getting too expensive for me to
stay in Salida and I would have left town. Instead, I’m not stressed about getting kicked out of my place because
they are going to sell it, or raise the rent yet again to where I can’t afford it. My home is a lot nicer than rentals
I’ve lived in. I’m getting to know my neighbors here, which didn’t happen in a rental. I’m developing community
with other homeowners, I can garden here, and I have stability, socially and financially with fixed monthly
housing payments that will not go up.

mailto:weisbr9@yahoo.com
mailto:glen.vannimwegen@cityofsalida.com


            Employees that work here should be able to live here. It is good for businesses because workers stay
longer. They do less commuting (less environment impact). Workers who live in the community spend most of
their money in the community, contributing to the tax base, supporting local businesses. As a percentage of their
income, they spend more than wealthy residents and visitors. Moderate amounts of tax dollars should be spent
on supporting workforce. Tax dollars are spent beautifying the city for tourists, on roads, schools, and other
essential things. Aren’t workers essential to our economy? 

Please, let’s help out our local employees and our community, we’ll all be happier in the end. 

Robert Weisbrod

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone

https://overview.mail.yahoo.com/?.src=iOS




Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

East Crestone Avenue Right of Way Vacation
Gregory Smith <gsmith@cruzio.com> Fri, Jun 19, 2020 at 11:50 AM
To: bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com
Cc: gsmith@cruzio.com

Bill,

 

I have to object to this complete fiasco.  Taking a highly used city street out of use and giving it away to private
ownership is ultimately the worst planning proposal that I have seen in my years of being an architect.  The
street also functions as a public utility corridor that will now have those public utilities bisect private property. 
 The number of issues and problems that this creates destroys any semblance of logic for the contrived benefits
this action will offer.  I’m sorry that the reputation of the Planning Department along with the Planning
Commission, and City Council will be diminished if this action goes thru.

 

Gregory Smith

20 Trailside Circle

Salida, Colorado 81201

 

(831) 247-2219

gsmith@cruzio.com

 

https://www.google.com/maps/search/20+Trailside+Circle+Salida,+Colorado+81201?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/20+Trailside+Circle+Salida,+Colorado+81201?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:gsmith@cruzio.com






Estimated City of Salida Contributions Related to Conceptual CHT Affordable Housing Development:
(Location: Corner of W. 3rd Street/M Street/East Crestone Ave)

Street Configuration Option 1:                                              
(E. Crestone Ave Cul-de-sac & M Street Closed and 
Replaced with Pedestrian Accessway/Open Space): 

Street Configuration Option 2:                              
(M Street Realignment and Regrade)

Expended to 
Date?

Appraised Land Value* $122,000* $122,000* No

Cost of Appraisal $3,700 $3,700 Yes

Site Survey $1,600 $1,600 Yes

Full Engineering & Design $7,000 $7,000 No

Right-of-way Improvements  $75,000 - $100,000 $90,000 - $115,000 No

Undergrounding of Electrical Lines** $80,000** $80,000** No

Totals $289,300 - $314,300 $304,300 - $329,300

*Appraised value is likely to increase if rezoning and right-of-way vacation applications are approved

Created 06/18/2020

**The City has discretion to use reserve funds from Xcel Energy's franchise fee specifically for this purpose, often in coordination with anticipated development. 
The underground fund currently has approximately $1.2 million available. These funds can only  be used for undergrounding of electrical facilities and are not 
reimbursable to the City.



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NO. ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

ITEM:  

Approval of Ordinance 2020-11: An ordinance to vacate a segment of the East Crestone Avenue 
right-of-way adjacent to West Third Street, totaling approximately .18 acres.  

REQUEST: 

The request is to vacate approximately 7,710 square feet (.18 ac) of the East Crestone Avenue 
right-of-way, for the purpose of consolidating the two adjoining City of Salida-owned properties into 
one contiguous site. 

APPLICANTS:  City of Salida- 448 E. 1st Street, Salida, CO 81201 (owner and applicant) and 
Chaffee Housing Trust- P.O. Box 692, Buena Vista, CO 81211 (co-applicant).  

LOCATION:  The eastern-most extent of E. Crestone Ave. between West 3rd Street and M Street. 
A survey plat and legal description is included with the application packet. 

BACKGROUND: 

City Council has identified the need for affordable housing (as stated in the 2016 Chaffee County 
Housing Needs Assessment) as one of its priority issues to address. That priority was reaffirmed 
as recently as this spring’s Council retreat, and staff has been working to implement such actions. 

5.d.



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NO. ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

On July 16, 2019, Council directed staff to begin discussions with the Chaffee Housing Trust 
(CHT) regarding the potential transfer of City-owned property for the purpose of developing 
affordable housing units. Following this direction, staff began working with CHT to look at the 
feasibility of utilizing City-owned land at the intersection of E. Crestone Ave and W. 3rd Street. On 
October 15, 2019, Council directed staff to initiate applications for the vacation of the subject 
portion of the E. Crestone Avenue right-of-way and rezoning of the parcel which abuts E. Crestone 
Avenue. The aim was to create a contiguous parcel with one common zoning designation that 
could be used to create affordable housing units. CHT and staff then began working to develop a 
concept plan for the potential future parcel that could accommodate up to 5 primary residential 
units, plus 1 ADU, as allowed by code. 

The applications for the vacation of right-of-way and rezoning were submitted on February 6, 
2020. On March 4, 2020, the City of Salida and the Chaffee Housing Trust hosted a meeting for 
neighbors and other interested parties at the Scout Hut to present ideas and hear input from 
residents regarding the potential project. Neighbors’ concerns and questions included whether 
there is an actual need for affordable housing, the potential impact to property values, the potential 
loss of vehicular access to/from Crestone Mesa, costs to the public, and potential increases to 
existing traffic, among others. A few attendees expressed some support for the project. Notes 
from that meeting are included in the packet, and some of the input factored into the eventual 
concept design that is attached to this report.  

On March 16, 2020, City Council and Planning Commission held a joint conceptual review of the 
applications and potential project, to ask questions and provide feedback. Following a couple of 
postponements due to various factors, including: the request of neighbors, COVID-19 restrictions, 
and the need for additional information regarding site design and adjacent street improvements, 
the subject application went in front of Planning Commission for a public hearing and 
recommendation on June 22, 2020. Their recommendations are included at the end of this report. 

OBSERVATIONS AND COMMENTS: 

1. The applicants have requested that approximately 7,710 square feet of East Crestone Avenue
be vacated to eliminate the intersection of E. Crestone Avenue and W. 3rd Street. Per
Colorado state statute, the portions of the vacated right-of-way would be conveyed via
quitclaim deed to the parcels that are nearest in proximity—in this case, the two City-owned
properties north and south of the right-of-way proposed for vacation.

2. The general purpose of the right-of-way vacation request is to consolidate the adjoining City-
owned parcels north and south of said portion of right-of-way, to make the site available for
infill development. Specifically, the City of Salida and the Chaffee Housing Trust (CHT)—a

5.d.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 

local affordable housing developer—have been in discussions about developing the site with a 
mix of for-sale and rental units (up to six total units, including one accessory dwelling unit) to 
meet a portion of the city’s affordable housing need. A copy of the latest conceptual site plan, 
created by CHT in consultation with City staff, has been provided in order to determine the 
feasibility of development and is included later in this document, for reference. However, no 
specific development plan is currently being proposed, nor does approval of this right-of-way 
vacation request guarantee any sort of transfer of property. Any such development would also 
require a future Limited Impact Review process that is separate from this application. Final 
details of any transfer and the responsibilities of each party would likely be defined by a 
subsequent development agreement. 

 
3. It is noted that the City generally discourages roadways that meet at acute angles, such as 

what currently exists at the intersection of E. Crestone Ave. and W. 3rd Street. These angles 
often create hazardous vehicular movements in and out of intersections. 

 
4. The City of Salida has also submitted a separate application for rezoning of the adjacent City-

owned parcel south of the right-of-way proposed to be vacated—from Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) to Medium-Density Residential (R-2). It should be emphasized, however, that 
the rezoning request is independent from this right-of-way vacation request. It is acknowledged 
that the rezoning, along with the right-of-way vacation, would facilitate the creation of one 
contiguous site that could be developed in accordance with the standards of the R-2 zoning 
district.    

 
5. A similar right-of-way vacation request was made in 2011, with M Street proposed to remain 

open for access to the remainder of E. Crestone Ave. That request was denied based on 
concerns about the slope of M Street and public input in opposition to the vacation. The current 
application and site designs attempt to address the safety issues via two distinct street 
configuration/access options that are discussed below. The current application also lays out 
more clearly the specifics of the conceptual development being discussed for the overall site—
though, as mentioned above, any such proposal would require subsequent review.   

 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
 
Though not explicitly required for the purpose of review of this right-of-way vacation application, 
staff has attached to this report relevant financial information regarding the potential development 
of the proposed affordable housing project, for context. The document includes estimated costs to 
the City of Salida for related street improvements and design, current value of the city-owned lots, 
as well as additional expenses required as part of preparing the applications.    
 

5.d.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 

REVIEW STANDARDS FOR VACATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY (Sec. 16-6-130): 
 
(1) Evaluation standards. The following items shall be considered in evaluating the vacation of a 

recorded plat, right-of-way or easement outlined below: 
 
i. Access to public road.  No roadway shall be vacated so as to leave any adjoining land 

without a means of access to another public road. 
 

 No adjoining lands would be left without a means of access to another public road, as 
both City-owned parcels front on W. Third St. and said frontage would be expanded for 
both parcels via the right-of-way vacation and subsequent property conveyance.  
 

 Only four properties in the vicinity (110-140 E. Crestone Ave) have designated parking 
access off of E. Crestone Ave, one-half block west of the subject right-of-way. If the 
eastern-most portion of E. Crestone Ave (subject property) were to be vacated, those 
properties could still be accessed via M Street and Crestone Avenue.  
 

 Chaffee Housing Trust, with input from City staff, has provided the conceptual site plans 
below showing two feasible options for future street configurations in the immediate 
vicinity:  
 
Option 1 shows the closure (not vacation) of M Street from W. 3rd St. to E. Crestone Ave. 
and construction of a cul-de-sac at the new end of E. Crestone Ave. This option also 
proposes a pedestrian sidewalk winding its way through the M Street right-of-way 
between W. 3rd St. and E. Crestone Ave. with surrounding landscaping. If such a 
development were to materialize, the four properties on E. Crestone Ave. (along with 
other properties in the vicinity) could still be accessed via Crestone Avenue and other 
nearby roads. Staff has indicated that signage would be required at the top of E. Crestone 
Avenue to advise motorists of the “dead-end” nature of the street. This option would 
reduce vehicular traffic on E. Crestone Ave by eliminating the access from W. 3rd St.  

 
Option 2 shows the realignment/improvement of M Street, kept open between W. 3rd St. 
and E. Crestone Ave., eliminating a potentially hazardous slope on that roadway. If such 
a development were to materialize, the four properties on E. Crestone Ave. (along with 
other properties in the vicinity) could still be accessed via M Street and other nearby 
roads. A conceptualized drawing of the reconfigured M Street, shown from its intersection 
with W. 3rd Street, is also attached at the end of this report.  

 
 

5.d.



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NO. ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

Street Configuration Option 1 

Street Configuration Option 2 

5.d.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 

 
Staff finds that the proposed right-of-way vacation will not leave any adjoining land without 
public road access. Furthermore, the applicant has demonstrated that there are feasible street 
configurations that would still provide such access if the City-owned parcels (plus the right-of-
way proposed to be vacated) were to be developed. In both options, the potentially hazardous 
acute angle at the intersection of E. Crestone Ave and W. 3rd St. would be eliminated. 

 
ii. Easements.  In granting a vacation, the City may reserve easements for the installation or 

maintenance of utilities, ditches and similar improvements. 
 

 There is currently a sewer line that traverses under the portion of E. Crestone Ave 
proposed to be vacated. An access and maintenance easement would need to be 
reserved in the case that the property were to be transferred to another owner, unless the 
sewer line were to be relocated off the site. The conceptual site plan provided by the 
Chaffee Housing Trust (CHT) shows the sewer line relocated to M Street in order to 
increase the developable area of the lot. If such a development were to materialize, no 
easement for the sewer line would be required on the site.  
 

 The conceptual site plan provided by CHT (as seen in Street Configuration Option 1) 
shows a 10-foot access and maintenance easement on the east side of the cul-de-sac, 
per requirements of Public Works. A similar easement could be required as part of a 
future development review if any part of M Street (Street Configuration Option 2) were to 
be located immediately adjacent the development site. 
 

 There are overhead electric and television cables in the area of the E. Crestone Avenue 
right-of-way proposed to be vacated, and the utility companies have been notified. The 
City of Salida is currently in discussions with Xcel Energy about undergrounding the 
overhead electric lines. Any rerouting would be coordinated with the development plan.      

 
Staff finds the proposed right-of-way vacation in conformance with this standard. 

  
iii. Comprehensive Plan.  A subdivision plat, public right-of-way or dedicated easement may 

be vacated if the vacation would be consistent with or implements the applicable intent 
statements, specific directions and recommended actions of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Policy LU&G-I.1 states that “New development within the city shall make the most 

appropriate use of the land using design standards that enhance and complement the 
historic built environment of the city.” Increasing the developable frontage along W. 3rd St. 

5.d.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 

would facilitate the potential for matching traditional historic building patterns seen in the 
surrounding neighborhood (see elevations attached to this report).  
 

 Policy LU&G-I.2 states that “Infill and redevelopment should be encouraged and will 
advance the objectives of this plan.” The accompanying Action LU&G-I.2.c guides the 
City to “Focus new development in the Salida area within the Municipal Services Area to 
ensure adequate provision of services and limit sprawl development around the city.” 
Vacating this portion of E. Crestone Ave. and consolidating adjacent City-owned parcels 
would make infill more likely in this particular location in the heart of the city.  
 

 It is currently the intention of the City to vacate a portion of E. Crestone Avenue and to 
rezone the parcel immediately to the south in order to consolidate properties into one 
development site that may be developed in accordance with the development standards 
of the R-2 district. Such a site could be used, among other possibilities, for the creation of 
up to six affordable housing units, including one accessory dwelling unit. Increasing the 
amount of affordable housing in the City is one of the key principles identified in the 
Comprehensive Plan, and supported by guidance such as: 

o Policy H-II.3: “Work cooperatively with other agencies to provide affordable housing 
and home improvements.”  

o Action Item H-II.3: “Maintain and strengthen relationships with affordable housing 
providers in the community and examine ways the city can provide both monetary and 
non-monetary support for housing agencies in the community.”   

o “Other efforts from the city could include the possible allocation of city-owned lands for 
affordable housing projects…” (Page 6-2) 

o Page 6-4 of the Comprehensive Plan, which discusses the 2007 Chaffee County 
Housing Needs Assessment (Needs Assessment) and states the following:  

“Following the findings in the Needs Assessment, the City Council adopted the City of 
Salida Strategic Housing Plan (“Strategic Plan”)… The Strategic Plan identifies twelve 
implementation measures for the city.  Adoption of the Strategic Plan was followed 
closely by the creation of the Chaffee Housing Trust (“Housing Trust”), a community 
land trust. Implementation measure #9 from the Strategic Plan states that the city 
should provide direct support for the Housing Trust.” (emphasis added) 

 
The City is following the tenets of the Comprehensive Plan and the Strategic Housing 
Plan by working with the Chaffee Housing Trust to prepare a city-owned site that could 
potentially be used for the construction of affordable housing units. Such units would help 

5.d.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 

meet just a portion of the affordable housing need identified in the Needs Assessment 
(which was updated in 2016 and shows an even greater need than in 2007).  
 

 It should be noted that the Comprehensive Plan and current subdivision guidelines 
recommend against the construction of cul-de-sacs in order to promote connectivity. Staff 
feels that a cul-de-sac could be warranted in this particular location because of ample 
access opportunities for residents to and from the mesa from the south (L Street, 
Crestone Avenue, various streets off of Poncha Ave), and also Mesa Lane and CR 160 to 
the north. Pedestrian access would remain available in the M Street right-of-way with the 
cul-de-sac option, and emergency services would be able to access all the surrounding 
properties via W. 3rd Street, E. Crestone Ave, and Crestone Ave.  Street Configuration 
Option 2, reconfiguring and regrading M Street, would eliminate the need for a cul-de-sac 
and would retain safe vehicular access between W. 3rd St. and the rest of E. Crestone 
Ave. For this reason, Street Configuration Option 2 is staff’s preferred option. 
 

 Traffic analyses are generally only required for developments much larger than six 
residential units, and even then they are only required during formal development review. 
However, some broad-brush numbers and scenarios are provided here, for context, 
regarding CHT’s conceptual development plan:  

o According to the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition, the average single-family 
detached housing unit generates roughly 9 trips/day. Similar types of multi-family units 
average around 7 trips/day. A very conservative estimate—taking into account the 
anticipated smaller-than-average size of the units, corresponding smaller household 
size, and close proximity to downtown with commercial services and employment 
centers—would be that the development could generate a maximum of up to 
approximately 50 vehicle trips per day, or an average of just over 2 trips per hour 
(though some of those trips would be concentrated during the AM and PM “rush” 
hours). Staff estimates a more realistic estimate would be a total of approximately 36 
trips/day, especially given the high level of walkability and bike-ability of the location.  

o Given that the dedicated parking for the six units in the conceptual plan is located to 
the rear, off of E. Crestone Ave, the streets where these trips would occur would 
depend primarily on the surrounding street re-configuration/access. For instance, with 
Street Configuration Option 1 (M Street closed, access to development only from the 
new terminus of E. Crestone Ave), it could be expected that those trips would be 
added largely to Crestone Ave (mostly east of E. Crestone Ave, some to the west), 
with a smaller number of trips dispersed throughout the local roads on Crestone Mesa. 
The overall number of trips on E. Crestone Ave would be reduced considerably.  

5.d.



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NO. ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

With Street Configuration Option 2 (M Street remains open, but reconfigured), it would 
be expected that those trips would be added primarily to W. 3rd Street, with a smaller 
number dispersed to Crestone Ave (primarily to the west) and throughout the local 
roads on Crestone Mesa. The overall amount of traffic on E. Crestone Ave, west of the 
development, would be expected to remain approximately the same.  

The relative impact to existing traffic would be larger in the case of Street 
Configuration Option 1 (onto Crestone Ave) than the relative impact to existing traffic 
in the case of Street Configuration Option 2 (onto W. 3rd Street). This is due to the 
discrepancy in existing traffic between those two streets—estimated at approximately 
2500/day on W. 3rd Street and 1000/day on Crestone Avenue. In either case, the 
overall impact of the (maximum) 6-unit development on the surrounding streets is 
expected to be insignificant.  

Staff finds that the vacation would implement the applicable intent statements, specific 
directions and recommended actions of the Comprehensive Plan. 

iv. Transfers or sales of lots.  A subdivision plat may be vacated if none of its lots have been
sold or transferred; or, if there have been sales or transfers, then if there has been no
development on any lots in the subdivision and all of the owners agree to the vacation of the
plat.

This standard is not applicable.  

REVIEW AGENCY COMMENTS: 

Finance Department – Aimee Tihonovich/Renee Thonoff – No concerns from a financial 
impact. Upon development, System Development Fees for water and sewer are required. The City 
of Salida charges these fees per unit.  

Fire Department – Chief Doug Bess – East Crestone is not a primary response route for the Fire 
Department as we typically take 3rd Street to Poncha Boulevard. Should the East Crestone right-
of-way be vacated, it will not have an adverse effect on response times. 

Public Works – David Lady --   1) E. Crestone Ave is an active right-of-way for both traffic, 
drainage, and sewer utility uses. Redesign and relocation would be necessary for the viability of 
vacation. Redesign shall be in general conformance with AASHTO design standards for roadway 
infrastructure and in accordance with City of Salida Design Criteria Manual for Water, Sewer, 

5.d.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                                   Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 
  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

  

    

 

 

Stormwater, and Streets.  2) A design review and acceptance of proposed changes to the public 
infrastructure would be necessary prior to proceeding with physical abandonment. 
 
Police Department – Russ Johnson – (The proposed vacated right-of-way) is an access point to 
the Mesa, but it is not a main road. If M St. remains open, it needs to be clearly marked that (East) 
Crestone Ave. is closed (prior to development).  
 
County Sheriff – John Speeze – We have no concerns as this is in the City of Salida and does 
not interfere with any County building function.  
 
Utilities – (No comments have been received as of the publishing of the staff report and packet. 
Any comments received prior to the meeting will be presented in person by staff) 
 
RECOMMENDED FINDINGS: 
 
That the application is in compliance with the review standards for right-of-way vacations because 
this application does not restrict access to any adjoining lands and is consistent with the policies 
and guidance of the Comprehensive Plan.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 2020-11 (and approval of the recommendations of 
Planning Commission below) on first reading, and setting a public hearing and second reading of 
the proposed ordinance for August 4, 2020. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
On June 22, 2020 the Planning Commission recommended in a 4-2 vote that the Council approve 
the vacation of right-of-way request, in addition to the following recommendations: 

• That the site be used for affordable housing 
• That the current access be continued until the project receives approval 
• That Council direct City staff to pursue Street Configuration Option 2 to reconfigure M 

Street and retain that access to and from Crestone Mesa    
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
A Council person should make a motion to “Approve Ordinance 2020-11: An ordinance to vacate a 
segment of the East Crestone Avenue right-of-way adjacent to West Third Street, totaling 
approximately .18 acres on first reading, and to set a public hearing and second reading of the 
proposed ordinance for August 4, 2020.” 

5.d.



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NO. ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Bill Almquist 

Attachments 
Ordinance 2020-11 
Vacation Plat and Legal description 
Application  
Comments from 03/04/20 neighborhood meeting hosted by City and CHT 
CHT Conceptual Site Plan 
CHT Conceptual Elevation 
M Street reconfiguration conceptual photo illustration from W. Third St. 
M Street conceptual elevation profile and preliminary CAD design 
Proof of Publication  
Public Comment Letters
Letter from CHT re: sales price differences 
City cost estimate sheet 

5.d.



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO  
ORDINANCE NO. 11 

(Series of 2020)  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, 
VACATING A PORTION OF THE EAST CRESTONE AVENUE RIGHT OF WAY AT 
THE INTERSECTION WITH WEST THIRD STREET. 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 43-2-301 et seq., the City of Salida (the “City”),  acting 
by and through its City Council (“Council”), possesses the authority to divest the City’s interest in 
platted or designated public streets, roads, and other public ways by ordinance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the vacation and disposition of municipal interests in public rights-of-way 
and other public property is identified by the appellate courts of the State of Colorado as a 
legislative and discretionary function of the local governing body; and 
 

WHEREAS, an application has been made for the vacation of a portion of East Crestone 
right-of-way located at West Third Street within the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City is co-applicant on the vacation request with the Chaffee Housing 

Trust, a 501(c)3 nonprofit who is in discussions with the City regarding potential affordable 
housing on the site per direction of the City Council on July 16, 2019 and October 15, 2019; and  

 
WHEREAS, said application has been found to be legally sufficient for consideration and 

action by the Salida Planning Commission and the Council under the City Code (the “Code”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Salida Planning Commission at a duly noticed public hearing on June 

22, 2020 found that the application complied with the Code, the Salida Comprehensive Plan, and 
City plans and policies, and therefore recommended its approval by the Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Salida Planning Commission, in addition to recommending approval of 

the vacation application to the Council, made the following additional recommendations: that the 
resulting site and lots would be subject to the use of affordable housing; that the East Crestone 
Avenue road use would continue until final project and development approval; and directed City 
staff to pursue a street configuration identified as “Street Configuration Option 2” in the July 22, 
2020 staff report (which would maintain M Street access to/from Crestone Mesa); and 

  
WHEREAS, the Council considered the application at a duly noticed public hearing on 

August 4, 2020, and found that the application complied with the Code and the Salida 
Comprehensive Plan, and City plans and policies, and concurred with the Salida Planning 
Commission’s recommendation on the application; and 

 
WHEREAS, the subject right of way has not been established as a state highway; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council finds that vacating a portion of the right-of-way, as more particularly 

described in Exhibit A, is desirable and appropriate, will not cause harm to the public and will not 
leave any adjacent properties without access to the public road system; and 



 
WHEREAS, the Council therefore desires to vacate that portion of East Crestone right-of-

way located at West Third Street, as requested by the applicants, and as further described in this 
Ordinance. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 
CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO:  

 
1. Incorporation of Recitals. The aforementioned recitals are hereby fully 

incorporated herein. 
 

2. Vacation of Right of Way.  City Council hereby vacates, renounces and disclaims 
an approximate 7,710 square feet of East Crestone Avenue right-of-way more particularly 
described in Exhibit A. 
 

3. Vesting of Title.  Upon the recording of this Ordinance and Exhibit, title to the 
vacated right of way as described in Exhibit A shall vest in the City of Salida, the property owner 
of both abutting land parcels, pursuant to section 43-2-302(l)(c), C.R.S. and the Code.  City 
Council hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute quitclaim deeds to the vacated right-of-way. 

 
4.       Recording.  Upon the effective date of this Ordinance, the City Clerk is directed to  

record a copy of this Ordinance and the quitclaim deeds with the Chaffee County Clerk and 
Recorder’s office as required by C.R.S. § 43-1-202.7. 
 

5.  Severability.  The provisions of this ordinance are severable and the invalidity  
of any section, phrase, clause or portion of the ordinance as determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remainder of the ordinance. 

 
INTRODUCED ON FIRST READING, on July 7, 2020, ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED IN FULL in a newspaper of general circulation by the City Council on this ____ 
day of _______, 2020 and set for second reading and public hearing on the 4th day of August 2020. 

 
INTRODUCED ON SECOND READING FINALLY ADOPTED and ORDERED 

PUBLISHED BY TITLE ONLY by the City Council on this 4th day of August, 2020. 
 
 
 City of Salida 
 
   
 Mayor P.T. Wood 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
     
City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 
 



Exhibit A 
[Description of Vacated Roadway] 

 





LEGAL DESCRIPTION  

OF A 

TRACT OF LAND 

 

 

A PORTION OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF CRESTONE AVENUE EAST IN THE CITY OF SALIDA, CHAFFEE 

COUNTY, COLORADO, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTH-EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF CRESTONE AVENUE 

EAST AND THE SOUTH-WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF WEST 3RD STREET, SAID INTERSECTION BEING THE 

SOUTH-EAST CORNER OF THE CITY OF SALIDA PROPERTY DESCRIBED AT RECEPTION NO. 292150; 

THENCE SOUTH 39°44'16" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 104.05 FEET TO A 1½" ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED "LS 

16117",  AND THE SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF CRESTONE AVENUE EAST; 

THENCE NORTH 74°51'35" WEST ALONG SAID SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, A DISTANCE OF 171.43 

FEET TO A 1½" ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED "LS 6753"; 

THENCE NORTH 18°46'13" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 60.27 FEET TO THE NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 

CRESTONE AVENUE EAST; 

THENCE SOUTH 74°39'44" EAST ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY, A DISTANCE OF 82.51 

FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  

CONTAINING 7710.7 SQUARE FEET.  

 

 
PREPARED BY: 

 
              SYDNEY A. SCHIEREN, PLS 37937 

                 PO BOX 668 

                 SALIDA, COLORADO 81201 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 













Notes from 3/4/2020 Neighborhood Meeting at Scout Hut regarding E. Crestone AH project/site: 

 

• Slow the process down 
• CHT should pay for the survey that was done 
• Make the property survey available to the public 
• Concern about lowering property values 
• Keep current property zoning  
• Will there be new setbacks? 
• What is the status of the CHT application? 
• What precedent will be set by vacation and re-zoning? 
• I question Salida’s affordable housing survey (does 700 respondents represent a critical mass 

that is acceptable?) 
• Is there any evidence of municipal workers leaving Salida because of being housing burdened? 
• Why doesn’t the project have rentals 
• Historically, Salida has a mix of expensive and less expensive houses 
• Get realtor input on how this project would affect current home values 
• What would be the effect to changing traffic pattern by vacation of part of Crestone? 
• Concern for impending recession & how this will affect the potential CHT buyer 
• Why was lot not offered for public sale? 
• Sample housing shown are generally objectionable to neighbors 
• Concerns about affordability due to excavation requirements 
• Tap fees for potential non-affordable housing will be lost under the CHT proposal 
• Concerns about increased traffic and fast Sheriff’s vehicles on emergency calls 
• Are CHT’s setbacks on this project the same as anyone else’s? 
• Would the ADU be income property for an affordable housing buyer? 
• HOA fees? How would that affect affordability? 
• Safety concerns due to increased traffic. 3rd Street is a corridor for traffic heading downtown. 
• Traffic study? 
• Project would drive traffic to Crestone & Grand Ave, both of which already have traffic issues 
• Fire and Police route concerns 
• Concern regarding neighbor’s vehicle access and egress with work trucks  
• Resident does not like the one-way street option for East Crestone 
• Also concerns about the turnaround if bottom of E. Crestone is made into a cul-de-sac 
• Residents at the meeting are unanimous in opposing CHT building on this lot 
• What happens to M Street? 
• Adjoining resident is upset that she didn’t get the option to purchase the subject property as 

“backdoor” to her property 
• Request to move Planning Commission date to April 27. 



Conceptual Site Plan for Affordable Housing Development





M Street Reconfiguration 
Conceptual Photo Illustration



ISSUED FOR REVIEW 7/1/20

DOMINGUEZREC#317411

8

FLOW

X

X

X

X

X
X

WV

WVWVWM

WM
WV

X

X

X

X

X

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
R E V I S I O N S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE ENGINEER'S NOTES TO CONTRACTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE EXISTENCE AND LOCATION OF ANY UNDERGROUND UTILITY PIPES, CONDUITS OR STRUCTURES SHOWN ON THESE PLANS ARE OBTAINED BY A SEARCH OF THE AVAILABLE RECORDS TO THE BEST OF OUR KNOWLEDGE THERE ARE NO EXISTING UTILITIES EXCEPT AS SHOWN ON THESE PLANS.  THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO TAKE DUE PRECAUTIONARY MEASURES TO PROTECT THE UTILITY LINES SHOWN ON THESE DRAWINGS.  THE CONTRACTOR FURTHER ASSUMES ALL LIABILITY AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE UTILITY PIPES, CONDUITS, OR STRUCTURES SHOWN OR NOT SHOWN ON THESE DRAWINGS.  CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT HE SHALL ASSUME SOLE COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE JOB  SITE CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY  OF ALL PERSONS AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND  NOT BE LIMITED TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS; AND THAT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DEFEND,  INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE COUNTY, THE CITY, THE OWNER AND THE ENGINEER HARMLESS FROM  ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF WORK  ON THIS PROJECT, EXCEPTING FOR LIABILITY ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE  OWNER OR THE ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION AGENCY

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AGENCY HEAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\20013 CHT 3RD M CRESTONE\CAD\MODELS\20013 SITE M ST OPEN.DWG 7/1/2020 3:54:23 PM 7/1/2020 3:54:23 PM7/1/2020 3:54:23 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
M STREET PLAN & PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 2 5   D   S T R E E T S A L I D A ,   C O    8 1 2 0 1 P H :   7 1 9 - 5 3 9 - 1 6 7 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
9 1 8   C U Y A M A   R O A D O J A I  ,   C A   9 3 0 2 3 P H :   7 1 9 - 2 2 1 - 1 7 9 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
REZONING & ROW VACATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAFFEE HOUSING TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20013

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALIDA, COLORADO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUL. 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/31/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED UNDER THE DIRECTION OF:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM HUSSEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.C.E. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
56989

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRABTREE GROUP, INC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF SALIDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF SALIDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WBH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WBH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CONTOUR INTERVAL = 1 FOOT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
576 SF ONE STORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
RELOCATE UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
M STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRESTONE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED REGRADE STREET CENTERLINE ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ELEVATION





 

  Page 1 of 2 

Office of Housing 
PO Box 699 

448 E. 1st Street, Suite 225 

Salida, CO 81201 

Phone (719) 530-2590 

www.ChaffeeCounty.org 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Date: May 27, 2020 
 
To: Salida City Council and Salida Planning Commission 
 
CC: Salida Administrator, Drew Nelson 
 Salida Mayor, P.T. Wood 
 Salida Community Development Director, Glen VanNimwegen 
 
 
Re:  Support for Permanently Affordable Housing Project on East Crestone 
 
 
Dear Esteemed Colleagues, 
 
It has been a pleasure to serve the City of Salida and all of Chaffee County as the Director of the 
Office of Housing for the past two years, and I commend Salida’s elected and appointed officials 
for the work you have done to increase the stock of affordable living units available to your 
residents.  
 
As our community works together to navigate through the novel Coronavirus pandemic, it is 
becoming more apparent to many  that housing insecurity in Chaffee County is very real, and 
that many of our residents are experiencing it for the first time – or for the first time in a long 
time.  The Office of Housing and the Department of Human Services are seeing an increase in 
the number of requests for rent and deposit assistance, and advocates in the affordable 
housing industry are preparing to see a wave of relocations and evictions among low-income 
renters in the very near future.  Therefore, the actions you are taking now to increase the 
availability of permanently affordable housing is more important than ever. 
 
I applaud your creativity in identifying publicly owned locations where housing might be 
appropriate and seeking out partnerships to increase Salida’s supply of permanently affordable 
housing.  The City owned parcel on East Crestone Avenue near M Street would be very difficult 
to bring into productive use without the creative approach you are taking.  The proposed 



 

  Page 2 of 2 

neighborhood improvements that could result from this plan, including eliminating confusing 
and unnecessary intersections and burying overhead powerlines, will benefit the entirety of the 
community. Those improvements will then allow the two city-owned parcels to be brought 
back into productive use, and through partnerships, will create permanently affordable 
housing.  
 
One of the best features of Salida is it’s inclusivity, and this location can be a prime example of 
integrating workforce housing into a rapidly increasing housing market.  The homes that will 
potentially occupy that space will provide their residents with easy access to the Salida trail 
system, schools, grocery and other shopping, as well as the rich cultural environment 
downtown, while remaining permanently affordable. 
 
The Office of Housing is poised to support this project in whatever capacity is appropriate, and I 
look forward to watching this collaboration unfold.  I offer gratitude for the creative approach 
you are taking to encourage the creation of additional permanently affordable homes. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Becky Gray 
Director of Housing, Chaffe County 
719-239-1398 
bgray@chaffeecounty.org 
 
 
 



Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comments
David Martin <dakotaw2k1@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 8:08 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

The city of Salida and Chaffee Housing Trust (CHT) are moving forward with their development

plans of donating land to CHT (intersection of Third Street and East Crestone Avenue), vacating a

section of East Crestone Avenue. The plan includes:

• Donating the land (section of East Crestone, section of M Street, and the two triangles of land) to

CHT.

• Removing a section of the existing avenue (East Crestone Avenue, recently paved with new

asphalt and street gutters – wasted taxpayer money).

•Creating one-way traffic flow on East Crestone and M Street (this will be Salida’s only one-way

street), which will end two-way access to homes on East Crestone Avenue and the Mesa.

• Reworking a section of West Third Street.

• Reworking M Street.

• Reworking East Crestone with a cul-de-sac (which will become a parking lot for the six proposed

affordable/low-income units) on the newly vacated section of land that the city of Salida plans to

donate to CHT.

CHT will also get reduced water tap fees, as per Salida’s Planning Commission (Bill Almquist).

Estimate of what is being donated by the city of Salida to CHT for affordable homes at the East

Crestone Avenue development site:

1. The land: $350,000.

2. Street rework: $150,000.

3. Reduced new water tap fees (normally $17,000 per tap) for six units: $51,000.

4. Moving of power lines: $25,000.

5. The survey/platting of the land: $3,000.

6. Time and labor of city of Salida Planning Commission, Public Works and street departments,

bidding of the street rework, meetings, etc.: $30,000.

7. Rezoning: $10,000.

8. Sidewalks: $20,000.



9. Property/building inspections: $5,000.

Estimate of donation/giveaway: $644,000.

Wow! This project is labeled as “affordable housing.” Affordable for whom? It’s affordable for the six

lucky families (chosen by CHT) that will get to live there and receive assistance if they can’t make

their house note. It becomes “affordable housing” because of the six-figure dollar donations.

I challenge City Treasurer Merrell Bergin to run the numbers and publish what the estimated dollar

amounts are of this project and the current expenditures to current date.

 

CHT should withdraw their application to vacate and rezone East Crestone and West Third Street

for “affordable housing.” The inclusionary ordinance provides for affordable housing in new

developments and subdivisions.

And as a safety issue: West Third street is already a busy road. Don’t introduce 50 trips per day by

the estimated 20 residents, six units and additional 12 cars onto this road.

 



Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comments, cont'd
David Martin <dakotaw2k1@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 8:12 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

The city needs to answer/address the concerns of Nancy:

 

CHT, council owe explanation

May 20, 2020

Dear Editor:

In an April 9 letter, Willie Dominguez made a bold claim: Chaffee Housing Trust (CHT) built eight

“affordable” units in the Two Rivers complex which were supposed to sell for $170,000, but actually

sold for $266,800.

If true, this is a scandal. CHT made a deal with the developer and Salida officials. In lieu of building

affordable housing themselves, the developer would deed this property to CHT to build affordable

housing. Were these units then sold at market value, not as “affordable”? What is the truth?

In an Oct. 26, 2018, Ark Valley Voice article, CHT Executive Director Read McCulloch said this

project is important because it’s the first time a project like this has been created in rural Colorado.

These units will be built and offered at 80 percent area median income – making home ownership

possible for first-time homebuyers. “That means we have gotten concessions so that the homebuyer

cost will be $170,000.” So, the promised $170,000 price tag claim is true.

What about the sale price? A check of the Chaffee County assessor’s website shows six of the eight

units sold between April 12, 2019, and May 30, 2019, for $266,800. (The other two were transferred

to ownership of “Read McCulloch-director.” Are they rentals?) Between the Oct. 26, 2018,

statements by McCulloch and the first sale six months later, the sale price increased an astounding

$96,800 per unit.

Where is enforcement from the city of Salida? Was there any language in the contract forcing CHT

to sell at the promised $170K? Was it known the sale price would be promised at $170K, then

jacked up to $266K just months later? Where did all that extra money go?

It might be a coincidence, but in the May 1 Mountain Mail McCulloch is quoted discussing the

current city of Salida plan to give CHT land at Third and Crestone to build five “affordable units”:



 

“He said development homebuyers’ current unit prices are around $180,000. They were $170,000 in

2019 and by the time construction possibly begins in 2021, prices could be as high as $190,000, but

they do not know yet.” Huh! He is still saying prices for his units were $170K in 2019, even though

this proved to be false.

CHT and Salida city government first promised us sun, moon and stars with the Salida Crossings

development. After an expensive special election in September 2018, Salida Crossings was never

built − and no one has ever explained why. The city and Mountain Mail have avoided this story like

the proverbial plague.

The Two Rivers “affordable” units were sold at 157 percent of the promised price.

Now we’re supposed to trust CHT with free land at Third and Crestone?

It appears to me Chaffee Housing Trust operates less like a nonprofit and more like a development

company. The only difference is the seed money and land are donated by taxpayers, and CHT

reaps the reward. Both CHT and Salida City Council owe a thorough explanation.

Nancy Dominick,

Salida

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

More E. Crestone public hearing comments
David Martin <dakotaw2k1@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 8:33 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

The following needs to be made available to all parties participating in any E. Crestone hearings/meetings to
ensure a fair and just decision is attained:

 

 

1.  Any and all prior records of any and all costs associated with street repairs, roadwork,
roadwork engineering, including any repaving for East Crestone Avenue within the last five
years.

 

2. Any and all records, communications, reports, studies, related to landslide hazard, land
slump, and appropriate mitigation of landslide and land slump hazards, and any and all
associated cost of mitigation including but not limited to geotechnical studies, hazard
insurance, retaining walls, etc.  

 

3. Any and all cost projections associated with the leveling of the proposed site at East
Crestone and West Third Street  to create a level building site. 

 

4. Any cost projections, estimates, communications, or other information related to
construction of a retaining wall related to the proposed project at East Crestone and West
Third Street.  Any and all communications, reports, or other information related to obtaining
hazard insurance to protect any and all structures from landslides or slump.

 

5.  Copy of any  geotechnical study of the proposed site at  East Crestone and West Third
Street, or any and all communications related to the stability or instability of the proposed
site, and the need for a  geotechnical study prior to any and all construction.

 

6.  Any and all records of any vehicle or pedestrian accidents at or near the the proposed
site at East Crestone and West Third Street.  Any and all traffic studies, communications,
reports, or other records describing or detailing pedestrian or vehicle  accidents at or near
the the proposed site at East Crestone and West Third Street or concerns related to the
safety of this location.



 

7: Any and all records communicating with Chaffee County Sheriff department regarding
traffic changes / impacts to East Crestone & West 3rd Street this housing project could
impact.

 

8: Any and all records regarding wildlife studies.

 

9: Any and all records regarding why prior attempts by the City of Salida to develope this
property was 

terminated or abandoned.

 

10: All real costs a private citizen would pay for utilities to develope a residential site. (not
reduced developer costs such as discounted water tap fees, Excel energy single source
francise fees, etc..).

 

11: Were any other potential developers of this project considered ?

 

12: Were other property offers to purchase this site considered current timeframe and
through previous years ?

 

13: Labor hours/cost of all City personnel and costs incurred by the city including attorney
fees, surveys, etc associated with the E. Crestone project.

 

 

 

 



May 18, 2020 

Salida Mayor and City Council members:                                                        
  
Recent arguments related to the proposed affordable housing units located at Crestone and 3rd Streets 
have motivated me to share my perspective.  Salidans have loudly voiced concerns about the need for 
housing for our teachers, medical support staff, firemen, cooks, waitresses, &……  The financial gulf 
between the rich and poor has widened, leaving many who now serve us on a daily basis with but one 
choice — to live miles from Salida where they are employed. 
  
 Salidans, we must not lose our blend of citizens — living next door to one another.  This highly respected 
virtue is one of the most attractive traditions that Salida has cherished for generations.  If we want to 
continue to enjoy the community spirit that makes Salida so attractive, we must share the space that is 
available with those who need it the most.  All of us, citizens and tourists alike, demand services that 
require low wage employees who, unfortunately, cannot afford to live in “their” town. 
  
When studying the city map, I smile at the peculiar design that has resulted from our forefathers 
decisions.  There are numbered & lettered streets going east/west & north/south  Then there are assorted 
named streets that create abrupt angles, abutting the original ones.  These intersections 
create  interesting street junctures. Traversing the maze when multiple cars appear is challenging. 
  
For safety reasons City Council and the Departments of Public Works and Police have redesigned a few 
of those intersections (Examples: along Teller at 5th/Park & 6th/C/Dodge).  More “triangles” exist across 
our city, creating unnecessary traffic as well as snow-plowing problems.  I consider these triangular 
footprints wasted use of space & encourage City Council to consider using more of the “triangles” for 
small affordable housing projects. 
  
When I first heard of the possibility of redesigning the Crestone/3rd Street intersection, I was delighted. 
There is very little space left within Salida’s perimeter for housing development.  This particular location is 
near downtown providing potential owners the opportunity to walk and/or bike to & from work so they 
don’t need duplicate vehicles. 
  
Some citizens complain that the “city” has done little to meet our housing crisis.  Now that they are 
considering assisting Chaffee Housing Trust with this project, citizens complain that the cost is coming out 
of their pockets.  I must remind all of you that NO Salida citizen pays property taxes to support the Salida 
city government.  
  
 Sales tax is the only portion that goes directly to running Salida.  That means that every person who 
spends money in Salida — Chaffee County citizens AND tourists — pay the exact same portion that 
Salida citizens pay to pave & plow our streets, maintain our parks & sidewalks, etc…….  How privileged 
Salidans are to have all those folks contributing to the support of our city.   
  
Older generations sometimes have a preoccupation with property rights at the expense of human 
rights.  We will be remembered by how we treat one another while we are on this planet, not by what we 
accumulate nor the view from the property we own. 
  
Eileen Rogers 

Salida Citizen 

1010 F Street 
539-4040 

 







June 2020 

Jane Ewing    718 W 3rd Street Unit A 

West 3rd Street and East Crestone Avenue 

When I see the parcel of land under consideration by the Chaffee Housing Trust 
(CHT) for reconfiguration to build affordable housing, it concerns me the number 
of added residents who would access W 3rd Street from their driveways. W 3rd 
Street is a thoroughfare already dangerously busy. My fear is not only for those 
who already travel on W 3rd Street, but for the future residents who will have no 
other way to leave home than to back directly onto the street. The CHT’s plans 
that have been publicly shared reveal that there is inadequate, or at best minimal 
space, for a driveway or place to park one’s car. I wonder if the CHT is taking into 
consideration the risk they will place on travelers using W 3rd Street, people who 
live on that street, and the future residents who will be housed in the planned 
units. 



Editor, Mountain Mail       June, 2020 

West 3rd Street and East Crestone Avenue 

I write to question the wisdom of the City Council’s and Planning Department’s 
consideration of giving away land in the 700 block of West Third Street to the 
Chaffee Housing Trust (CHT). If that happens, not only would the city of Salida 
accrue a large financial obligation by having to alter land, close a street, and 
relocate utilities, but it would allow the CHT to construct housing units that would 
exacerbate the already dangerous traffic flow along West 3rd Street, East 
Crestone, and M Streets. Should the City Council and Planning Department 
continue to pursue giving away the land in question to the CHT, I ask that they 
publicly list in detail the city’s financial obligations to do so and their traffic study 
report. 

Jane Ewing     718 West 3rd Street Unit A 



Editor, Mountain Mail       June, 2020 

West Third Street and East Crestone Avenue 

The construction of residential units on city owned property near the 

busy intersection on either side of East Crestone Avenue and West 

Third Street will result in a traffic safety issue. My concern, beyond that 

of the fiscal responsibility for the city to revamp streets and property, is 

safety. 

The corridor of West Third Street and Crestone Avenue is used 

extensively by vehicles, pedestrians, and cyclists. This traffic is impacted 

by cars, vans, and trucks that are parked along the edge of the 

throughway. That added congestion is compounded by delivery trucks 

that daily weave around the parked vehicles, pause to leave mail and 

packages, and reenter the street. County sheriff cars travel this 

corridor, as well. There are no sidewalks nor is there a bike path here. 

This area is not a typical neighborhood, where homes often have single 

or double car garages, added parking spaces in driveways, and 

sidewalks to accommodate pedestrians. A traffic survey may reveal that 

the traffic is not heavy enough to cause a concern. The tally, though, 

does not consider the additional use I noted above. My understanding 

is that the proposed new units may or may not have even a single car 

garage or a driveway wide enough for a second vehicle. If there are five 

units, we can expect that each active resident would have one or two 

vehicles that will leave and arrive multiple times each day onto and 

from the already well-used streets. 

My issue with the planned development is the location and the impact 

it will cause by reconfiguring the land. Added vehicles here will raise the 

potential for accidents in this already chaotic traffic area. I send this as 

an alert, a caution, and a protest. 

Jane Ewing     718 West Third Street Unit A 





Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

letter to P&Z
karen karnuta <karenkarnuta@gmail.com> Thu, Apr 23, 2020 at 11:02 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

Please get this to P&Z.
Karen

Karen Karnuta 
(Owner) 750 W 3rd Street

To The Salida Planning Commission.

I am one of the closest neighbors, the front door of my property faces Third Street directly across from the 
vacant triangle of land. 

I think this project will impact the neighborhood, and I think the density is high for the neighborhood. However, 
I support this project. 

I read a letter in the paper that said it will be “only” five houses. While five units is a drop in the bucket for what 
our city needs, to the five families who will live there it means everything. 

I know families who live in the Habitat houses, and families who live in the Housing Trust project in Two 
Rivers. The security, safety and comfort to these families makes all the difference. These families no longer 
have to worry about their rent going up, or having to move when their rental house is sold. Things many of us 
take for granted. 

Because of the difference secure housing will make in these families lives, I support this project though I 
believe it is not a perfect project. 

Karen Karnuta



Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

another q on the crestone project
karen karnuta <karenkarnuta@gmail.com> Thu, Apr 23, 2020 at 5:34 PM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

thanks for passing that on. I am asking you to also give this letter stating the same thing to the P&Z board. The main thing is
the testing, they may not need to be engineered depending on the results. As a builder in this neighborhood,  I have a fair bit
of experience with this sand and I would hate to see the foundations crack.
Thanks for your time answering all my questions today!

To the Salida Planning Commission --

This project will be a better built project if the soils are tested, and foundations engineered if required by the 
test results. As this is not a city requirement, I recommend it is added to the project approval as a requirement.

If you look at the house I own, 750 W 3rd, the foundation is good and the house has not moved in over a 
hundred years. If you look across M Street to the house on the other corner, that house has had significant 
movement and the foundation is cracked and the house (I have been inside) is more than 12" out of level. The 
two houses are about 80 feet apart and were likely built in a similar time period.

The sand underlying the project is very variable in its ability to support the weight of a house. It is quite 
different from the cobble (rocks and sand) that underly most of the construction in town.  

Karen Karnuta

[Quoted text hidden]



SUPPORT THE AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT AT 3RD AND M STREET IN SALIDA

Repeatedly, the citizens of Salida indicated in surveys that affordable housing is the #1 issue facing our 
community - not even close with any other issue raised in these surveys.  

Findings of Housing Needs Assessment (2016), conducted at the request of Chaffee County, Salida, 
Poncha Springs, and BV, outline the monumental task in creating affordable housing.   This assessment’s 
findings are:  2,426 dwellings are needed, between the 60 – 120% area median income (AMI) to meet 
the current need.  889 dwellings in this same AMI range are needed to meet the future growth needs.  

Understanding the need and hearing its citizens’ housing concerns, Salida committed to assisting in the 
development of affordable housing.  After considering all City-owned property, Salida determined that 
the property at 3rd and M Streets is the best location now for affordable housing construction.  Part of 
this decision is based on the fact that this land is deemed not useable by the City of Salida for another 
purpose.

The Chaffee Housing Trust has been determined by the Salida as a good partner for the construction of 
affordable housing at 3rd and M.  The CHT is a proven developer of affordable housing, having 
constructed the Old Stage Road Rowhouses (6 units sold and 2 units rented to Salida citizens at under 
65% AMI).  This project was done in partnership with Natural Habitats in the Two Rivers development, 
as part of Salida’s inclusionary housing ordinance.  

The CHT also partnered with Fading West, developer of The Farm community in Buena Vista, to 
purchase 7 dwellings, find qualified lower income buyers, support these buyers in becoming qualified for 
financing, and assisting them in closing.  Currently, 3 buyers have closed on their new homes in The 
Farm.  Another will close in June, 2020.  Four other units will close to buyers between June and October, 
2020.   The mean AMI for these homes is 70%.

In all of the above instances, the CHT obtained grants for down payment assistance, assuring that these 
homes were made available at below-market prices and affordable to lower income buyers.  Grants 
acquired by CHT to provide down-payment assistance to date have totaled $230,000.  All of these 
homes are legally protected, permanently-affordable homes in perpetuity to future buyers in the same 
AMI as the original buyers.  

Who are the buyers/renters of these CHT-assisted affordable homes?  

In Salida: 

 construction worker for a local builder
 12-year middle school teacher with family
 employee of Pure Greens
 emergency room hospital employee 
 single-mom-employee of a local manufacturer with family
 local medical office administrator
 Columbine Manor employee
 Essential grocery store worker



In BV:  

 first-year elementary school teacher
 Colorado Kayak Supply retail employee (closing in June)
 BV lumber yard employee
 BV Town employee.  

The affordable housing at 3rd & M is in keeping with Salida’s longtime tradition of diverse 
neighborhoods.  I urge citizens to support this project.

Ken Matthews, Vice-President, Chaffee Housing Trust



Page 1 of 2 
 

Merrell Bergin 
PO Box 868 

Salida, CO 81201-0868 
mberginco@gmail.com 

 
 
June 18, 2020 
 
Mr. Bill Almquist 
Planner 
City of Salida 
448 East 1st Street 
Salida, CO 81201 
 

Re: Right of Way Vacation and Rezoning Application 
East Crestone Avenue and Part Lot 4-6 Strip C of Eddy Brothers Addition 

Planning Commission Public Hearing June 22, 2020 
 
Mr. Almquist, Members of the Planning Commission: 
 
I am writing in support of the proposed right of way vacation and rezoning application 
for the subject parcel.  Beginning with the community meeting on March 4, 2020 at the 
Scout Hut, I have listened carefully to all sides of the proposed six-unit workforce housing 
development, to be built in the area of East Crestone Avenue, 3rd and M Streets.  The 
proposal is a prime example of creative and forward thinking on the part of City Council, 
Economic Development staff, the Planning Commission, Chaffee Housing Trust and other 
community stakeholders committed to helping fill a small piece of Salida’s critical housing 
gap.  It makes a statement that the City will not rest until more opportunities for affordable 
housing exist, one small (but significant) project at a time. 
 
As a downtown property owner and 16-year resident, I appreciate the desire for people to 
maximize and protect their interests.  The City is doing just that.  Vacating the right of way 
and consolidating the zoning of these unique parcels allows the City to actively achieve the 
highest and best use of its holdings.  This is not for anyone’s monetary gain, instead it merely 
exchanges raw dirt for the greater public good - for ALL Salidans.  As it stands today, these 
parcels are not useful to anyone and the right of way only encourages motorists to cut 
through the residential area on their way elsewhere.  How does that help anyone? 
 
Are there challenges with this plan?  Sure; if it were cookie-cutter easy, this project would 
have been done long ago.  Planning and other City departments have put a lot of effort into 
finding solutions to make this work.  The only area not fully addressed, that might need 
more attention is how to calm and redistribute vehicle traffic among West 3rd Street, Poncha 
Boulevard and Crestone Avenue, by the Courthouse.  Careful and holistic planning for 
pedestrian, bicycle and vehicle traffic in the area should be done in any case.  Traffic 
engineering, calming and enforcement solutions are well within our reach, making the entire 
area better and safer for all. 
 
Beyond simple self-interests, dollars and cents I would urge all decision makers and  the 
community at large to look at the heartfelt stories of their neighbor’s housing insecurities 

https://www.housinghealthchaffee.org/stories


Page 2 of 2 
 

that were presented on May 28 by The Chaffee County Housing + Health, Dinner and a Movie 
Series.  These are real people with real needs and it’s in our power to make a difference. 
 
In each of these personal stories, significant obstacles were overcome with creativity and just 
plain hard work.  In each case, creative partnerships greatly improved people’s lives and 
health, while the community as a whole benefits.  The Planning Commission can help the City 
meet stated its goals for improving housing security through affordability, while increasing 
this area’s property values and revitalizing a desirable in-town neighborhood overall. 
 
An amazing amount of speculation, poor assumptions, fearmongering and wild financial 
estimates have already been put to the public, from a handful of abutting neighbors who 
favor their own interests rather than sharing in a sense of partnership with their neighbors 
and the larger community.  This is not “win-lose”, it is a win for all. 
 
Tonight’s public hearing and those that follow will bring out the real costs, facts and figures 
and should put to rest the “Not in My Backyard” fear factor being cast on this creative effort.   
 
This hearing should conclude that the requests for vacation and rezoning meet existing 
safeguards and codes, are reasonable and proper.  Granting these actions will move the 
project forward again for public comment and another hearing, with accurate costs and 
detailed plans.  If technical issues are raised tonight, please make every effort to remediate 
them.  I urge you vote “yes” and continue the process. 
 
 
 
 
Merrell Bergin 
Tel. 303-601-1785 
 
 
VIA EMAIL to: bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com 

https://www.housinghealthchaffee.org/stories
https://www.housinghealthchaffee.org/stories


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone Public hearing signs are non-compliant
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Thu, Jun 11, 2020 at 1:03 PM
Reply-To: "mparmete@yahoo.com" <mparmete@yahoo.com>
To: "bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com" <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>
Cc: "harald.kasper@salidaelected.com" <harald.kasper@salidaelected.com>, Mike Pollock
<mike.pollock@salidaelected.com>, "dan.shore@salidaelected.com" <dan.shore@salidaelected.com>,
"jane.templeton@salidaelected.com" <jane.templeton@salidaelected.com>, "justin.critelli@salidaelected.com"
<justin.critelli@salidaelected.com>, "alisa.pappenfort@salidaelected.com" <alisa.pappenfort@salidaelected.com>,
Glen Van Nimwegen <glen.vannimwegen@cityofsalida.com>, Nina Williams <nwilliams@mdbrlaw.com>, Drew
Nelson <drew.nelson@cityofsalida.com>

One sign per property is required by code: "Notice shall be posted by the applicant on the subject property...." 

There are 2 applications for 2 properties being discussed, rezoning E. CRESTONE property and vacation. 
E. CRESTONE property that is going to be rezoned did not meet 15 day and applicant placement requirement
plus full disclosure. The 3rd W Public notice did not meet full disclosure requirement.

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android

On Thu, Jun 11, 2020 at 12:48 PM, Bill Almquist
<bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com> wrote:

For reference, I am attaching photos showing that the site was posted in multiple locations (only one location
is required by the Code) on Friday, June 5th. I am also attaching a photo of the replacement notice that I
constructed at the corner of W. 3rd and E. Crestone Ave. on Monday, June 8th, after I learned that the
postings had blown off in Saturday's "derecho." I also attempted to re-secure one of the other notices to the
stop sign, but it appears that sign fell down again. The sign at the corner of W. 3rd and E. Crestone Ave.
remains. 

On Thu, Jun 11, 2020 at 12:03 PM Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> wrote:
The city’s lack of transparency is appalling with respect to E Crestone vacation and adjoining property
rezoning and it is a travesty of civil and fair government.  The public hearing signs for the applications to
rezone and vacate are non-compliant to meet the 22 Jun Public Hearing.

The sign on E. Crestone (attached) was blown away last Saturday lasting less than 20 hours.  It was
replaced by Bill at 345 pm on Monday and was promptly blown up the street by wind.  It was placed in its
current state the next day by an elderly gentleman who walks up E. Crestone every day.  It looks like trash
in the ditch.

The notice posting has not met the 15-day requirement for public hearing nor was it posted in its current
state by the applicant.  The notice also did not mention the donation of land thereby not fully disclosing the
purpose of the public hearing. The above are violations of public hearing notice posting requirements.

It also used legalese most people do not understand.  Most people do not know that vacation of E.
Crestone means the street is going away which further exemplifies the City’s lack of transparency.

The following was sent to Bill Almquist on 8 June 2020:

One of your signs met its demise with the wind again this afternoon after you left.
I counted the hours the signs were up and took pictures. 
You did not meet the full 15 days required for public hearing notices being displayed on the property prior
to the public hearing.

https://go.onelink.me/107872968?pid=InProduct&c=Global_Internal_YGrowth_AndroidEmailSig__AndroidUsers&af_wl=ym&af_sub1=Internal&af_sub2=Global_YGrowth&af_sub3=EmailSignature
mailto:bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com
mailto:mparmete@yahoo.com


You also didn't fully disclose the full intent of vacation and rezoning ... eventual donation of land that
provides government services which is an illegal donation.
You also didn't make them sturdy or waterproof. 

QED: The 22 June meeting has to be moved.

Regards,
Michelle M Parmeter 



Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android

-- 
Bill Almquist
Planner

                                  
(719) 530-2634
bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com 

"M.S.H.G.S.D"

https://go.onelink.me/107872968?pid=InProduct&c=Global_Internal_YGrowth_AndroidEmailSig__AndroidUsers&af_wl=ym&af_sub1=Internal&af_sub2=Global_YGrowth&af_sub3=EmailSignature
mailto:bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 1.
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:47 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

 

Please be aware that Mayor’s and council’s behavior has instilled mistrust and lack of transparency with the
public by only hearing CHT’s side during the City Council meetings on 15 Oct 2019 and 16 Mar 2020. 

 

15 Oct 2019 council meeting did not include all parties as only CHT was represented.  The agenda item was
nebulous and didn’t invoke a reason for citizens to look further in the package: 

 

Agenda item 6.g  Request for Property Donation – Chaffee Housing Trust (Administration)

 

An average citizen would not be alarmed by this agenda item and would not consider looking at the package to
see if it impacts them.  The details of the agenda item were buried in a 31 MB package and found on page 193
of 219 pages further exemplifying the City’s lack of transparency. The package included a property survey that
would require the city to donate land to the abutting property owner not CHT.   City council present at this
meeting included Dan Shore and Cheryl Brown-Kovacic (council member at the time). Both have conflict of
interests.  Dan shows bias toward CHT as he is donator to CHT and Cheryl was on the CHT advisory board. 
Cheryl motioned to approve the request to begin vacation of the land.  All these behaviors further support a lack
of transparency from the City deepening mistrust.

 

16 March work session did not include all parties.  It was held 6 days after the Governor requested COVID
emergency disaster.  No teleconferencing options were provided for this meeting.  The meeting was biased
toward CHT as citizens being cautious about COVID spread were not provided an avenue to participate and
were discriminated. Read, CHT executive director, had the mayor and council’s undivided attention for over an
hour.  The opposition’s comments from the 4 Mar community meeting were not accurately presented by the
Planning Commission.  Recap of 4 March meeting  in the 16 March working session shows bias by using
“perceived” and not accurately reflecting the comment on affordable housing survey.

“Attendees were largely in opposition to the project due to perceived to property values, questioning the need of
affordable housing and implications for traffic and transportation.”

 

The opposition stated the survey did not accurately reflect the views of all Salida citizens.  A valid survey should
have 80% response rate.  The survey has a 12% response rate. The survey only asked if affordable housing
was an issue.  It did not ask if affordable housing means home ownership. It did not ask if people would prefer
to own or rent affordable housing. It did not ask the city to vacate a busy public street.  The following is the list
from 4 Mar meeting.  The city has not provided response and did not attempt to impartially acknowledge the
opposition:

 

Why is CHT not building rentals?



What were the criteria for determining available lots?

What lots did the City of Salida determine were available?

What does the timeframe or timeline look like?

Why is the property going to be rezoned?

That the project will lower our property values

That the survey that addresses affordable housing as a number one concern of Salida

Citizens does not reflect the views of Salida citizens accurately .

Clarity on the deed management and intergenerational transfer of deeds.

That the process is moving too fast.

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


E. Crestone Public hearing comment 2 
Inbox x 

 
Michelle Parmeter 
 

Wed, Jun 17, 7:48 AM (1 day ago) 
 
 
 to me 

 
 

The city continues to ignore the fact that the E. Crestone public hearing signs are non-

compliant.  They did not meet full 15 day posting period nor did they accurately describe the 

nature of the public hearing. The public notice signs further instill public mistrust as they do not 

draw the attention of passing cars, bikes or walkers.    The signs are 27” off the ground and are 

not visible to passing cars. They don’t even look like good garage sale signs.  See example of 

useful public notice signs. 

  

 



 

  

Please provided Chain of Custody of digital evidence that supports the pictures metadata were 

safe from secondary tamperring. 

  

One sign per property is required by code: "Notice shall be posted by the applicant on the subject 

property...."  

  

There are 2 applications for 2 properties being discussed, rezoning E. CRESTONE property and 

vacation.  

E. CRESTONE property that is going to be rezoned did not meet 15 day and applicant placement 

requirement plus full disclosure. The 3rd W Public notice did not meet full disclosure 

requirement. 

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android 

https://go.onelink.me/107872968?pid=InProduct&c=Global_Internal_YGrowth_AndroidEmailSig__AndroidUsers&af_wl=ym&af_sub1=Internal&af_sub2=Global_YGrowth&af_sub3=EmailSignature


  

On Thu, Jun 11, 2020 at 12:48 PM, Bill Almquist 
<bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com> wrote: 
For reference, I am attaching photos showing that the site was posted in multiple locations (only 

one location is required by the Code) on Friday, June 5th. I am also attaching a photo of the 

replacement notice that I constructed at the corner of W. 3rd and E. Crestone Ave. on Monday, 

June 8th, after I learned that the postings had blown off in Saturday's "derecho." I also attempted 

to re-secure one of the other notices to the stop sign, but it appears that sign fell down again. The 

sign at the corner of W. 3rd and E. Crestone Ave. remains.  

  

On Thu, Jun 11, 2020 at 12:03 PM Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> wrote: 

The city’s lack of transparency is appalling with respect to E Crestone vacation and 
adjoining property rezoning and it is a travesty of civil and fair government.  The 
public hearing signs for the applications to rezone and vacate are non-compliant to 
meet the 22 Jun Public Hearing. 
  
The sign on E. Crestone (attached) was blown away last Saturday lasting less than 
20 hours.  It was replaced by Bill at 345 pm on Monday and was promptly blown up 
the street by wind.  It was placed in its current state the next day by an elderly 
gentleman who walks up E. Crestone every day.  It looks like trash in the ditch. 
  
The notice posting has not met the 15-day requirement for public hearing nor was it 
posted in its current state by the applicant.  The notice also did not mention the 
donation of land thereby not fully disclosing the purpose of the public hearing. The 
above are violations of public hearing notice posting requirements. 
  
It also used legalese most people do not understand.  Most people do not know that 
vacation of E. Crestone means the street is going away which further exemplifies the 
City’s lack of transparency. 
  
The following was sent to Bill Almquist on 8 June 2020: 
  
One of your signs met its demise with the wind again this afternoon after you left. 
I counted the hours the signs were up and took pictures.  
You did not meet the full 15 days required for public hearing notices being displayed 
on the property prior to the public hearing. 
You also didn't fully disclose the full intent of vacation and rezoning ... eventual 
donation of land that provides government services which is an illegal donation. 
You also didn't make them sturdy or waterproof.  
  
QED: The 22 June meeting has to be moved. 
  
Regards, 
Michelle M Parmeter  

 

mailto:bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com
mailto:mparmete@yahoo.com


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 3
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:48 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

Even though the code only requires letters go to properties 175 ft from subject property, the city has further
instilled mistrust by not making it clear to the Mesa and west-side neighborhoods that the proposed  Crestone
corridor to/from downtown is being eliminated and they will be impacted. 

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 4
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:49 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

 

 

City council approved the motion for city staff to begin the application process for E. Crestone vacation on 15
October 2019. The section of land proposed to be vacated in this motion is different than the E. Crestone
vacation application proposed section of land submitted by City of Salida/Chaffee Housing Trust (CHT).  The
difference between the land section in what was approved with Council motion and what is part of the vacation
application is a piece of land that abuts a private property owner.  The action by the City of Salida to begin
vacation of land that was not approved in the 15 October motion and to change the section of land in the
vacation application to benefit CHT is unethical and shows blatant bias toward CHT. Had the City of Salida kept
with the approved by motion land vacation section, the City would have to quick claim deed the land to the
abutting property owner. Since the city is both the applicant and approver of this application, they are the plaintiff
and judge at the same and just talking about the application in City offices/staff meetings without the defendants
(concerned citizens) being present is also unethical. 

 

Sec. 16-6-130. - Vacation of recorded plat, right-of-way or easement.
(2) Quitclaim Deed. Whenever the City approves an application vacating a public right-of-way, the
City shall provide abutting landowners with a quitclaim deed for the vacated lands. Each abutting
landowner shall be deeded that portion of the vacated right-of-way to which the owner's land is
nearest in proximity.

 

According Colorado Constitution Article XXIX Ethics in Government Section 1c, local government officials or
employees shall avoid conduct that is in violation of their public trust or that creates a justifiable
impression among members of the public that such trust is being violated.

 

Colorado Constitution Article XXIX – Ethics in Government

Section 1. Purposes and findings.

(1) The people of the state of Colorado hereby find and declare that:

 

(a) The conduct of public officers, members of the general assembly,

local government officials, and government employees must hold the

respect and confidence of the people;

(b) They shall carry out their duties for the benefit of the people of the



state;

(c) They shall, therefore, avoid conduct that is in violation of their

public trust or that creates a justifiable impression among members of

the public that such trust is being violated;

 

It is the duty of all public servants to ensure that the public's money is spent as efficiently as possible and
that programs are provided effectively, without discrimination or prejudice, with transparency and without
waste of money or resources

 

Although CHT and the City have made E. Crestone about affordable housing to feed on the goodwill of citizens,
E. Crestone vacation opposition is not about to have or to not have affordable housing. It is about public safety,
fiscal responsibility and ethics.

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 5
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:50 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

 

E. Crestone opposition is not about to have or to not have affordable housing.

While data will support that Salida needs affordable housing, the fiscal and safety data does not support it on E.
Crestone. Providing affordable housing is the right thing to do but E. Crestone is the wrong place. In addition to
public safety and fiscal responsibility issues surrounding the vacation and rezoning of property, there is already
affordable housing 1000 ft from the projected development site (HUD housing at Mesa/Crestone).  This section
of the city is already “scattered” with affordable housing.  The development code needs to reflect that all
neighborhoods equally share the responsibility of affordable housing scattering. 

CHT and the City unfortunately has made E. Crestone about affordable housing to feed on the sympathy of
goodwill.  The City’s benevolence and emotions have succumbed to believing E. Crestone development is
viable location for affordable housing. The affordable housing platform cannot be an excuse to ignore public
safety and fiscal responsibility.  

 

Fiscal responsibility

       Applicant screening process 

Research should be done on organization’s processes and practices before donating to that organization. 
Noble cause alone cannot be grounds for donations.  Donations should not be given to an organization with
processes susceptible to fraud and that are not equitable.  

CHT’s applicant screening process has been recently been abused and is susceptible to fraud.

The following screen shots have been redacted for the individual’s name; however, the name of the applicant is
public knowledge due to our county tax assessor database, county website and social media.  

The applicant is the BV lumberyard employee mentioned in the 27 May 2020 Mountain Mail editorial by Ken
Matthews.  The applicant is a 21-year-old male. The BV lumberyard employee bought the CHT house on 27
March 2020, quit his lumberyard job on 3 Apr 2020 and started as a Chaffee County Detention officer on 6 Apr
2020.  The Chaffee County Detention officer job pays $42K/year which is over the minimum income allowed for
CHT housing for a single person.  It takes more than 10 days to get hired by the county as a detention officer.  A
screening process that allows this is not fair to those that really need help … even non-low income individual get
the opportunity to buy a house at age 21.

       Cost

The land value alone ranges from $360K to $430K.  Harald is selling his .16 acres on Hillside for $144K. The tax
value on .17 acres in town is around $120K.

E. Crestone property is .17 acres

E. Crestone vacated street is .18 acres

M. Street property is .17 acres  (from county tax accessor)



 

P.T’s requirement for selecting viable lots around town were that they were shovel-ready. Rezoning, vacating a
street and moving utilities does not constitute shovel-ready.  The citizens asked for the requirements for
selecting viable lots numerous times and we have not been given an answer.

Drew Nelson’s comment that E. Crestone is an “odd” angle so it must go away is not a valid argument.  There
are at least a half dozen “Bermuda” triangles around town … some of them with parks. Parks are shovel-ready.

 

Public Safety

o            E. Crestone is the most natural flowing corridor to/from downtown to/from the Mesa. It is the natural
extension of Highway 160.   It is the least restricted corridor as well: no stop signs or yield signs.

o            Traffic study performed on E. Crestone is invalid due to decrease activity in these pandemic times. Any
numbers from the traffic study should be doubled or tripled to accurately reflect vehicular traffic volumes.  The
traffic study also does not count any pedestrian or bicycle traffic. 

o            You are taking away a major traffic route from the Mesa and routing vehicles and cars through a
congested road (Crestone) in front of the courthouse and county buildings as well as through an unsafe
intersection (Crestone and Poncha).

o            Routing traffic via H 291 is longer is distance and traverses a busy section of 1st Street. 

o            Last week, we saw 4 Sheriff vehicles and 2 Salida police vehicles scream up E. Crestone in a period of
2 hours.

o            A minute increase in response times increases mortality by between 8 (measured 1 day after the initial
incident) and 17% (measured 90 days after the initial incident).  By eliminating E. Crestone, you are increasing
the emergency response time from the fire station to the Mesa neighborhoods.  Does the city really want to be
liable for the increase of mortality?

o            By eliminating E. Crestone,  you putting vehicular, pedestrian and bicycle traffic to/from the Mesa in
danger.

 

While I applaud your intent to help affordable housing issues, affordable housing cannot trump public safety or
fiscal responsibility. 

 

Michelle M Parmeter 

 







 



Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android

 

 

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.onelink.me/107872968?pid=InProduct&c=Global_Internal_YGrowth_AndroidEmailSig__AndroidUsers&af_wl=ym&af_sub1=Internal&af_sub2=Global_YGrowth&af_sub3=EmailSignature
https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


E. Crestone public hearing comment 6 
Inbox x 

 
Michelle Parmeter 
 

Wed, Jun 
17, 7:51 AM 
(1 day ago) 

 
 
 

to me 

 
 

  

City council approved the motion for city staff to begin the application process for E. Crestone 

vacation on 15 October 2019. The section of land proposed to be vacated in this approved 

motion (see first image) is different than the E. Crestone vacation application proposed section of 

land submitted by CHT/City of Salida (see second image).  The difference between the land 

section in what was approved by Council motion and what is part of the vacation application is a 

section of land that abuts a private property owner (see third image).  The action by the City of 

Salida to begin vacation of land that was not approved in the 15 October Council motion and to 

change the section of land in the vacation application to benefit CHT is unethical and shows 

blatant bias toward CHT. Had the City of Salida kept with the approved by motion land vacation 

section, the City would have to quick claim deed the land to the abutting property owner  (Pryor 

resident). It is also a conflict of interest for any public servant to take a premeditated impartial 

position on any application.  

  

City of Salida Municipal Code Sec. 16-6-130. - Vacation of recorded plat, right-of-way or 

easement.  

(2) Quitclaim Deed. Whenever the City approves an application vacating a public right-of-way, 

the City shall provide abutting landowners with a quitclaim deed for the vacated lands. Each 

abutting landowner shall be deeded that portion of the vacated right-of-way to which the owner's 

land is nearest in proximity. 

  

According Colorado Constitution Article XXIX Ethics in Government Section 1c, local 

government officials or employees shall avoid conduct that is in violation of their public trust or 

that creates a justifiable impression among members of the public that such trust is being 

violated. 

  

Colorado Constitution Article XXIX – Ethics in Government 

Section 1. Purposes and findings. 

(1) The people of the state of Colorado hereby find and declare that: 

(a) The conduct of public officers, members of the general assembly,  

local government officials, and government employees must hold the  

respect and confidence of the people; 

(b) They shall carry out their duties for the benefit of the people of the  

state; 

(c) They shall, therefore, avoid conduct that is in violation of their  



public trust or that creates a justifiable impression among members of  

the public that such trust is being violated; 

  

Reference Colorado Independent Ethics Commission 

handbook: https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/sites/default/files/IEC_Ethics_Handbook_2016.pdf 

  

It is the duty of all public servants to ensure that the public's money is spent as efficiently as 

possible and that programs are provided effectively, without discrimination or prejudice, with 

transparency and without waste of money or resources. Adding to the previous list from Friday’s 

email, affordable housing cannot trump public safety, fiscal responsibility or a code of ethics.  I 

want to believe I can trust the City of Salida to move in the ethical direction with respect to the 

E. Crestone vacation application.  

  

Michelle M Parmeter  

 

https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/sites/default/files/IEC_Ethics_Handbook_2016.pdf


 

 



 

 



Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E Crestone public comment 7
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:50 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

CHT housing is not affordable.

Even with land donations, the price per square foot for CHT housing is unaffordable:

Salida – Two rivers house sold on 19 April 2019 for $266.8K with 828 sq ft comes to $322/sq ft

BV- The Farm house sold on 27 March 2020 for $213.5 K with 930 sq ft comes to $230/sq ft

The cost per square foot to build a basic home in Colorado is $150/sq ft.  Any developer or individual given free
land should be able build a house for less than $230-322/sq ft.   Is a nonprofit corporation profiting from this
difference in cost per square foot, $140K and $74K, respectively for the homes mentioned above? Is this really
affordable?  You decide.

Whether you are an individual,  business or municipality, donations and grants to organizations should not be
given on noble cause alone.  In the case of the City of Salida:

•         What oversight/due diligence is done by City of Salida before donating to any organization?

•         Where is City of Salida’s checklist used as criteria for screening eligibility of organizations requesting
donations?

•         What percentage of the donations goes toward salaries and operational expenses for the organization? 

•         What is the organization’s five-year plan for growth (employees and assets)?

•         Is the business model of the organization fiscally sound, sustainable and resilient?

•         Does the organization protect personal individual information according to PII (Personally Identifiable
Information) cyber security best practices?

 

Money used to provide donations and grants to organizations comes from taxpayers (income, property and
sales tax).  CHT’s request for E. Crestone land donation by the City of Salida is misuse of the affordable
housing platform and taxpayer benevolence.  City council is being negligent by donating to any organization that
doesn’t adhere to consistent, objective, safe and fair business processes.

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 8
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:50 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

The applications submitted by Chaffee Housing Trust (CHT) for vacation of E Crestone and rezoning the
collective land to R2 should be null and void:

https://cityofsalida.com/wp-content/uploads/3.16.20-Packet.pdf

The applications were signed only by CHT executive director on 6 February 2020 as applicant/agent. The
applications were submitted to the City by CHT just before the 4 March 2020 community meeting. The City of
Salida was hand-written in as co-applicant on the applications sometime after the submission by CHT. The
owner signature block was left unsigned.

CHT is not the owner of the land therefore should not be able to request vacation or rezoning of land.  The land
is owned by the citizens of Salida. CHT is a non-profit corporation with over $1.5M in assets in 2018 (obtained
from 2018 tax form 990). City council is overstepping their boundaries by sole-sourcing affordable housing
development to CHT.

The applications cherry pick sections from the 2013 city comprehensive plan as the reason for
vacating and rezoning; however, the plan clearly states, “The City of Salida does not directly provide
affordable housing for the community.”  How much more direct can you get than donating citizen-
owned land, city services and city labor?  A comprehensive plan is not law … rather it is a guide of
vision.

https://cityofsalida.com/wp-content/uploads/Complete-Comprehensive-Plan.pdf

H-II.1 – Promote new development projects that contain a variety of housing, including affordable
units.

Action H-II.1.a – Any residential development at the Vandaveer Ranch should include a significant
affordable housing component.

Action H-II.1.b – Consider adoption of an inclusionary zoning ordinance.

Action H-II.1.c – Seek changes to the Land Use Code to ensure that affordable housing is
interspersed throughout the city, maintaining diversity in existing neighborhoods.

The comprehensive plan does not recommend vacating a busy street and donating city assets,
services and labor for affordable housing.

The planning commission meeting scheduled for May 26th to review these applications should be
canceled due to the invalid submission of applications by CHT or at the very least postponed due to
the state order requiring group gatherings be less than 10 people.

Rezoning and vacating of land requires a major impact review by the City Council. If indeed the city continues to
review these invalid applications, the City Council should recuse themselves due to conflict of interest based on
their lack of impartiality (non-signatory co-applicant) and conspiracy of personal agendas.  We live in a
democratic society. The council cannot be the judge, jury and executioner for these applications. Where are the
checks and balances in this process if City council can give away city land and services without due process?

 

https://cityofsalida.com/wp-content/uploads/3.16.20-Packet.pdf
https://cityofsalida.com/wp-content/uploads/Complete-Comprehensive-Plan.pdf


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 9
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:53 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

The application for vacation of E. Crestone/rezoning of land to R2 and subsequent donation of land to CHT
should be stopped due to the following reasons:

1. E. Crestone does serve governmental purposes. A City-owned utility sewer line runs underneath it.   This
contradicts Nelson’s statement in the 1 May 2020 Mountain Mail article: “Nelson cited Colorado Revised
Statutes 31-15-713 when he said real estate owned by a municipality not used for governmental
purposes may be transferred via ordinance. Since there has been no governmental use of the property in
question, it is eligible to be transferred by ordinance.”

2. A traffic study conducted during Stay/Safer at home Executive Orders is being used to support the
vacation of E. Crestone.  It is not a valid traffic study due to COVID-19 and the closing of Chaffee County
to tourism.

3. The vacation causes injury to the surrounding neighborhoods.  It is non-compliant with Municipal Code
Section 16-4-110: “… shall not cause undue traffic congestion, dangerous traffic conditions or
incompatible service delivery, parking or loading”

a. Increases traffic/parking on an already busy street
b. Re-routes Mesa traffic to Crestone Ave which is already burdened with traffic/parking issues

around the courthouse and county buildings.
c. Lacks realistic/safe residential parking for the proposed units.  Even though city code only

requires 1 parking space/unit, actual parking space/unit usage is closer to 2-3. Proposed residents
will have to park additional vehicles somewhere on 3rd street and walk/cross on an unsafe street.

4. The donation of city land and services is not fiscally prudent or legal.
5. The use of our electric franchise fee fund collected from Exel Energy(1% of our energy bills) to help with

undergrounding current utilities for the site needs to be prevented.   This money is for use by all residents
to assist with undergrounding utilities.

Instead of cramming six 35 ft tall buildings on .17 acres and jeopardizing the safety of our citizens in
surrounding neighborhoods, the land on E. Crestone should be designated as a pollinator garden perhaps to
commemorate our City’s fallen civil servants. The land has 7 trees and native rabbitbrush which is beneficial to
migrating butterflies.  We need more green zones in Salida and less structures polluting our skyline.

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 10
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 7:54 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

 

In the Friday February 27th, 2020 Mountain Mail, there was an article outlining Chaffee Housing Trust’s meeting
on Thursday March 5th during which CHT plans on giving updates on recent activities.  What the article fails to
mention is a major request of CHT that is in the works:

The CHT is applying to have the City-owned lots (triangles) on either side of E. Crestone Ave where
intersects 3rd St. donated to the CHT. This would include the vacation of that short section of E.
Crestone between 3rd and M. The lot created would allow the construction of 5 units + and ADU on the
south side of the lot, backed up to the east side for affordable housing.

On October 15, 2019, the council unanimously approved vacation of E. Crestone Ave without a no-injury, traffic
or emergency response impact assessment. CHT was the only side represented in the 15 Oct meeting. In early
November 2019, the city had the property surveyed at the city’s expense.  In late February 2020, the city started
removing street signs on W 3rd Street.   CHT is announced the development of that property for affordable
housing on March 4th, 2020 at 600 PM in the Scout Hut.  CHT further continued development discussion without
opposing parties at the 16 March 2020 City council work session.

Property values surrounding the lots average over $500K.  The average price of the affordable housing will be
$265K.  A 2017 Stanford affordable income housing study indicates that housing of similar value surrounding
affordable housing does not see a negative impact; however, surrounding housing that is valued well-above the
affordable housing value does see a negative impact to value.

The 2018 inclusionary housing ordinance requiring 12.5% affordable homes is for new annexations and
developments of 5 or greater units.  Salida has plenty of large undeveloped zones that will provide affordable
housing due to the inclusionary housing ordinance.  Decisions by the council around affordable housing need to
be fair, informed and least impactful to its citizens.

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

E. Crestone public hearing comment 11
Michelle Parmeter <mparmete@yahoo.com> Wed, Jun 17, 2020 at 8:49 AM
To: Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

Please explain why Salida Municipal code does not explicitly state which decisions the
city considers quasi-judicial.  This is best practice.

Does the City of Salida have a published code of ethics? If not, why? Does the city have
certified ethics training for its personnel?

Please explain why Salida Mayor and City council did not ask if opposing party was
represented at the 15 Oct 19 and 16 Mar 20 council meetings.

By not asking, these meetings even though they were public are analogous to a judge
allowing court proceedings to occur without opposing council.

 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

 

https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?LinkId=550986




Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

FW: Letter of support for affordable housing
1 message

Glen VanNimwegen <glen.vannimwegen@cityofsalida.com> Mon, Jun 1, 2020 at 10:13 AM
To: bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com

 

 

 

              Glen Van Nimwegen, AICP

       Community Development Director

 

From: robert weisbrod [mailto:weisbr9@yahoo.com] 
Sent: Sunday, May 31, 2020 8:45 PM
To: glen.vannimwegen@cityofsalida.com
Subject: Le�er of support for affordable housing

 

 

submit.

 

Dear Editor,

            I ask your readers to support the efforts to create affordable housing in Salida, including the East
Crestone street vacation to create a buildable lot. As a result of home ownership through the Chaffee Housing
Trust, I’ve been able to stay in my current job at the hospital. As a renter, it was getting too expensive for me to
stay in Salida and I would have left town. Instead, I’m not stressed about getting kicked out of my place because
they are going to sell it, or raise the rent yet again to where I can’t afford it. My home is a lot nicer than rentals
I’ve lived in. I’m getting to know my neighbors here, which didn’t happen in a rental. I’m developing community
with other homeowners, I can garden here, and I have stability, socially and financially with fixed monthly
housing payments that will not go up.

mailto:weisbr9@yahoo.com
mailto:glen.vannimwegen@cityofsalida.com


            Employees that work here should be able to live here. It is good for businesses because workers stay
longer. They do less commuting (less environment impact). Workers who live in the community spend most of
their money in the community, contributing to the tax base, supporting local businesses. As a percentage of their
income, they spend more than wealthy residents and visitors. Moderate amounts of tax dollars should be spent
on supporting workforce. Tax dollars are spent beautifying the city for tourists, on roads, schools, and other
essential things. Aren’t workers essential to our economy? 

Please, let’s help out our local employees and our community, we’ll all be happier in the end. 

Robert Weisbrod

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone

https://overview.mail.yahoo.com/?.src=iOS




Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

East Crestone Avenue Right of Way Vacation
Gregory Smith <gsmith@cruzio.com> Fri, Jun 19, 2020 at 11:50 AM
To: bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com
Cc: gsmith@cruzio.com

Bill,

 

I have to object to this complete fiasco.  Taking a highly used city street out of use and giving it away to private
ownership is ultimately the worst planning proposal that I have seen in my years of being an architect.  The
street also functions as a public utility corridor that will now have those public utilities bisect private property. 
 The number of issues and problems that this creates destroys any semblance of logic for the contrived benefits
this action will offer.  I’m sorry that the reputation of the Planning Department along with the Planning
Commission, and City Council will be diminished if this action goes thru.

 

Gregory Smith

20 Trailside Circle

Salida, Colorado 81201

 

(831) 247-2219

gsmith@cruzio.com

 

https://www.google.com/maps/search/20+Trailside+Circle+Salida,+Colorado+81201?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/20+Trailside+Circle+Salida,+Colorado+81201?entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:gsmith@cruzio.com


Bill Almquist <bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com>

East Crestone
Sandy Baur <sandybaur107@gmail.com> Tue, Jun 23, 2020 at 7:53 AM
To: bill.almquist@cityofsalida.com

I am writing because I am deeply concerned about the possible closure of E. Crestone. Why the city would
consider closing one of the FEW access points to the mesa is beyond me. More and more homes are being
built on the mesa which increases traffic on Crestone. Closing Crestone will force an increase in traffic in front of
the courthouse and through one of the most dangerous intersections in Chaffee County. Pushing people to
access the mesa from 7th is not a strong option as it increases traffic past Longfellow. During the school year, is
that a good idea?
Please keep Crestone open!

Sent from my iPhone







Estimated City of Salida Contributions Related to Conceptual CHT Affordable Housing Development:
(Location: Corner of W. 3rd Street/M Street/East Crestone Ave)

Street Configuration Option 1:                                              
(E. Crestone Ave Cul-de-sac & M Street Closed and 
Replaced with Pedestrian Accessway/Open Space): 

Street Configuration Option 2:                              
(M Street Realignment and Regrade)

Expended to 
Date?

Appraised Land Value* $122,000* $122,000* No

Cost of Appraisal $3,700 $3,700 Yes

Site Survey $1,600 $1,600 Yes

Full Engineering & Design $7,000 $7,000 No

Right-of-way Improvements  $75,000 - $100,000 $90,000 - $115,000 No

Undergrounding of Electrical Lines** $80,000** $80,000** No

Totals $289,300 - $314,300 $304,300 - $329,300

*Appraised value is likely to increase if rezoning and right-of-way vacation applications are approved

Created 06/18/2020

**The City has discretion to use reserve funds from Xcel Energy's franchise fee specifically for this purpose, often in coordination with anticipated development. 
The underground fund currently has approximately $1.2 million available. These funds can only  be used for undergrounding of electrical facilities and are not 
reimbursable to the City.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                               Meeting: July 7, 2020   
    
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

  

    

 
 

ITEM:    
Resolution 2020-24 – Possible approval of a major subdivision for Confluent Park Subdivision;  16.3 
acres located at the northeast corner of Highway 50 and Vandaveer Ranch Road.  
BACKGROUND: 
The applicant is requesting the City Council approve the Confluent Park Subdivision.  The proposed 
subdivision consists of 39 lots.  The site is zoned Planned Development with the underlying districts 
of Residential Mixed Use (RMU), High Density Residential (R-3) and Commercial (C-1).   
Applicants:  Confluent Park Salida, LLC as represented by Bill Hussey of Crabtree Group. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The zoning for the site is a modification of the previous Vandaveer Ranch Planned Development 
with the underlying zoning as shown below.  The development plan allowed some variations to the 
dimensional requirements of the underlying districts and approval processes.   
 
 

5.e.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                               Meeting: July 7, 2020   
    
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

  

    

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Lots 39 and 1 were previously created through the Minor Subdivision (Attachment 2) which was 
recommended for approval by the Planning Commission on January 7, 2020 and finally adopted 
by the City Council on January 21, 2020.  The subdivision was approved in two steps to facilitate 
acquisition of Lot 1 for the Low Income Housing Tax Credit project by Commonwealth 
Development.  Lot 39 was dedicated to the City for a park site. 
 
The proposed major subdivision is almost identical to what was presented with the Planned 
Development.  The only changes were very minor movement to lot lines in the RMU site to 

5.e.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                               Meeting: July 7, 2020   
    
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

  

    

 
 

accommodate some required changes to the right-of-way for Trenton Street.  The development 
plan is attached as Attachment 3. 
 
MAJOR SUBDIVISION: 
A major subdivision requires a recommendation from the Planning Commission and final approval 
by the City Council.  The proposed subdivision must comply with the following standards: 
 
1. Comprehensive Plan. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

that promotes diverse residential housing styles and access to trails and open space. 
 
2. Zone District Standards. The proposed subdivision and ultimate development of the lots will 

comply with the Confluent Park Planned Development and other applicable standards of the 
Land Use and Development Code. 

 

3. Improvements. Besides the new interior streets, the applicant will be improving the south side 
of the new Confluence Drive, located on the north side of the subdivision.  Condition #8 of 
Ordinance 2020-01 requires a second water line connection to the subdivision from Oak Street 
prior to issuing any Certificate of Occupancies within the project. 

 

4. Natural Features. The site is relatively flat except for the area in the northwest portion of the 
site that is within the floodplain.  This area is approximately 10 feet below Highway 50.  There 
is no natural vegetation on the site. 

 

5. Floodplains.  A portion of the northeast side of the site is within the 100 year floodplain.  The 
applicant has approval to raise this portion of the site out of the floodplain through an approved 
Conditional Letter of Map Revision.  The Floodplain Administrator has approved the rough 
grading permit for the site and will ultimately have to certify pad elevations are above the flood 
elevation before building permits are issued. 

6. Noise Reduction.  “Where a subdivision borders on or contains a highway right-of-way, the City 
shall require adequate provisions for reduction of noise.  A parallel street, landscaping, 
screening, easement, greater lot depth, increased rear yard setbacks and fencing are 
potentially appropriate solutions, among others.” Confluent Park is adjacent to Highway 50.  
The lots adjacent to the highway are setback a minimum of 25 feet that will include a 
landscape buffer. 

 
7. Future Streets. The development plan for Confluent Park allowed narrower streets for Cleora 

and Chase Streets.  Condition #9 of the planned development requires the construction Cleora 
Drive and Confluent Drive shall be in the first phase.  The developer is proposing to phase the 
project from the south to the north as shown on the following page and described in 
Attachment 4.  Approval of a change to the phasing of the project would be an insubstantial 
change that may be approved by the Administrator.  Staff is in agreement with the phasing 
subject to two conditions: 1. Provide a temporary turn-around at the end of Cleora Road in 
Phase 1; and 2. Phase 3 will include a second point of access to the subdivision.  Preferably 
the connection would be Confluent Drive on the north side completed to connect to CR 105.  

5.e.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                               Meeting: July 7, 2020   
    
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

  

    

 
 

The developers of Confluent Park and Two Rivers Southside have been coordinating the 
construction of this shared road. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 

 
8. Parks, Trails and Open Space. Through the planned development, the developer dedicated 

1.25 acres (Lot 39) to be developed for a public park.  The PD also stipulated that park fees in 
lieu ($3,000 per unit) will be collected with the construction of homes on Lots 13-38.  Many 
trails and trail connections were required with the project.  They include along Highway 50; on 
the north side of Lot 12; between Lots 6 and 7; on the west side of Lot 38 and a connection 
between the adjacent Judd 33-unit project (6906 LLC) and the future park.   

 
9. Common Recreation Facilities.  “Where a development is proposed to contain common 

recreation facilities, such facilities shall be located within the development so as to be easily 
accessible to the residents and to least interfere with neighboring developments.”  In this case 

5.e.



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                               Meeting: July 7, 2020   
    
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

  

    

 
 

the common amenity will be the centrally located park (Lot 39) owned and maintained by 
Salida. 

 
10. Lots and Blocks.  “The size, shape and orientation of lots shall be appropriate to the design 

and location of the proposed subdivision and to the type of development contemplated.  Where 
appropriate, lots shall be laid out to respect the existing City pattern.  Blocks generally shall not 
be less than three hundred (300) feet nor more than one thousand two hundred (1,200) feet in 
length.”  The proposed blocks meet the above standard (Attachment 1).   

 
11. Architecture.  The design of the residential buildings will have to meet the design standards 

stated in the code to prevent monotonous streetscapes.  The minimum standard is the same 
building front elevation cannot be repeated more than every fifth lot or directly across the 
street.  In addition the planned development included design guidelines for the design of 
structures in the project (see Attachment 3: Ordinance 2020-01). 

12. Codes. The subdivision will comply with all applicable City building, fire and safety codes for 
the proposed development.  

 
13. Inclusionary Housing.  The developer has met the inclusionary housing requirement by deed 

restricting Lot 1 for up to 60 affordable units.  Last May Commonwealth Development received 
approval from the Colorado Housing Finance Authority for Low Income Housing Tax Credits 
worth approximately $1.2 million to build 48 units on the site.  The units will be affordable for 
households earning 30-50% of the Area Median Income. 

  
RESPONSE FROM REFERRAL DEPARTMENTS AND AGENCIES:   
• Salida Fire Department:  Kathy Rohrich, Fire Inspector, reviewed the subdivision and has no 

comments. 
 

• Salida Police Department: Chief Russ Johnson stated he has no concerns with the subdivision. 
 

• Chaffee County Development Services Department:  Dan Swallow, Development Services 
Director: “No concerns at this time.” 
 

• Salida Public Works Department:  Public Works Director David Lady has been involved in the 
development of the plans for the subdivision.  He is recommending a few changes to the plans 
and plat as outlined in his June 9, 2020 memo (Attachment 5).   
 

• Salida Finance Department:  According to Renee Thonhoff, Staff Accountant, there are no 
existing sewer and water taps at the site.  New development will require appropriate taps, 
meters and system development fees. 
 

• Xcel Energy:  Tim Butler, Contract Agent for Right-of-Way and Permits and Sterling Waugh, 
Energy Planner, performed cursory reviews of the plat.  They had a number of questions about 
future development and recommendations for additional easements.  These issues will have to 
be worked out prior to recording the plat.   
 

• Atmos Energy.  Dan Higgins:  “This looks good to me!”   
 

5.e.



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting: July 7, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NO. ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

• Floodplain Administrator:  Mark Rocheleau, PE is employed by JVA Consulting Engineers and
is the city’s Flood Plain Administrator.  He has reviewed the rough grading for the site and will
approve base flood elevations and finished floor elevations for each unit.

• Salida School District R32J:  Shelia Moore, Business Manager for the District stated that fees
in lieu of school dedications should be collected with this subdivision.  Per our agreement with
Chaffee County and the District, the fees have recently been increased to $444.66 per unit.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend the Council approve the application, 
subject to the conditions listed below. 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
The Commission reviewed the subdivision at their June 22, 2020 meeting and recommended the 
Council approve the major subdivision subject to the conditions: 

1. Make corrections to the improvement plans as outlined by the Public Works Director
(Attachment 5).

2. Developer to provide stamped grading plan showing building envelopes, base floodplain
elevation and minimum floor elevations for lots within the floodplain.

3. Add the following notes to the plat to describe the following fees prior to recording:
a. Open space fees in lieu are required at the time of issuing a building permit for Lots 13-38;
b. School site dedication fees in lieu (currently $444.66) are required at the time of issuing

building permits for residential units within Lots 2-38.

4. Developer shall enter into a subdivision improvement agreement that guarantees the
construction of the public improvements that are required for the project, prior to the recording
of the subdivision plat.

5. Coordinate with Xcel Energy on appropriate public utility easements to serve the site.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

A Council person should make a motion “to approve Resolution No. 2020-24 a resolution of the City 
Council for the City of Salida, Colorado approving the Confluent Park Subdivision as recommended 
by staff and the Planning Commission. 

Attachments: 
Resolution 2020-24
1. Confluent Park Subdivision
2. Confluent Park Minor Subdivision (approved January 21, 

2020)
3. Ordinance 2020-01
4. Insubstantial Modification Request
5. Public Works Review June 9, 2020
6. Proof of Publication

5.e.



 
CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 24    
(Series 2020) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
APPROVING THE SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR CONFLUENT PARK MAJOR 
SUBDIVISION. 
 

WHEREAS, the property owners, Confluent Park Salida, LLC (“Developer”) made 
application for approval of a Major Impact Review for Confluent Park Subdivision; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property (“Property”) that is subject to the proposed subdivision 

consists of 16.3 acres located at the northeast corner of Highway 50 and Vandaveer Ranch Road; 
more particularly described Lots 3 and 4 of the Confluent Park Minor Subdivision as recorded at 
reception number 456722 of the Chaffee County Recorder’s Office; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property is zoned as a Planned Development with the underlying zoning 

of R-3, High Density Residential; RMU, Residential Mixed Use and C-1, Commercial District; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved the Planned Development and Minor 

Subdivision on January 21, 2020 after a positive recommendation by the Planning Commission; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 22, 2020 the Salida Planning Commission held a public hearing 

and recommended approval of the Confluent Park Subdivision, consisting of 39 lots; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Salida City Council held a duly noticed public hearing on July 7, 2020. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council for the City of Salida 

that: 
  The Confluent Park Subdivision is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions: 
   

1. Make corrections to the improvement plans as outlined by the Public Works 
 Director (Attachment 5). 

2. Developer to provide stamped grading plan showing building envelopes, base 
 floodplain elevation and minimum floor elevations for lots within the floodplain.  
  

3. Add the following notes to the plat to describe the following fees prior to 
 recording: 

a. Open space fees in lieu are required at the time of issuing a building 
 permit  for Lots 13-38; 

b. School site dedication fees in lieu (currently $444.66) are required at the 
 time  of issuing building permits for residential units within Lots 2-38. 



City of Salida, Colorado 
Resolution No. 24, Series of 2020 
Page 2 of  2 

 
 

4. Developer shall enter into a subdivision improvement agreement that guarantees the 
 construction of the public improvements that are required for the project, prior to the 
 recording of the subdivision plat. 

5. Coordinate with Xcel Energy on appropriate public utility easements to serve the site.   
 
 
RESOLVED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 7th day of July, 2020. 
 
       
 CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
 
 
 
 ________________________ 
 Mayor P.T. Wood 

 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
City Clerk 



CONFLUENT PARK
SUBDIVISION

Attachment 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSISTED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
S H E E T   1   O F   2

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUNE 17, 2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 3 AND 4, CONFLUENT PARK MINOR SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAFFEE COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
    ______________________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS PLAT WAS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE OFFICE OF THE CLERK AND RECORDER OF CHAFFEE COUNTY,

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLORADO, AT ______.M., ON THIS ______ DAY OF ____________, A.D. 20__, UNDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECEPTION NO. ___________________.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL LAND SURVEYOR'S NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND PLAT AND THE INFORMATION PERTAINING TO SAID SURVEY ARE TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED THIS _____ DAY OF _________, 20__.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I, _____________________, A REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR LICENSED TO PRACTICE IN THE STATE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLORADO, DO HEREBY STATE THAT THIS PLATTING WAS PREPARED UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKING, AND THAT THE SURVEY INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE PLAT CONTAINED HEREIN IS BASED ON 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A MONUMENTED LAND SURVEY OF LOT 6, PONCHA VISTA SUBDIVISION, AS SHOWN, AND THAT SAID SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF DEDICATION & OWNERSHIP:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT THE UNDERSIGNED, BEING ALL OF THE OWNERS, MORTGAGEES, AND LIEN HOLDERS OF CERTAIN LAND IN THE CITY OF SALIDA, CHAFFEE COUNTY, COLORADO, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: LOTS 3 AND 4, CONFLUENT PARK MINOR SUBDIVISION, PER PLAT FILED __________________ AS RECEPTION NO. ___________________, CITY OF SALIDA, CHAFFEE COUNTY, COLORADO. DO HEREBY LAY-OUT, PLAT AND SUBDIVIDE THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY INTO LOTS AND STREETS WITH BEARINGS, DISTANCES AND EASEMENTS AS SHOWN ON SHEET 2 CONTAINED HEREIN, TO BE KNOWN AS: CONFLUENT PARK SUBDIVISION CITY OF SALIDA CHAFFEE COUNTY, COLORADO AND CHASE STREET AND TRENTON STREET ARE HEREBY DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF SALIDA AND TO THE PUBLIC AS PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND FOR THE PLACEMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITY LINES. (SEE CERTIFICATE OF STREET AND UTILITY MAINTENANCE.) <LIST EASEMENT INFORMATION>

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN WITNESS HEREOF, THE UNDERSIGNED HAVE CAUSED THESE PRESENTS TO BE EXECUTED ON THIS ________ DAY OF __________ , 2020. CONFLUENT PARK SALIDA, LLC (OWNER) __________ __________________     _____________________________ __________________     _____________________________ _____________________________ WALTER HARDER IV, MEMBER       FOR HIGH COUNTRY BANK (MORTGAGEE) FOR HIGH COUNTRY BANK (MORTGAGEE) STATE OF COLORADO }  } SS SS COUNTY OF CHAFFEE } THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME ON THIS ________ DAY OF __________________, 2019. WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL MY COMMISSION EXPIRES _________________ NOTARY PUBLIC _________________ ADDRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
I, BRETT W. EAKINS, REPRESENTING FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY IN THE STATE OF COLORADO DO CERTIFY THAT I HAVE EXAMINED THE TITLE TO THE REAL PROPERTY SHOWN AND DESCRIBED ON THESE PLATS AND FOUND TITLE VESTED IN CONFLUENTE PARK SALIDA, LLC, A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, FREE AND CLEAR OF ALL LIENS AND ENCUMBRANCES, EXCEPT:_______________________________________________________ ___________________________________________________________________________________ ___________________________ BRETT W. EAKINS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1) RECORD PROPERTY DESCRIPTION AND RECORD EASEMENT RESEARCH BASED ON FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE RECORD PROPERTY DESCRIPTION AND RECORD EASEMENT RESEARCH BASED ON FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMMITMENT NO. 16-04080 ISSUED BY CENTRAL COLORADO TITLE & ESCROW, EFFECTIVE NOVEMBER 10, 2019. 2) DEED LINES ARE BASED ON AFOREMENTIONED PROPERTY DESCRIPTION, AND ON THE LOCATIONS OF THE DEED LINES ARE BASED ON AFOREMENTIONED PROPERTY DESCRIPTION, AND ON THE LOCATIONS OF THE RECOVERED SURVEY MONUMENTS SHOWN AND DESCRIBED ON SHEET 2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF STREET AND UTILITY MAINTENANCE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT NEITHER THE DEDICATED PUBLIC ROADS AND ALLEYS, NOR PUBLIC UTILITIES WILL BE MAINTAINED BY THE CITY OF SALIDA UNTIL AND UNLESS THE SUBDIVIDER CONSTRUCTS THE STREETS/ROADS, ALLEYS AND UTILITIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS AGREEMENT, IF ANY, AND THE SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS AT THE TIME OF THE FILING OF THE PLAT, AND APPROVAL BY THE CITY HAS BEEN ISSUED TO THAT EFFECT. WHEN THE CITY APPROVES A STREET OR UTILITY FOR MAINTENANCE, THE STREET OR UTILITY SHALL BECOME PUBLIC IN ALL SENSES OF THE WORD, AND THE SUBDIVIDER SHALL HAVE NO FURTHER OBLIGATIONS IN REGARDS TO THAT PARTICULAR STREET OR UTILITY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF SALIDA PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS PLAT IS APPROVED BY THE CITY OF SALIDA PLANNING COMMISSION ON THIS ______ DAY OF ___________________, 20_____. ____________________________ CHAIRMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS PLAT IS APPROVED FOR FILING AND THE CITY OF SALIDA HEREBY ACCEPTS THE DEDICATION OF STREETS, ROADS AND ALLEYS SHOWN HEREON SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF "STREET MAINTENANCE" SET FORTH IN CERTIFICATE OF STREET AND UTILITY MAINTENANCE ABOVE, AND FURTHER ACCEPTS THE DEDICATION OF THE EASEMENTS SHOWN AND DESCRIBED ON THESE PLATS. DATED: _____________________________, 20____. BY:____________________________   MAYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFLUENT PARK SALIDA, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
130 WEST SECOND STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALIDA, CO 81201

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTACT: WALT HARDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTAINED HEREON.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE COMMENCED MORE THAN TEN YEARS FROM THE DATE OF THE SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUCH DEFECT. IN NO EVENT MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY WITHIN THREE YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE: ACCORDING TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE ANY LEGAL ACTION BASED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT PER PLANNED DEVELOPMENT, AS AMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT ALLOWANCES AND REQUIREMENTS ARE PER THE CONFLUENT PARK PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT, APPROVED BY ORDINANCE 2020-01, AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO.



AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'X35' SHARED DRIVEWAY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' UTILITY EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' UTILITY EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' UTILITY EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUBLIC TRAIL EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUBLIC TRAIL EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' PUBLIC TRAIL AND PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
    PUBLIC TRAIL EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
144.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
144.31'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'X5' PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'X5' PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'X5' PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'X5' PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'X5' PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'X5' PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'X5' PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'X5' PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'X5' PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEORA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEORA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEORA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHASE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFLUENCE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFLUENCE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'X35' SHARED DRIVEWAY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'X35' SHARED DRIVEWAY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
O U T L O T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T     2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R E S O U R C E    C E N T E R

AutoCAD SHX Text
WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
S4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.0'  SEWER LINE  EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S9

AutoCAD SHX Text
U .  S .               H  I  G  H  W  A  Y               N  O .                5  0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1995

AutoCAD SHX Text
V A N D A V E E R          R A N C H         R O A D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S A L I D A    N A T U R A L

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK  442  PAGE  934

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE BENCHMARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND #5 REBAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION=7018.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARK OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEORA ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
42.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
42.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
   PRIVATE SEWER EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'X5' PUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT (EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEASURED: S15°21'41"E  706.33706.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
N78°47'45"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEASURED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
T R I P L E       T       R A N C H      M I N O R      S U B D V I S I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
Edge of Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text
Edge of Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text
Edge of Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text
Edge of Asphalt

AutoCAD SHX Text
6906, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUESSE, NED

AutoCAD SHX Text
L O T    5

AutoCAD SHX Text
L I T T L E    R I V E R    P R O P E R T I E S     L L C    S U B D I V I S I O N

AutoCAD SHX Text
T W O    R I V E R S   S O U T H S I D E  -  P E N D I N G

AutoCAD SHX Text
S H E E T   2   O F   2

AutoCAD SHX Text
203 G STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALIDA, COLORADO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Job Number:

AutoCAD SHX Text
TPC FILE: J-17-020

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fld. book:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFLUENT  PARK  MINOR SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTICE:   ACCORDING TO COLORADO LAW YOU MUST COMMENCE ANY LEGAL ACTION BASED

AutoCAD SHX Text
J-20-004

AutoCAD SHX Text
S307 Pages

AutoCAD SHX Text
30 & 52, DC TSC3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6/17/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAFFEE COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLORADO

AutoCAD SHX Text
in LOT  1,  SALIDA  NATURAL  RESOURCE  CENTER SUBDIVISION AMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY  WITHIN THREE  YEARS AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUCH DEFECT. IN NO EVENT MAY ANY ACTION BASED UPON ANY DEFECT IN THIS SURVEY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE COMMENCED MORE THAN  TEN  YEARS FROM THE DATE OF THE SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTAINED HEREON.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S H E E T   2   O F   2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C I T Y   O F   S A L I D A

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFLUENT PARK SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED WITHIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAFFEE COUNTY, COLORADO

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOTS 3 AND 4, CONFLUENT PARK MINOR SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT  NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE: 1 INCH = 50 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WBH, CGI

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY of SALIDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSISTED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 16.6.140 OF THE SALIDA MUNICIPAL CODE, A AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 16.6.140 OF THE SALIDA MUNICIPAL CODE, A PAYMENT IN LIEU OF LAND DEDICATION FOR FAIR CONTRIBUTION FOR PUBLIC SCHOOL SITES SHALL BE PAID BY THE OWNER PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING PERMIT FOR ANY NEW RESIDENCE ON SUCH LOT. 2. DEVELOPMENT ALLOWANCES AND REQUIREMENTS ARE PER THE CONFLUENT DEVELOPMENT ALLOWANCES AND REQUIREMENTS ARE PER THE CONFLUENT PARK PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT, APPROVED BY ORDINANCE 2020-01, AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L E G E N D :

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%225

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%225

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%225

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTIONS ARE BASED ON THE BEARING S62°46'30" W BETWEENRECOVERED REBAR MONUMENTS AT THE E'LY-MOST CORNER AND THE SW'LY CORNER OF THE PROPERTY, BEING LOT 1, SALIDA NATURAL RESOURCE CENTER SUBDIVISION AMENDED, AS SHOWN AND DESCRIBED ON THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A RECOVERED #5 REBAR, DESIGNATED SITE BENCHMARK, ELEVATION AS NOTED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A RECOVERED 3 1/4" BRASS CAP ON A 2 1/4" PIPE STAMPED "U.S. DEPT. OF INTERIOR BUR. OF LAND MANAGEMENT, CADASTRAL SURVEY" AND WITH CORNER LOCATION IDENTIFICATION AS SHOWN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A RECOVERED 5/8" REBAR WITH A 1 1/2" ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED "LANDMARK  LS 37937".

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A RECOVERED 5/8" REBAR WITH A 1 1/2" ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED 'LS  16117'.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A RECOVERED 5/8" REBAR WITH A 1 1/2" ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED "SAN JUAN SURVEYING LS 36577".

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A RECOVERED 5/8" REBAR - CAP MISSING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A FIRE HYDRANT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A WATER SHUT-OFF VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A SANITARY SEWER LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF A WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A GAS LINE, LOCATION MARKED BY OTHERS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A BOUNDARY LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES A 5/8" X 24" REBAR WITH A 1 1/2" ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED WITH LOT NUMBERS AND LS 16117 SET FOR THIS SURVEY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.K.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA (ACRES) DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTION 1.24   CITY OWNED AND MAINTAINED PARK CITY OWNED AND MAINTAINED PARK 2.92   RIGHT OF WAY RIGHT OF WAY 0.25   HOA OWNED AND MAINTAINED ACCESS/UTILITY EASEMENT HOA OWNED AND MAINTAINED ACCESS/UTILITY EASEMENT 11.89   LOTS LOTS 16.30  TOTALTOTAL



Attachment 2



Attachment 3



























































































































Memorandum 
Date: June 15, 2020 

To: Glen Van Nimwegen, City of Salida Community Development Director 

From: Bill Hussey (on behalf of Confluent Park, LLC) 

Re: Insubstantial modification request to Confluent Park Planned Development 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Section 5, condition number 9 of the approved Confluent Park Planned Development Amendment 
Ordinance (No. 01 Series 2020) reads “The construction of Cleora Road and Confluence Drive shall be 
the first phase of road construction and shall be complete and accepted prior to issuing any Certificates 
of Occupancy within the project.” 

The PD Amendment was approved on January 21, 2020. Since that time, the global COVID‐19 pandemic 

has created economic uncertainty. In uncertain economic times, it is especially important for developers 

to have flexibility to sustain financially through fluctuations in the real estate and construction markets. 

In addition, the cost of Confluence Drive will be shared between Confluent Park and Two Rivers 

Southside. Two Rivers Southside is not proceeding on the schedule expected by Confluent Park, LLC, at 

the time of PD Amendment approval. 

Therefore, Confluent Park, LLC, hereby requests, by insubstantial modification, to strike Condition 9 of 

Section 5 of Ordinance No. 01, Series 2020. The subdivision is now proposed in three phases per the 

Confluent Park Major Subdivision Civil Engineering Plans. 

Attachment 4



June 9, 2020 

RE: Confluent Park Subdivision 
Plan review comments 

To: Glen VanNimwegen, Community Development Director 

Public Works has completed review of the civil engineering construction plans for the Salida 
Confluent Park Subdivision, dated May 2020. Comments are as follows: 

General Items 
1. Plat - Chase Street does not scale out to be 60-ft width at Cleora Rd. Revise to 60-ft.
2. Plat – A 10-ft public trail easement was previously requested along the north lot line

of Lot 38. The plans indicate a trail but the plat only notes a UE at this lot. Revise
accordingly.

Construction Plans 
1. The construction shall be signed and stamped for final review.  Comments are as

follows:
a. Revise solar light pole detail to reflect current XCEL standards (SH-5).
b. Additional detailing of stormwater inlet required (SH-7).
c. Additional detailing of stormwater tie-in with pan and spandrel on the east

side of Trenton Street at Cleora and Confluent are required (SH-10/11).
d. Revise stamped brick cross-walk detail to match city detail with 8-in

reinforced colored concrete (SH-4).
e. Provide 8-ft trail connection to Vandaveer Rd. w/ADA ramp.
f. Public sidewalk to be extended straight across Lot 38 to ADA ramp at

Trenton Street.
g. Provide w/s crossings in profiles where relevant.
h. It appears that the manhole 6+72 may conflict with the stamped brick

crosswalk. Shift as necessary.
i. Additional detailing of manhole tie-in ‘Structure – 1’ required. Match top of

existing pipe or higher for proposed invert calculation (SH-17).
j. Provide note on meter pit detail that setter shall be set 30-in below lid (SH-

20).
k. Provide plan view detailing with future asphalt street section at PRV location.

Coordinated with public works during design. Shade aerial back to be lighter
(SH-25). Include plan sheet detail of PRV.

Attachment 5



 
It is requested that the comments be addressed and resubmitted for review. After approval 
of a SIA, Owner to coordinate product submittals and preconstruction meeting with Public 
Works prior to initiation of work. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
David Lady, P.E. 
City of Salida 
Director of Public Works 
 
 



Atta



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                               Meeting: July 7, 2020   
    
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 

  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

Glen Van Nimwegen 

  

    

 
 

ITEM:    
Citizen appointments to the Planning Commission – Resolution 2020-25  
BACKGROUND: 
The Planning Commission is made up of seven regular and two alternate members.  Last month 
regular member Johann “Kit” Steimle resigned.  Alternate Member Michelle Walker has indicated 
she would like the opportunity to continue her term as a regular member.  The current makeup of 
the Commission is as follows: 
Member                                                                 Term Expires 
Greg Follet, Chair                                                   06/07/2024 
Francie Bomer, Vice Chair                                     04/21/2023 
Dori Denning                                                          03/21/2024 
Judith Dockery                                                       04/21/2023 
Johann “Kit” Steimle                                              11/07/2021         Resigned June 20, 2020 
Giff Kriebel                                                             01/01/2023 
Douglas Mendelson                                               06/03/2022 
Michelle Walker, Alternate                                     06/07/2024 
Matthew Chambers, Alternate                               03/21/2024 
Staff and Chair Follet are recommending Michelle Walker be moved to the vacant regular position.   
   
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
A Council person should make a motion “to approve Resolution No. 2020-25 a resolution of the City 
Council for the City of Salida, Colorado to reassign Michelle Walker to continue her term, which 
expires June 7, 2024, as a regular member of the Planning Commission.” 
 

 

5.f.



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 25   

(Series of 2020) 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, 
APPROVING CITIZEN APPOINTMENTS TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-7-10 OF THE SALIDA MUNICIPAL CODE. 
 
  
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 2-7-10 of the Salida Municipal Code (“SMC”), 
the City Council shall select and appoint person(s) to serve as members of the City of Salida 
Planning Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is one regular member vacancy on the Planning Commission and 
alternate member Michelle Walker has expressed a desire to be moved to the regular position; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council appreciates the service these members of the community 
have devoted to bettering Salida through participation on the Planning Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 2-7-10 of the Salida Municipal Code (“SMC”), 
the City Council shall confirm the appointments by majority vote. 
   
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SALIDA, COLORADO THAT:  

 
1. The City Council hereby appoints Michelle Walker to complete her term, to expire 

June 7, 2024, as a regular member of the Salida Planning Commission. 
 

 
 RESOLVED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 7th day of July, 2020. 
 
        
       CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
 
      By ____________________________________ 
       Mayor PT Wood 
[SEAL]       
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk 

 









REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

Meeting Date: July 7, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

5.g.

ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration 

PRESENTED BY: 

Drew Nelson 

ITEM: 

Declaration of Extension of State of Local Emergency – COVID-19 Action Plan Implementation 

BACKGROUND: 
As we are all quite aware, the worldwide COVID-19 pandemic has created an environment where 
federal, state and local governments Article XVII, Section 2-17-10 of the Salida Municipal Code 
states that when it appears to the Mayor that the general health, safety and welfare of the inhabitants 
of the City are threatened, he or she may declare a state of emergency by proclamation.  After 
conferring with the Chaffee County Health Department, on Friday, March 13th, 2020, such an 
emergency declaration was approved by Mayor Wood to approve the City of Salida COVID-19 
Action Plan.  The City Council ratified the emergency declaration on March 17th, 2020, extending 
until April 25th, 2020.  A second extension was granted on April 21st, extending the declaration until 
May 6th, 2020, which was extended again until June 3rd, and the last extension was approved until 
July 8th.  This Action Plan provides for a tiered response to local conditions and will be evaluated on 
a constant basis going forward. The Action Plan is attached for your review, and the City is currently 
operating at the Tier II level. 

Section 2-17-30 establishes a term of no more than ten (10) days of for any emergency declaration.  
It also provides that the City Council may extend any proclamation issued by the Mayor for a period 
not to exceed forty (40) days by a two-thirds (2/3) vote.  As issues related to COVID-19 continue, it 
is imperative that the City continues to follow the protocols established in the Action Plan.   

FISCAL NOTE: 
No direct costs immediately; however, costs may be incurred as this ever-evolving situation goes 
forward.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval by the City Council of a Declaration of Extension of Local State of 
Emergency to implement the City of Salida’s COVID-19 Action Plan, as currently established, until 
August 5th, which is one day after the first regular City Council meeting in August. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
A City Councilmember should make a motion to approve a Declaration of extension of Local State 
of Emergency to implement the City of Salida’s COVID-19 Action Plan, extending until August 5th, 
2020, followed by a second and a roll call vote. 



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
EXTENDING A LOCAL STATE OF EMERGENCY 

REGARDING COVID-19 (CORONAVIRUS DISEASE 2019) 

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS: 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 is a highly contagious virus that has spread to numerous countries 
throughout the world, including the United States; and  

WHEREAS, the virus may cause serious illness or death in certain cases, particularly for elderly 
and persons with underlying health conditions; and 

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) declared the worldwide 
outbreak of COVID-19 a “global pandemic”, pushing the threat beyond the “global health emergency” it 
had announced in January; and 

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the Governor of the State of Colorado declared a state of 
emergency due to the presence of COVID-19 in Colorado; and  

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the Board of County Commissioners of Chaffee County declared 
a Local Disaster Emergency as authorized under C.R.S. § 24-33.5-703(3) to assist local governments in 
responding to and recovering from emergency events, including emergency epidemics and pandemics; 
and  

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the Salida City Council unanimously approved an initial Local 
State of Emergency regarding COVID-19, extending until April 25, 2020; and  

WHEREAS, on April 21, 2020, the Salida City Council unanimously approved an extension of the 
Local State of Emergency regarding COVID-19 until May 6, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, on May 5, 2020, the Salida City Council unanimously approved an extension of the 
Local State of Emergency regarding COVID-19 until June 3, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, on June 2, 2020, the Salida City Council unanimously approved an extension of the 
Local State of Emergency regarding COVID-19 until July 8, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the Chaffee County Public Health Department anticipates that, due to the 
contagiousness of the illness and the fact that numerous travelers from around the world visit the 
County, Chaffee County will see cases of the virus and its transmission within the community; and 

WHEREAS, Article XVII, Section 2-17-10 of the Salida Municipal Code authorizes the Mayor to 
declare a State of Emergency via proclamation when it appears that the general health, safety and 
welfare of the inhabitants of the City are threatened by general public unrest or riot, or by attack upon 
the State; and  

WHEREAS, Article XVII, Section 2-17-30 allows for the City Council to extend any proclamation 
issued by the Mayor under Section 2-17-10 to be extended for a period not to exceed forty (40) days by 
a two-thirds (2/3) vote; and  



WHEREAS, the City’s current State of Local Emergency proclamation will expire on July 8th, 2020, 
which does not coincide with the Governor of the State of Colorado’s Safer-At-Home and in the Vast, 
Great Outdoors order, which is anticipated to be extended; and 

WHEREAS, the cost and magnitude of responding to and recovering from the impact of the 
COVID-19 virus on local emergency services providers and medical services is anticipated to be far in 
excess of the community’s available resources; and  

WHEREAS, in response to the outbreak of COVID-19 in Chaffee County and the Salida 
community, and in light of the ongoing risk to public health and safety, at this time it is necessary to 
extend the existing Local State of Emergency. 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY DECLARED BY THE SALIDA CITY COUNCIL: 

Section 1. The confirmed presence of COVID-19 in Chaffee County constitutes a Local State 
of Emergency, as defined in Article XVII, Section 2-17-10 of the Salida Municipal Code, not to exceed a 
term of forty (40) days.   

Section 2. The effect of this declaration of Local State of Emergency shall continue the 
City’s COVID-19 Action Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit A, authorizing a tiered approach to proactively 
respond to changes in the COVID-19 situation as well as reflect the recommendations of our Federal, 
State, and Local Health Departments. 

Section 3. This declaration shall be made effective immediately on July 7, 2020, and shall 
be in effect until August 5, 2020. 

APPROVED, DECLARED AND ADOPTED on this 7th day of July, 2020. 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

[ SEAL ] 

ATTEST:  P.T. Wood, Mayor 
City of Salida, Colorado 

City Clerk 



1 

CITY OF SALIDA – COVID-19 ACTION PLAN 

Purpose:  To provide a comprehensive and tiered Action Plan to City of Salida officials in response 

to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.  This Action Plan is intended to slowly escalate to proactively 

respond to changes in the situation as well as reflect the recommendations of our State and local 

Public Health Departments.  This Action Plan is effective March 13, 2020, until further notice. 

Authority:  Per Sections 2-17-10 and 2-17-20 of the Salida Municipal Code, when it appears to 

the Mayor that the general health, safety and welfare of the inhabitants of the City are 

threatened, he or she may declare a state of emergency proclamation.  The proclamation may 

impose a curfew within the City, may prohibit public or private assemblies, may impose 

restrictions on movement within the City and may contain other regulations necessary and 

proper to the maintenance of public peace, order and safety. 

Tier I 

Heightened Awareness. The CDC and local health authorities have indicated that COVID-19 is in 

the U.S. and are encouraging citizens to be aware and to focus on sanitization and hygiene. 

• Encourage employees to stay home if sick or to go home if exhibiting symptoms while at work.

Employees will continue to use sick leave.

• Identify work spaces where employees can temporarily isolate if they are awaiting

transportation to their home or medical care.

• Wash hands often, also use hand sanitizer often.

• Cover mouth with arm/elbow if coughing.

• Heightened amount of environmental sanitation – Lysol, wipes, environmental germicide

sprays, etc.

• Employees should refrain from traveling to conferences and/or meetings in other parts of the

Country where cases of COVID-19 are expanding.

• Acquire/Inspect/Issue Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) to selected City Staff (gloves,

masks, etc.).



2 

Tier II 

Statewide Concern. The Colorado Department of Health and Environment (CDPHE) have 

indicated multiple cases of COVID-19 within the State of Colorado. When directed by the Mayor, 

City Administrator, or their delegate, the City will move its response to Tier II which, in addition 

to Phase I steps, include: 

• Trial Teleworking and staggered shifts authorized. Departments should, on a very limited

basis, begin to set up telework sites for a limited number of employees to lessen the impact

on Tech Services.

• Employees should refrain of physical contact with each other and with members of the public

(i.e. handshakes, hugging, etc.). CDC recommends a 6’ distance of separation.

• Employees should limit or eliminate any outside agency meeting attendance, unless able to

be done remotely.

• City Departments should begin to limit internal meetings.

• Employees who self-identify as high risk (having compromised immune systems, for example)

should work from home. If sick, no sick leave required – will treat as regular time.  This

provision would temporarily suspend Section 3.5.E. of the City of Salida Personnel Manual

requiring medical certification of illness.  This includes any part-time employees currently

ineligible for sick leave.

• The City will take direction from State and Local Health authorities.

Tier III 

Chaffee County Concern.  Chaffee County Health has indicated multiple cases of COVID-19 within 

the Region. When directed by the Mayor, City Administrator, or their delegate, the City will move 

its response to Tier III which, in addition to Phase II steps, include: 

• Employees will be directed to stay home (or go home) if they or any family member they live

with is exhibiting any symptoms, or if they are high risk. Employees staying home will not be

required to use sick leave, but will treat it as regular pay.  This provision would temporarily

suspend Section 3.5.E. of the City of Salida Personnel Manual requiring medical certification

of illness.  This includes any part-time employees currently ineligible for sick leave.

• Elimination of any City meetings or events (unless able to be done remotely). Recreation

programs shut down, including closure of Salida Hot Springs Aquatic Center, the SteamPlant

Event Center, and the Rotary Scout Hut.  Specific closure dates shall be established by

Department Heads and announced via press release.

• Teleworking and staggered shifts authorized. Departments will continue to roll out additional

measures or plans to allow employees to work remotely, when feasible.

• Departments must take additional steps they have identified to limit exposure between

employees and between employees and members of the public.



 

3 
 

• City buildings reduced staffing authorized. Departments will take steps to ensure City 

Buildings are minimally staffed, but public spaces are very limited.   

• Heightened level of sanitization of spaces including additional germicide spraying. 

• Selected City Staff have PPE on hand and begin utilization, as appropriate. 

• Public events (other than official meetings of City boards) scheduled to take place in City-

owned facilities are suspended until further notice.  The Salida community is strongly 

encouraged to engage in social distancing and to postpone or cancel any gatherings where 

people will congregate in large numbers and/or in close contact with one another.   

• Other steps as directed by State and Local Health authorities. 

 

 

Tier IV 

Full implementation of Response Plan. Tier IV may occur at such time as Chaffee County Public 

Health recommends regionwide social spacing, or schools are shut down, or at such other time 

as Salida deems it to be in the best interest of the organization and/or community. When directed 

by the Mayor, City Administrator, or their delegate, the City will move its response to Tier IV 

which, in addition to Phase III steps, include: 

• City Buildings minimally staffed, no public access. Public will be directed to conduct business 

online, if feasible, or by phone. Non-essential services (City Hall Administration, City Hall 

Finance, Fire Station Administration, Police Station Administration, Public Works 

Administration) are closed to the public.  Public is encouraged to use digital and telephone 

communication, website access, online payments, and other ways of communication to 

conduct business with the City. 

• Departments will fully enact Departmental plans. Teleworking options and staggered shift 

work maximized. Only essential services ongoing, unless able to be provided through 

employees working remotely. 

• Incident Command may be set up locally or in coordination with County Authorities. 

• Selected City Staff mandatory use of PPE. 

• Other steps as directed by State and Local Health authorities, including support of their 

efforts. 

 

 

Mayor P.T. Wood is encouraging the greater Salida and Chaffee County community to work 

together during this time.  “It is imperative that we understand the impact of this pandemic on 

our community, and we know that collective action on preventative hygiene and minimizing 

social gatherings will significantly reduce the long-term impacts on Salida,” he said.  “These short-

term measures will build upon our resiliency and strength.  We have one goal in mind – to 

mitigate the possible spread of the disease and avoid a longer-term risk to our community.  The 

City of Salida is asking your cooperation in proactively implementing these measures.” 

 



 

 

Office of Housing 
PO Box 699 

Salida, CO 81201 

Phone (719) 530-2590 

www.ChaffeeCounty.org  

 

 

Directors Report to the Board of County Commissioners 

for activities in June 2020  

 

 

• Multi-Jurisdictional Housing Authority 

o Letters to Community Partners were mailed on June 12th, 2020.  Thus far, I have 

only received a response from Habitat for Humanity Executive Director, which 

was shared with the Steering Committee.  She had no concerns at all. 

o The Steering Committee Convened June 23rd, 2020.  We reviewed the Cost 

sharing formula and associated IGA, reviewed a Board Member Matrix to begin 

consideration of Board nominees, as well as outlined the next steps and proposed 

timeline for adopting all of the documents.   

o I have incorporated both Buena Vista and Salida’s comments into both the 

Creation IGA and the Funding IGA.  After County legal reviews the document, it 

was agreed that it would be sent to a third party council who has expertise in 

special taxing districts for a final review. 

o We have begun drafting a Personnel Agreement that the newly-formed MJHA can 

use to contract personnel services from the County, primarily that of the Housing 

Director.  

o As a reminder, the Central Peaks Region of El Pomar Foundation has offered the 

MJHA a $50,000 challenge grant.  Details include: 

▪ Contingent upon the creation of the MJHA 

▪ Requires 100% local match; High Country Bank has already pledged 

$1,000. 

▪ To be used for workforce housing. 

 

• Salida Housing Development Corporation 

o The SHDC Board of Directors continues to work with Cardinal Development  on 

a potential Low Income Tax Credit project in Poncha Springs.   

o We are beginning to have weekly meetings to prepare an application to CHFA for 

the tax credits; a letter of intent to apply is due in December 2020. 

o The project will likely be a 9% LITC deal, and include 50 total units, 25% of 

which will be Permanent Supportive Housing (which is for people earning 30% 

AMI or less) and the remaining units will be for people earning 60% AMI or less. 

 

• Rental Deposit Guarantee Program: This program is continuing to see an increase in 

inquiries and activities. 

o A year-end report was submitted to the Central Peaks Regional Council of the El 

Pomar Foundation on June 9, 2020.  A copy of the report, along with letters of 

appreciation from tenants participating in the program, are included as 

attachments to this report. 

 



 

 Page 2 of 10 

• Health Disparities Grant Program  

o The HPAC engaged in a mini-storytelling workshop on June 4th; the result was a 

greater understanding of how local stories can contribute to policy conversations 

and to recruit additional storytellers and advocates for the FY 21 HDGP 

Storytelling workshop. 

o The final events of this grant year occurred on June 25th and June 26th, with 

Randall Arendt presenting the Conservation Subdivision Design process. The two 

events had the same first half, where Randall introduced concepts to embrace 

conservation subdivision in locations that have access to public utilities, and the 

second half of each presentation ended with sketch designs of two different 

parcels, one near Salida on June 25th and one near Buena Vista on June 26th.  

o The HDGP Grant Manager notified us that much of the FY 21 budget has been 

restored, bringing our total budget amount up to $201,165.00.  I will be revising 

our Statement of Work and Budget to reflect the increase, and have it submitted 

by July 13th. 

o FY21 HDGP Statement of Work:  Our budget and statement of work for FY21 

have been approved, and includes the following activities:  

• Two community-wide education events 

• Convening of a Planning Collaborative among all of the jurisdictions 

within the county.  

• Offering at least four training and technical assistance events for the 

Planning Collaborative. 

• Contracting the evaluation of a collaborative GIS tool, shared among the 

Planning Collaborative. 

• Contracting the creation of additional GIS layers, if possible. 

o A final grant report, which will contain policy recommendations based on 

community input, is under draft and should be distributed in July. 

 

• C-PACE:  I am maintaining communication with CPACE Director Tracy Phillips to 

monitor the situation in Fremont County. 

o The following is an update from CPACE Director, as of June 29, 2020: “We have 

revised the amortization schedule and proposed assessment amount and payments 

to reflect the C-PACE funds that were actually dispersed to the developer. This 

will reduce the annual C-PACE payments and will hopefully make the property 

"more attractive" to a potential buyer. We are in the process of finalizing this with 

the developer and hope to have this completed soon.” 

 

• Salida Land Use Code Update:   

o There has been no new activities on this matter since last report. 



 

 Page 3 of 10 

Community Partnerships 
I continue to develop working relationships with a myriad of service providers within Chaffee 

County, often centering around the Rental Deposit Guarantee Program.  

o UAACOG: The Director of Housing for the UAACOG is no longer employed, and 

Amanda Allen, who typically operates their Housing Choice Voucher (HUD Section 8) 

program is serving as the interim Housing Director. I am working with her to being her 

up to speed on the Salida Housing Development Corporation project and the reporting 

requirements of the loan that assisted SHDC acquire the land. 

 

o Public Private Partnerships:  

o I continue to work with Chaffee County Community Foundation to flesh out two 

potential housing developments. The CCCF was awarded $39,000 from the 

Colorado Health Foundation to conduct pre-development work on both projects.  

Part of this predevelopment work is evaluating public private partnerships in 

terms of ownership structure. 

o We met with DOLA-DOH Housing Development Specialist on June 3rd to review 

the project as envisioned.  The project in Salida envisions two, eight bed 

dormitory style living quarters, which are not eligible for funding through DOH.  

Therefore, we are evaluating other ways to create a similar kind of flexible living 

environment that will also qualify for capital through DOH.  

o On June 9th, we met with the Salida Planning Department as a pre-development 

consultation. They have provided feedback from both Public Works and the Fire 

Department.   

o CHFA:  

o The CHFAReach, professional development opportunity scheduled for July 23rd 

at the Poncha Springs Town Hall has turned into a virtual opportunity.  The topic 

of this session will be LITC compliance, applicable to management of  multi-

family complexes include Collegiate Commons, Sunrise Manor, DeAnza Vista, 

Riverbend, and Salida Apartments. The new Confluent Park LITC and potential 

Mesa Crossings would benefit from attending as well. 

o Private Activity Bonds:  We are scheduled to transfer our issuing authority to 

CHFA on  

o I have contacted the CHFA Asset Management team regarding both the Salida 

Apartments and Sunrise Manor.  I have received numerous calls from tenants at 

both locations complaining about how they are treated by management and about 

the physical condition of the facilities.  CHFA staff have connected me with the 

property owners, and I am working with them to identify whether or not they 

could benefit from the County PAB.  Of primary importance is the expiration of 

the Salida Apartment’s LURA on December 31, 2021, which would pull the 



 

 Page 4 of 10 

project back into market rate.  If they will re-syndicate the tax-credits and use 

Chaffee County PAB, we can ensure the LURA extends for an additional 30-40 

years. 

 

o Colorado Mountain Housing Coalition:  

o The Board of Directors of the CMHC had determined not to host a fall 

conference, due to uncertainty because of COVID-19. 

 

o Envision Chaffee County: 

o I have begun conversations with the Director of Envision Chaffee County about 

partnership opportunities related to the GIS Activity within the Health Disparities 

Grant Program for FY 21.  The goal would be to work together to prioritize 

potential GIS layers that will assist in long term planning and evaluation. 

 

  



 

 Page 5 of 10 

 

Central Peaks Regional Council  

Affordable Housing Grants  
Final Report 

 
Please provide an update on the status of your affordable housing project.  

Through the generous grant from the Central Peaks Regional Council, the Chaffee County Rental 

Deposit Guarantee Program has been in existence since July 1st, 2019.  Landlords, community 

partners, and word of mouth have been the primary driver of applicants to this program.  Given 

the staffing constraints of the Chaffee County Office of Housing, we have not engaged in 

considerable advertising of the program, because we want to be sure we can keep up with 

processing the applications, promissory notes, habitability inspections, and repayment 

agreements while managing the remaining affairs of the Office. 

That said, at least two to four inquiries per week are made about the program; often, tenants 

decide not to apply once realizing it is not a grant and that they would have to enter into a 

repayment agreement.  Those who do apply have all been employed within the county, save one 

tenant who receives her income from disability payments. 

How has this grant expanded attainable housing in the Chaffee County region?  

Although the total number of affordable housing units have not been expanded due to the Rental 

Deposit Guarantee Program, the upfront cost necessary to enter rental housing, a typical and 

consistent barrier to accessing safe and stable housing, has been reduced. 

On average, rent in Chaffee County is $1,500 for a two-bedroom unit.  Landlords require first 

month’s rent, last month’s rent, and security deposit, typically equaling one month’s rent, with an 

average total of $4,500.  This program allows tenants to spread the payment of the rental deposit 

out over the term of the lease, therefore keeping their emergency funds, savings, or other 

reserves intact. 

Property managers, landlords, and community service entities are supportive of the program, 

because it offers the tenants opportunity to demonstrate responsibility and commitment while 

reducing the barriers to entering safe, stable, and affordable housing. 

 

 

 



 

 Page 6 of 10 

Throughout the course of the project, did you receive any additional funding or support? 

The initial grant from the Central Peaks Region of El Pomar Foundation has been the only source 

of funding for this project.  That said, the design of the Rental Deposit Guarantee Program 

creates a revolving fund, as the tenants are largely compliant with their repayment agreements. 

We do work very closely with the Salvation Army fund, operated by Chaffee County 

Department of Human Services.  This flexible source of funds can be used for one-time 

injections into a household’s budget to stabilize their housing and financial situations, however 

the overall budget is relatively small.  Therefore, we work together to use this Rental Deposit 

Guarantee Program braided with the Salvation Army funds to address the households overall 

financial and housing needs, ensuring that both funding streams are used wisely and not 

duplicative. 

How did the project change from what you initially proposed and anticipated? 

The program was designed to have eligibility criteria similar to that associated with state and 

federal affordable housing programs.  The criteria include employment earnings at or below 

100% of Chaffee County’s Area Median Income, which is verified through a third-party review 

of pay stubs. 

In Chaffee County, however, many of our employed residents are working in the “gig” economy, 

and incomes often include cash tips, causal verbal agreements, and inconsistent work 

availability; therefore, it has been more difficult than anticipated to verify applicants’ incomes.  

I have responded by accepting bank statements demonstrating deposits in amounts that average 

the income claimed on the application.  I have also accepted emails from employers stating the 

average pay and the average opportunity to work; I verify these emails with a phone call to the 

employer to eliminate any potential fraud.  One example of this kind of income, which is very 

common in Chaffee County, is seen in multiple tenants who earn a portion of their income 

cleaning short term rental houses.  They are “on call” more or less, through a network of 

property management companies, and are never guaranteed a specific number of cleaning gigs. 

One unanticipated outcome is an increase in the relationships the Office of Housing has with 

landlords and property managers.  They have been appreciative of the program, of the scrutiny of 

the applicants, and of the communications between this office and theirs.  These relationships are 

vital in the execution of community-based housing supports, and this program has been an 

excellent way to demonstrate that the Office of Housing is a reliable and accountable partner. 

 

 

 



 

 Page 7 of 10 

How many families have been served through this grant? 

Ten households have been the recipient of the Rental Deposit Guarantee, although an additional 

five have applied and were denied due to the inability to document their income or poor landlord 

references.  On average, two to four inquiries are made about the program every week.  

The ten households who have been served through the program include five single-parent 

households (all female heads of households), two two-parent households, and three single person 

households.  Of them, four were homeless or doubled up immediately prior to entering the rental 

unit whose deposit was guaranteed by this program, and one had fled domestic violence. 

In total, there are 12 children under the age of 18 living in the homes that have benefited from 

this program. 

What is the default rate connected to the loan agreement? 

The total amount of rental deposit funds that have been guaranteed is $7,970, with deposits 

ranging from $1,650 to $350; the average deposit amount is $797.00. 

One tenant left her rental unit without notifying the landlord, and therefore defaulted on her 

repayment agreement for a total of $450.00.  This tenant was an eighteen-year-old caring for her 

two minor siblings, and the landlord believes that she took them to family on the front range.  

The landlord and I had conversations prior to entering into the agreement due to the unusual 

circumstances, and collectively agreed to enter into the arrangements knowing the risk of the 

situation. 

One tenant has paid in full, and six are submitting payments on time, regularly.  The final two 

tenants make sporadic payments, but they are current in the total amount due and are in regular 

communications to adjust arrangements. 

Therefore, the overall default rate is $450 out of $7,970.00, which is 5.6%.  This program was 

modeled after a similar one operated by a Community Action Agency based in New Hampshire, 

whose default rate was reported to be 26%.  We had anticipated our default rate to be 

considerably less, given the income levels of our tenants compared to theirs; the 5.6% default 

rate we have realized over the past year demonstrates this is true. 

Are there any next steps for the project and, if applicable, the long term timeline? 

The next steps for this program will coincide with the next steps for the Chaffee County Office 

of Housing, which is anticipated to transition into a multijurisdictional housing authority 

(MJHA), including Chaffee County, Buena Vista, Poncha Springs, and Salida.  Once this entity 

is created and a Board of Directors is established, we will engage in a strategic planning and 

budgeting session.   



 

 Page 8 of 10 

As the Director of Housing, I will be advocating for the addition of a Housing Navigator position 

within the organization, who I envision will be central to the execution of the Rental Deposit 

Guarantee Program.  Should this come to fruition, I anticipate a marketing campaign to promote 

the program throughout the county, which will significantly increase the number of inquiries and 

applicants.  Should this not come to fruition, and we maintain the number of tenants between 10-

20, I would encourage the Board to evaluate whether or not the entire $40,000 granted by the 

Central Peaks Regional Council is best used for this program in it’s entirety, or whether it would 

be better to use some of the funds to support workforce housing development activities.  After a 

full evaluation by the Board of the MJHA, we would reach out to the Council for further 

conversation and evaluation. 



 

 Page 9 of 10 

 



 

 Page 10 of 10 

 

 


	Agenda
	Civility Invocation
	Minutes
	2.c. Taxilane Contract CAF
	2.c. Construction Contract
	5.b. Comms Plan CAF
	5.b. Comms Plan
	5.c. ORD 2020-10 CAF
	5.c. ORD 2020-10
	5.d. ORD 2020-11 CAF
	5.d. ORD 2020-11
	5.e. RES 2020-24 CAF
	5.e. RES 2020-24
	5.f. RES 2020-25 CAF
	5.f. RES 2020-25
	5.g. Dec of Emergency CAF
	5.g. Emergency Declaration
	5.g. COVID Action Plan
	BOCC Housing Report



